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UV\/I4Y AASOUN IN ANL NE

Prepared acordance sth PRG Ac.courPng Standards

r-

RMB mflion

Net profit
3300

Income from main operations
878

Income from other operations
991

Income from nvestments
234

Net income outside business 2088

Expressed RMB Million jo-jo

Operaton revenue Lit
8397451 8556925

Net profit attributable to the equjty shareholders of iLi7 379A 183
the Company 4886.70 343O11

Total assets 112.21515 120962A8

Shareholders equity 2214541 25O4264

Earnings per share 8MB A3sc 0.43 O3O

NetassetspershareRMB xm3i A3 1.78 222

Notes

cslcu afior major na ndeo-tors

Earrings per shar ne profit waghted average rumber ot ordinary shares outstand ng

Net assets per share sharoh ders equ ty at the end ot the year tot fi no 11br of ord
rajo

shares at the erd ft ar

wrr
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Load factors 7%5
Overall toad fac or 7f7 71.81 .24pts

Dome tic routes %ftj 73.24 0.08

International routes 70.97 254 pts

Regional routes 62 33 40 pts

Passenger toad factor -% 78.89 0.92 pts

Domestic routes 8059 0.57 pts

International routes 75 40 40 pts

Regional routes 73 39 38 pt

Freight oad factor 61 81 58 pts

Domestic routes 47.01 0.09 pts

Interna onal routes 77$$ 68.78 48 pts
54 .7

Region routes 47.60 1.31 pts

.5

Yeds and costs

Revenue tonne kllornetres yed 7Cj%S737 i505
2%

RMB 571 3.49%

Domestic routes 714427777 6.93 -365%

International routes t7Y 3.97 1.96%

Regional routes 2% 7.71 4.24%

S.5

assenger kilometres yeid RMB i7y 068 4.17%

Domestic routes S77L7 1s 0.69 4.39%

International routes I%o7 0.63 1.09%

Regional routes 0.81 4.004

Freight tonne kometres yied AFTK 7is7s

AF RMB 83 6.44%

Domestic routes 775 432%it 1.44 0.32%
75.5.5

-International routes 777s 1.82 -6.41%

Regional routes 7714843 4.49 12.33%
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Passenger aircraft

A320SerbsA320 22 26 31 20 15

A330Seres43300y

A340SeresA34001

B737NG 26 24 35 15

B757

6777 30066
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Freighter il
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87578
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Fhe Company made its first ght from

Shanghai to Cams in Australia This is the

first scheduled direct flight from China to

Cairns

rt

The Company was awarded the Golden

Tripod Award at the 8th Annua Meeting

of Chinas Securties Market

China United Airlines whollyowned

subsidiary of the Company completed its

joint reorganization with the former Hebe

Branch of the Company and became

the New China United Airlines which is

principally
based at the Nanyuar Airport

Beijing

51 cj51n
517

rtb
The Company was recognized as Lsted

Company with the Most Valuable Brand

at the 2012 Hong Kong China Securities

Golden Bauh nia Awaid ceremoc cy and Mr

Liu Shaoyong Chairman of the Company

was recognzed as Most Influential

Leader

51
51 22012 x551w

The Company was ranked 25th among the

Top 50 Most Valuable Chinese Brands

by WPP globa brard communicat on

firm

jTpfzi2 WEE

115T I5Q V25i

The Company was recogntze among the

Top 100 Employer China 2012

20124
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CHARMAN AFEMENT

In 2012 the global economic downturn resulted in decreased demand

in both internat onal and domestic passenger traffic and freight markets

greater cost pressures brought by cons stently high crude pr ces and ii

intensifed competition in domestic routes due to preference passengers for

railway over airline transportation becoming more common Meanwhile the

Groups international routes were also affected by unforeseen international

events Facing this complex international and domestic environment

the Group has under the premise of ensuring flight safety mantained

postive profitablity by optimising route ana fleet structure enhancing sales

management both passenger transportation and freight transportation

mainta ning stringent cost control strengthening the development of

information technology and improving the quality of its services

Safety management

The Group maintained stable safety system 2012 The Group continued

to strengthen its construction of the Safety Management System SMS
promulgated and issued work plans and mplementation proposals of the

SMS with the relevant tears commenced specific restoring measurs

regardng the risks such as lightng strike hard land ng and communication

failure established the Nantong airport training base to re nforce training on

flying skills and formu ated the C-f 033 Assessment

and Hemunerat on Packages of Star rating Flight Crew Members which

commenced star rating assessment of all flight crew members in terms of

fight safety flight quality practice and discipline and services Such rating

system not only optimised our incentve programs but also enhanced our

environment and culture to promote safe operations The Company assessed

and appointed 361 five-star captains during the first assessment at the end of

C-T C-r rA

CtC jr r0C 2JfrO

NC-s7CC-C-

t6-PC-fT
C-5

C-

J- O33-f
C-Cr C-SMS SMS

J5r 2fi0i
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Enriching the categories of marketing products

fl19

In 2012 the Group took the initiative to develop markebng products based

on the characteristics of dfterent markets and routes to expand its sales

channels broaden ts customer base and increase its revenue

In 2012 the Group cooperated with the Shanghai Raiway Bureau to launch

Air Rail Pass Transportation products in 13 cities in the Yangtze River

Delta including Nanjing Hangzhou and Suzhou The Groups domestic and

international flights together with its high-speed railway products at Shangha

Hongqiao International Airport and Shanghai Pudong Internat onal rport have

formed air-rail two way transportation product which has helped the Group

broaden ts customer base

Meanwhile in response to the low seasons the Group launched trave

products such as Journey to the Three Regions in Southern Ch na unnan

Hainan and angnan and Journey to the West ttrip to Greater Western

China via Xan which has effectively enhanced nassenger load factor for

flights dur ng low seasons

Developing customer resources

The Group actvely explored and expanded its customer base of high-end

business travelers to accelerate the development of group clients In 2012

the Group added over 200 group clients of which 15 are global group clients

Currently the total number of group clients amounts to over 4500 which has

contributed to increased sales revenues

The Group fuily promoted toe development of Eastem Miles membership

business In order to attract more members and to provide members better

experience in terms of diversity comprehensiveness and flexibitty the Group

strengthened its cooperation with retail store owners by increasing the number

of co-operative stores where members may accumulate and redeem points

to 74 covering various industries such as financial services hotel car rental

and health services The total number of exchangeable goods through this

program has increased to over 850 items By the end of 2012 the Group had

over million new Eastern MIes members with total of 18 million members

Members of Eastern Miles can participate in the frequent flyer mileage

accumuation and the redemption nrngrams
of 19 SkyTeam member airlines

as well as enjoy other member benefts Elite members also have access to

our 525 VIP loungesacrOss the world

t4C AF
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1800 47

19p47 .47

7- 0525 13 47-

he Group des gnod four core products of the Eastern Series

accordance with different levels of demand and consumption includng

377 Eastern Premium which targets hgh quality business travelers

4704 ding them with concierge-style full accompaniment services 37 47

Eastern Privileges which targets potential high value travelers providing

them with Llpgraded experiences and door-to-door pickup services to and

from the airport 5n Eastern Far Reach which targets travelers wth

special needs providing them with one stop services covering visa application

before departure to ticket ng reservation and 37 Eastern Shuttle which

targets travelers to Yunnan providing them with it nerary design transit and

destinat on va ue added services
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT

nformation technoogy

The Group has always attached great importance to the enhancement of

informabon technology and has sought to implement information technology

that contributes to tie continued development of the Groups business

In 2012 the Group further optimised its electronic sales service system

ncluding its official website call centres and mobile app cation IF 1t

China Eastern Mobile which serves to enhance customer experience

while increasing the Groups direct sales The Group upgraded ts official

domestic website and launched ne overseas websites The Group fostered

the transformation and upgrade of call centres and gradually expanded this

system to all branches subsidiaries and sales departments In view of the

increasing popularity of smart phones the Group introduced the new version

firrE China Eastern Mobile in 2012 providing streamlined

customer experience with tickets booking flight status checking and online

check in and international tickets sales serv ces via domestic mobile phone

application

Meanwhile the Group took proactve approach towards the development

of self-service check in functions and cotinJous improvement of ontnp

check in system to offer more convenient self services for passengers

Service quaUty

Adhering to the concept of customer satisfaction above all else and providing

heart to-heart service to our customers the Group optimised and adjusted its

fleet structure wh le proactively pushing the enhancement and renovation of its

hardware and software service products In 2012 the Groups newly upgraded

infrastructure and fac lities including ground VIP lounges waiting areas and

check-in areas in regional hubs and key markets such as Xian Kunming

and Bejing Nanyuan as well as commenced operations of the Companys

exclLisive VIP lounges at Guangzhou and Shenzhen airports The Group

advocated green environmentally friendly and healthy catering concept and

joined hands with world-renowned hote groups to design innovative cuisine to

be served in first class and business class cabins The Group also promoted

customized service of Inflight Meals Ordered Before Flight for first class and

business class cabins and high-end customers The content of entertainment

systems in the passenger cabins has been continuously improved to ensure

diversified in-flight entertainment experience of passengers In addition under

circumstances where flights were substantially affected due to bad weather

and other unexpected events the Group increased the number of information

disseminaton platforms and optimised procedures to address such issues

by providing mely flight status information for customers to facilitate itinerary

adjustments
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For the passenger raffic business the Group expects to al ocate flight

capacity and routes precisely and properly and to maintain accurate control of

cabin space and refine pricing management The Group will seek to increase

the proportion of direct sales by expanding its sales and marketing platform

and step up ts efforts to develop transition and tourism products by leveraging

on ts 72-hours visa-free stay policy in Shanghai and Beijing The Group

also seeks to further enhance its cooperation with both members and non

members airlines of the SkyTeam Alliance Performance efficiency will also be

enhanced through strengthened saes and marketing management measures

and increased operabng efficiency

In terms of freight log stics the Group II seek to adiust the structure of its

freight fleet and route network based on existing market conditions Operating

costs are expecteo to be reduced by controlling the allocation off ight

capacity Build ng on its steady freight carrier business the Group vv II seek

to enhance the operation management of bellyhold space to increase freight

traffc revenue Meanwhile the Group wil actively expand its presence in the

freight logist cs market by enhancing its ability to provide logistics
solutions

The Group will continue to implement comprehensive budget management

measures and strengthen the overall control implementating this budget

Fuels cost can be decreased through reduced fuel consumption by way of

cont nued route opti nisation continued operational management refinement

and continued weight reduction on board flights Procurement costs will

also be reduced by implementng centralised procurement measures and

increasing bargain ng power on bulk purchase Maintenance cost can

be reduced by enhancing engine overhaul capab lities and increasing

maintenance monitoring Finance cost can be reduced by the use of various

financial instruments Through these varous efforts and controls over various

costs and expenses the Groups profitability can be enhanced

While the Group will focus on traditonal passenger and freight transportation

operation it
will also actively promote the transformation and development of

both operations The Group wil also further improve its electronic business

platforms and moble service platforms to fad itate the transformation of

passenger traffic operat on through optimisation of network flight capacity

expansion of aviation value chains and enrichment of product portfolio and

exploration of customer resources For the transformation of freight logistics

the Group wIl beneft from economies of scale from the consoldation of its

freight logistics business which will speed up the transformation of fre ght

transportat on business and estaOlish platform for freight expressway to

create competitive freight expressway brand The Group will also strengthen

its truck transportation business to establish new revenue streams for freight

transportation An inoovative storage approach will be adopted to expand the

single storage function of cargo warehouses into distribution centre with

multiple functions such as storage cargo management and cargo delivery
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REVIEW OF OPERATiONS AND

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

rErG1L00 fhFJctJ

The Group currently has 10 branches and 50 overseas operation units and

offices around the world in addition to 24 wholly or partly owned subsidiaries

including LCFL..A Shanghai Air nes Co Ltd Shanghai

Airflnes j2 China Eastern Airlines Yunnan Co Ltd

ryjiftrt ft Shanghai Eastern Airlines Logistics Co Ltd

and China Unted Airlines The feet of CEA comprises over 400 large- and

medium-sized aircraft with an average age of less than seven years providing

services to over 73 million travelers around the world every year

YC 510
TI

00

00ftiA 24
10F
73000 -L

5000

4005F

In 2n12 the total traffic volume of the Grouo was 14406.48 million tonne

kilometres representing an increase of 49 from ast year Revenue of the

Group was RMB85253 million wth total profit of RMB2808 million Net profit

attributable to the equity shareho ders of the Company was RMB2954 million

Jr

28.O8

29.5410 cu

4406.48F

852.53l

Jrr

In 2012 the Company accounfed for 50.20 and 38.40o of the total market

share at Hongqiao Infernationa rport and Pudong lnternationa Airport

respectively in terms of total flight take-offs and landings and accounted

for 48.20o and 36.60 of the total market share at Hongqiao International

Airport and Pudong lnfernafional Airport respectively in terms of passenger

throughput
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Operating expenses UL

027

In 2012 the Groups total operating costs was RMB82745 million

representing an increase of 4.35% from previous year

Analysis of the changes in other items under operating costs of the Group is

set out as follows

Aviation fuel costs account for the most substantial part of the Groups

operating costs In 2012 total aviation fuel consumption was approximately

4177700 tonnes representing 7.22% increase compared to last year In

2012 the average price of jet fuel increased by 2.14% compared to last year

Aviation fuel expenditures of the Group reached RMB29872 million based

on value-added tax which accounted for 36% of the Groups operating

expenses representing an increase of 2.20% from RMB29229 million last

year The Company implemented policy of transforming its business tax to

value-added tax in 2012 If calculated in line with the business tax aviation

fuel costs for 2012 grew by 9.52% from last year and the increase in price of

jet fuel increased aviation fuel expenditures by approximately RMB671 million

The increase in aviation fuel consumption resulted in an increase in aviation

fuel expenditures of approximately RMB21 11 million

Take-off and landing charges amounted to RMB9066 million or an increase

of 8.57% from last year and was primarily due to the increase in the number

of take-off and landings as well as an increase in average unit price of take-off

and landing charges

Depreciation and amortisation amounted to RMB7557 million or growth

of 8.49% from last year and was primarily due to the addition of new aircraft

and engines by the Group in 2012 resulting in greater base number for

depreciation and amortisation

Wages salaries and benefits amounted to RMB1O059 million or an increase

of 16.09% from last year and was primarily due to an increase in the number

of staff and an increase in hours flown

Food and beverage expenses were RMB2031 million representing an

increase of 0.45% from last year

Aircraft operating lease rentals amounted to RMB4438 million or an increase

of 7.50% from last year and was primarily due to an increase in the number of

aircraft held through an operating lease in 2012

Other operating lease rentals amounted to RMB6O9 million or an increase of

23.83% from last year and was primarily due to an increase in the number of

leases for warehouses and VIP lounges at airports

Sales and marketing expenses were RMB3727 million representing

decrease of 0.33% from last year

The amount of civil aviation infrastructure levies payable to Civil Aviation

Administration of China CAAC amounted to RMB1 414 million representing

an increase of 7.04% compared to last year and was primarily due to an 8%

increase of miles flown by the Company in 2012
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GrOUnd services aRd Dther charges were RM8594 million representing an

increase of 4.67% from last year

Office administration and ether operating expenses amounted to RMB8983

million representing an increase of .46% from last year primarily due to an

increase in the number of staff

Other operating income

In 2012 other operating income of the Group amounted to RMB1 720 million

an increase of 62.01% from the same period last year primarily due to an

increase in operations subsidy from the government

Finance income/costs

In 2012 the Groups finance income was RMB349 million decrease of

RMB1 675 million from the same period last year primarily due to the minimal

appreciation of the Renminbi against the U.S dollar in 2012 which had

substantially appreciated in 2011 Finance costs amounted to RMB1 697

million an increase of RMB235 million primarily due to an increase in interest

expenses arising trom increased borrowings and finance leases

Profit

As result of the foregoing the Groups profit attributable to the equity

shareholders of the Company in 2012 was RMB2954 million representing

35.45% decrease as compared to the Groups profit attributable to the equity

shareholders of the Company of RMB4576 million in 2011

Liquidity and Capital Structure

The Groups primary capital requirements are tor its daily operations and to

fund capital expenditures for the purchase of aircraft and flight equipment

Cash generated from the ordinary course of the Groups business was

generally able to satisfy the cash required for the Groups daily operation and

generate cash surplus In 2011 and 2012 net cash inflow from the Groups

operating activities amounted to RMB13623 million and RMB12617 million

respectively Capital expenditures for the purchase of aircraft and flight

equipment was partly funded by internal funds the balance of which was

mainly financed by long-term and short-term borrowings and finance leasing

In 2011 and 2012 net cash outflow from the Groups investment activities

were RMB1 4939 million and RMB1 1789 million respectively Net cash inflow

from the Groups financing activities in 2011 was RMB2136 million Net cash

outflow from the Groups tinancing activities in 2012 was RMB2174 million

The Group generally operates with net current liabilities As at 31 December

2012 the Groups current liabilities exceeded its current assets by

RMB35948 million The Group has been and believes it will continue to be

capable of financing its working capital by obtaining borrowings trom domestic

and foreign banks in China In addition the Group proactively explored its

financing channels and continued to optimise its debt structure and lower its

finance costs by issuing vadous kinds of bonds
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The Group monitors its capital OR the basis of its debt ratio which is

calculated as total liabilities divided by total assets As at 31 December 2012

the debt ratio of the Group was 80.17%

As at 31 December 2011 aRd 2012 the amount of the Groups borrowiRgs

due withiR ORE year were RMB18171 millioR aRd RM822640 millioR

respectively As at 31 December 2011 the Groups borrowirlgs payable

from ORE to two years from three to tive years aRd beyoRd five years were

RMB8408 millioR RMB9391 million aRd RMBS804 million respectively as

compared to HMB7273 millioR RMS7906 million and RMB7918 million

respectively as at 31 December 2012

The Groups obligations under finance leases as at 31 December 2011 and

2012 were RMB2O261 million and RMB21 858 million respectively As at 31

December 2011 the Groups lease obligations payable within two years from

three to five years and beyond five years were RMB501 million RMB7235

million and RMB800g million respectively as compared to RMB5309 million

RMB7925 million and RMB8624 million respectively as at 31 December

2012

As at 31 December 2012 the Groups borrowings comprised USD
denominated borrowings of USD5028 million and RMS-denominated

borrowings of RMB13827 million Fixed-rate borrowings aRd floating-

rate borrowings accounted tor 22.91% and 77.09% of total borrowings

respectively in 2012 As at 31 December 2011 the Groups borrowings

comprised USD-denominated borrowings of USD3967 million and RMB
denominated borrowings of RMB16780 million Fixed-rate borrowings and

floating-rate borrowings accounted for 15.5% and 84.4% of total borrowings

respectively in 2011

As at 31 December 2012 the Groups obligations under finance leases

comprised USD-denominated obligations of USD2983 million Singapore

dollar-denominated obligations of S$245 million Hong Kong dollar-

denominated obligations of HK$1468 million and Japanese Yen-denominated

obligations of JPY9136 million As at 31 December 2011 the Groups

obligations under finance leases comprised USD-denominated obligations

of USD2840 million RMB-denominated obligations of AMB1 090 million

and Singapore dollar-denominated obligations of S$263 million The Groups

finance leases were floating-rate obligations in 2011 and 2012

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

According to the contracted agreements as at 31 December 2012 we expect

our capital expenditures for aircraft engines and related equipment to be in

the aggregate approximately RMB1 72092 million including approximately

RMB26321 million in 2013 and RMB44435 million in 2014 in each case

subject to contractually stipulated changes or any change relating to inflation

We plan to finance our capital commitments through combination ot tunds

generated from operation existing bank credit facilities bank loans leasing

arrangements and other external financing arrangement
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flMfltft
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

fl20

Critical accounting policies are defined as those that are reflective of significant

judgments aRd uncertainties aRd potentially
result in materially differeRt results

uRder differeRt assumptions aRd conditions

Our audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in

accordaRce with IFRS Our principal accounting policies are set forth in Note

to our audited consolidated financial statements IFRS requires that we adopt

the accounting policies and make estimates that our directors believe are most

appropriate in the circumstances for the purposes of giving true and tair

view of our results and financial position However different policies estimates

and assumptions in critical areas could lead to materially different results The

critical accounting policies adopted and estimates and assumptions made

in the preparation of these financial statements are identified and set forth in

Note to our audited consolidated financial statements

RISK ANALYSIS

Interest rate fluctuation risk

The Groups total interest-bearing liabilities including long-term and short-

term borrowings finance leases and bonds payable as at 31 December 2011

and 2012 were RMB62035 million and RMB67594 million respectively of

which short-term liabilities accounted for 33.26% and 37.35% respectively

for those years portion of long-term interest-bearing liabilities were liabilities

with variable interest rates and were affected by fluctuations in current market

interest rates

The Groups interest-bearing liabilities were primarily denominated in US

dollars and Renminbi As at 31 December 2011 and 2012 the Groups

liabilities denominated in US dollars accounted for 6g.14% and 74.5%

respectively ot total liabilities while liabilities denominated in Renminbi

accounted for 28.81% and 20.46% respectively of total liabilities during

those periods Fluctuations in the US dollar and Renminbi interest rates have

significantly
affected the Groups finance costs

Exchange rate fluctuation risk

Since 21 July 2005 the Chinese government has adjusted the Renminbi

exchange rate system and established floating exchange rate system by

which the exchange rate would be adjusted and managed based on market

supply and demand with reference to basket of foreign currencies The

fluctuation in the Renminbi exchange rate is affected by domestic and

international economic and political conditions and general currency supply

and demand dynamics
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The Group operates its business in many countries and territories and

generates revenue in different currencies As such its foreign currency

liabilities are generally much higher than its foreign currency assets at the end

of the period The Groups major liability item purchases or leases of aircraft

is mainly priced and settled in currencies such as US dollars In addition

fluctuations in foreign exchange rates will affect the Groups costs incurred

from foreign purchases such as aircraft flight equipment and jet fuel and

take-off and landing charges at foreign airports As at 31 December 2012

the Groups total interest-bearing liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

converted to Renminbi amounted to RMB53767 million of which US dollar

liabilities accounted for 93.66% of this amount Therefore significant

fluctuation in foreign exchange rates will subject the Group to foreign

exchange loss arising from the translation of foreign currency denominated

liabilities which will also affect the profitability and development of the Group

The Group typically uses hedging contracts for foreign currencies to reduce

the foreign exchange risks for foreign currency revenue generated from ticket

sales and expenses to be paid in foreign currencies The Groups foreign

currency hedging contracts mainly involve the sales of Japanese Yen and the

purchase of US dollars at fixed exchange rates As at 31 December 2012

foreign currency hedging contracts held by the Group amounted to notional

amount of USD58 million 31 December 2011 USD46 million and will expire

between 2013 and 2017

The Group recorded decrease in net foreign exchange gains in 2012 As

at 31 December 2011 and 2012 the Groups foreign exchange gains were

RMB1 872 million and RMB148 million respectively Due to the significant

amount of existing net foreign currency liabilities the Groups results will be

materially and adversely affected
if the Renminbi depreciates against the US

dollar or if the rate of appreciation of the Renminbi against the US dollar

decreases in the future

Risk associated with the fluctuation of fuel prices

Jet fuel is one of the Groups major operating expenses The fluctuation of jet

fuel prices has significant impact on the Groups operating results Foreign

fuel prices are mainly affected by supply and demand dynamics in the global

market In addition domestic jet fuel prices are supervised by governmental

authorities such as the National Development and Reform Commission and

CAAC of PRO The Group generally reduces the fuel price impact on operating

results arising from increasing jet fuel prices by imposing passenger fuel

surcharges reducing fuel consumption by route optimisation and enhancing

cost controls

In 2012 assuming constant factors but excluding the effects of crude oil

option contracts if the average price of jet fuel had increased or decreased

by 5% jet fuel costs of the Group would have increased or decreased by

approximately RMB1 494 million
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Pledges on assets and contingent liabilities

fl2

The Group generally finances the purchases of aircraft through finance leases

and bank loans secured by its assets As at 31 December 2012 the value

of the Groups assets used to secure certain bank loans was RMB22544

million representing an increase of 23.08% from RMB18317 million as at 31

December 2011

As at 31 December 2012 the Group had no significant contingent liabilities

-HD
225.441k

A183.17ftUIr
23.08%

EFFECT OF POLICIES

Effective January 2012 the pilot programme for the transformation from

business tax to value-added tax regarding the transportation industry

commenced in Shanghai which affects our CEA headquarters Shanghai

Airlines China Cargo Airlines Eastern Logistics and Eastern Business Airlines

and has affected the Groups income and costs

On 25 July 2012 the PRO State Council extended the scope of this pilot

programme and effective August 2012 until year end the scope of the pilot

programme regarding the transportation and certain modern service industries

was gradually extended from Shanghai to ten provinces and municipalities

including Beijing Tianjin and Jiangsu Province Certain of the Companys

subsidiaries including China United Airlines CEA Jiangsu and CEA Wuhan

began to enforce the policies

As at January 2012 the pilot programme affected the Group as revenues

of the Group excluding tax decreased by RMB2954 million while operating

expenses of the Group decreased by RMB3132 million and total profit

increased by RMB178 million

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012 the Group had 66207 employees the majority

of whom worked in or were based in China The wages of the Groups

employees generally consisted of basic salary and performance-based bonus

There were no material labor disputes between the Group and its employees

and the Group did not experience significant turnover of employees or

encounter any major difficulties in recruiting new employees

TAXATION

The Company is subject to income tax at rate of 25% 2011 24% Our

effective tax rate however may be lower than the rate of 26% because certain

subsidiaries were incorporated in jurisdictions where the applicable income

tax rate is 16.5% rather than 25% We had carried forward tax losses of

approximately RMB6169 million as at 31 December 2012 2011 RMB9713

million which can be used to set off future taxable income between 2013 and

2017
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The board of directors of the Company the Board is pleased to present the

audited financial report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 the PH-
Reporting Period

GROUP ACTIVITIES AND RESULTS

The Company is one of the three largest air carriers in the PRC based on the

total tonne-kilometres and number of passengers carried in 2012 and is an

important base airline facilitating the development of the International Financial 11

Centre and the International Shipping Centre of Shanghai The results of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the financial position of the iil
Company and the Group as at that date prepared in accordance with IFRS

and PRC Accounting Standards are set out in the financial statements

Details of the Companys principal subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the

financial statements of the Group prepared in accordance with IFRS

The geographical analysis of the Groups revenue from its business is as

follows

REVENUE

PRC Accounting

Standard IFRSAU
RMBOOO RMBOOO

Domestic 57612675 57115231

Regional Hong Kong Macau and Taiwan 3704064 3704064

International 24.252.511 24434022

Total 85.569250 85253317

DIVIDENDS

According to the financial statements prepared in accordance with FRC

Accounting Standards the Companys net profit was RMB2987 million for the

year ended 31 December 2012 and the accumulated losses of the Company 29.87.f 2I
as at 31 December 2012 amounted to RMB1 516 million The Board does not A15.16
recommend payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2012 the share capital structure of the Group is set out as LL.l
follows

Approximate

percentage in

Total number total share

of shares capital

4ft1U%
shares 7.782213860 69.01

shares H.i 3494325000 30.99

Total number of shares 11276538860 100.00
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NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 201 the total number of regserecI SharehoFdeS ws
250268 of which 2495Th are holders of hares arid $90 are holders of 25O268 A9249576
shares 69U

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the directc of

of the following per

of the Company thE

management had as

in the Companys sh

would fall to be disdo

Kong Limited the

of Divisions and or -art XV oi tri UUtLIb dilU ULUitb LIUIflI1

SF0 orwas otherwise as at 31 December2012 interested tn5% or

more of any class of the then issued share capital the Company or was i1
otherwise as at 31 December 201 substantial shareholdst as defked in JJ
the Rules Governing the

Listing
of Securities on Th Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited the Listing Rules of the Company

As at 31 December 2012

El-
Percentage of Percentage of Percentage of

shareholding shareholding shareholding

in the in the in the

Companys Companys Companys

Type of Number of total issued total issued total issued

Name of Shareholders shares held shares held share capital shares shares

Bt AJ

China Eastern Air Holding Company shares 4831375000 42.84% 62.08%

CEA Holding

CEA Holding Note shares 1927375000 17.09% 55.16%

HKSCC Nominees Limited shares 3478742299 30.85% 99.55%

Note2to3

AJ t23
Notes

Based on the information available to the Directors as at 31 December 2012 lricluding

such information as was available on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and

so far as they are aware of as at 31 December 2012 71

Such shares were held by CES Global Holdings Hong Kong Limited CES
Global in the capacity of beneficial owner which in turn was 100% held by CEA P1 .fJ

Holding QO%f
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Among the 3478742299 shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited 55t%5ft5A%%B%%%%3478742299%
1927376000 shares representing approximately 55.16% of the Companys H%t 927375OoO5QH%1$B%E5H%5
then total issued shares were held by CES Global in the capacity of beneficial %t55.16% IM%0AS% A%%12%%
owner which in turn was 100% held by CEA Holding MSBiS%%i00%5%

Among the 3478742299 shares held by HKSCC hiominees Limited JPMorgan 5%tfSA %B 31 %%53478742299
Chase Co had through controlled corporations an interest in an aggregate %H%t JPMorgan Chase Co M%%ti1%%
of 247350702 shares representing approximately 7.08% ot the Companys %247350702%H% 5% 215% %BH%%%
then total issued shares .JPMorgen Chase Co had interest in the aforesaid 137 08% JPMorgan Chase Co.51iJ5S5Uiii
247350702 shares of the Company in manner as follows 247350702%H%1M

117538000 shares representing approximately 3.36% of the Companys 117538000% 5% S/I
then total Issued shares were held by JF Asset Management Umited %S5153.36%JF Asset Management Limited

in the capacity of investment manager which in turn was 100% held by SA 5151 125-5 SI JPMorgan Asset

JPMorgan Asset Management Asia Inc which in turn Was 100% held by Management Asia Inc 100%

JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings inc which in tum was 100% held JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings lncJ4S

by JPMorgan Chase Co 100% 551JPMorgan Chase Co.4451 00%

45142000 shares representing approximately 29% of the Companys 45142000%H%/fl55$B%B%tiH%%
then total issued shares were held in lending pool by JPMorgan Chase 5511.29% JPMorgan Chase Bank N.ABA1S%

Bank N.A in the capacity of custodian corporation/approved lending agent 5/ 11ffll/I112%f TI tilfiQIS

which in turn was 100% held by JPMorgan Chase Co. i55JPMorgan Chase Cod15100%

31 250000 shares representing approximately 0.89% of the Companys 31 250000%H% /n SIB 3515 S/IH%%
then total issued shares were held by Chins International Fund St/70.89%China International Fund Management

Management Co Ltd in the capacity of investment manager which in turn Co Ltd 1/ 5k 12/45 55 JPMorgan
was 49% held by JPMorgan Asset Management UN Limited which in tum Asset Management UK Limited/4%49% 555
was 100% held by JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings UK Limited .JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings UK Limited

which in tum was 100% held by JPMorgan Asset Management International 55100% SISJPMorgan Asset Management
Limited which in turn was 100% held by JFMorgan Asset Management Internationat Limited/4%100% 55 SdPMorgan

Holdings Inc which in tum was 100% held by JPMorgsn Chase Co and Asset Management Holdings lnc.t4%100%

SJPMorganChaseCo.%%100% It

24668000 shares representing approximately 0.71% of the Companys 24688000% 55 SIB 5% SB
then total issued shares were held bydpMorgan Asset Management 55/130.71% SjPMorgen Asset Management
Taiwan Limited in the capacity of investment manager which in turn was Taiwan Limited OA /415% 1345 15

100% held by JPMorgan Asset Management Asia Inc which in turn was JPMorgan Asset Management Asia Inc /4

100% held by JPMorgsn Asset Management Holdings Inc which in turn 100% JPMorgan Asset Management
was tOO% held by JPMorgan chase Co Holdings lnc./4%100% JPMorgan Chase

Co.f45100%

21050000 shares representing approximately 060% of the Companys 21 050000SHS US SI 5% k/kr HS
then total issued shares were held by JPMorgan Asset Management 55150.60% SJPMorgan Asset Management

Singapore Limited in the capacity of investment manager which in turn Singapore Limited 2t4 55% 134% 55
was 100% held by JPMorgan Asset Management Asia Inc which in turn SJPMorgan Asset Management Asia lnc.145

was 100% held by .JPMorgsn Asset Management Holdings Inc which in 100% 45 .JPMorgan Asset Management
turn was 100% held by JPMorgan Chase Co Holdings Inc.45100% JPMorgan Chase

Co.145100%

4000000 shares representing approximately 0.11% of the Companys 4000000SHS5%t5$B35%B/5/IHfljj5S
then total issued shares were held by J.P Morgan Markets Limited in t/io.i 1% SiP Morgan Markets LimitedhtS5M5

the capacity of beneficial owner which in turn was 100% held by Bear A1fi45 thBear Stearns Holdings Limited

Stearns Holdings Limited which in turn was 100% held by Bear Stearns 55100% 55 15 Bear Stearns UK Holdings

/1K Holdings Limited which in turn was 100% held by The Bear Stearns Limited 100% 15 The Bear Stearns

Companies LLC which in turn was 100% held by iPMorgan Chase Co Companies LLC 45 100% 15 JPMorgan

Chase Co.145100%
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3576000 shares representing approximately 0.10% of the Companys 3576000 Ni1 at 21t tt

then total issued shares were held by JF International Management Inc PktJD.1O%JF International Management

in the capacity ot investment manager which in turn was 100% held by Inc tiff at ti JPMorgan

JPMorgan Asset Management Asia Inc which in turn was 100% held by Asset Management Asia lnc.atlOO%

.iPMorgan Asset Management Holdings Inc which in turn was 100% held JPMorgan Asset Management Holdings lnc.atat

by JPMorgen Chase Co 100% dtJPMorgan Chase Co.atatlOO%

106702 shares representing approximately 0.003% of the Companys 106702ti9HiflttRfit

then total issued sheres were held by J.P Morgan Whitetrisra Inc in the iti0.003%J.P Morgan Whitefriers Inc lA
capacity of beneficial owner which in turn was 100% held by J.P Morgan fiatAat1Stat J.P Morgan Overseas

Overseas Capital Corporation which in turn was 100% held by J.P Morgan Capital Corporation atati 00% tJ.P Morgan

International Finance Limited which in turn was 100% held by Bank One lnternstional Finance Limitedatatloo%

International Holdings Corporation which in turn was 100/a held by UP Bank One lnternstionsl Holdings Corporstionl4at

Morgan International Inc which in turn was 100% held byJPMorgan Chase 100% Morgan International Inc.tat

Bank N.A which in turn was 100% held by JPMorgsn Chase Co 100% LJPMorgsn Chase Bank N.A.t4

100% UPMorgan Chase Co.ftiatlOO%

Among the S4787422gg shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited JPMorgan tat at fi ttatA atliM 34787422g9
Chase Co also had through controlled corporations short position in en fitiHiftit JPMorgan Chase Co.i3fitatatiatatatat

aggregate ot 4785114 shares representing approximately 0.14% ot the

Companys then total issued shares Among such short position
of 4.785114 tio.14% tiat4785114atHfl flat 4000000

shares 4000000 shsres were held by UP Morgan Markets Limited in fiftHfitttJ.P Morgsn Markets LimitedIifttAfti4ti

the capacity ot beneficial owner which in turn was 100% held by Bear Stearns at tttiBesr Stearns Holdings Limitedi4tloo%

Holdings Limited which in turn was 100% held by Bear Stearns UK Holdings atat Beer Stearns UK Holdings UmitedI4tlOO%

Limited which in turn was 100% held by The Beer Stearns Companies LLC which ttlThe Beer Stearns Companies LLCatt100%

in turn was 100% held by JPMorgan Chase Co end 785114 shares were JPMorgan Chase Co.attlOO% 7851 l4P1fiHifti

held by UP Morgan Whitefriars UK in the capacity of beneficial owner which in rhJ.P Morgan Whitefriars UKAIatatatA.tlSatat

turn was 100% held by UP Morgan Whitefriars Inc which in turn was 100% held atat EJ.P Morgan Whitefriars lnc.attlOO% atitJ.P

by UP Morgan Overseas Capital Corporation which in tum was 100% held by J.P Morgan Overseas Capital Corporationfltiatloo% tat

Morgan International Finance Limited which in turn was 100% held by Bank One WJ.P Morgan International Finance Limitedat100%

International Holdings Corporation which in turn was 100% held by UP Morgan f-atBank One International Holdings Corporetionatat

International Inc which in turn was 100% held by JPMorgsn Chase Bank NA 100% ffi UP Morgan International lnc.t4100%

which in tum was 100% held by JPMorgan Chase Co. tttJPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.ttiatlOO%

UPMorgsn Chase Co.f4tlOO%

Save as disclosed above based on the information available fo the Direcfora ft4.LjitfratI

and so far as they are aware as at 31 December 2012 among fhe nTntFflR.EH-D
3478742299 shares held by HKSCC Nominees Limited no other person t4 Atj347B742299Htt

had any interest or short position in the Companys shares or underying

shares as the case may be which would fall to be disclosed to the Company

and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions and

of Part XV of the SF0

32



ANNUAL REPORT 2012

REPORT OF DIRECTORS 037
1-Ix

According to the relevant disclosure requirements laid down by the China

Securities Regulatory Commission CSRC as at the end of the Reporting

Period the 10 largest registered Shareholders and the 10 largest registered I1
listed stock Shareholders on the register of members of the Company and

their respective shareholdings are as follows

THE 10 LARGEST REGISTERED SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDINGS

Increase

decrease in Shareholding Charged or

shareholding at the end of Percentage locked-up Nature of

Name of Shareholders in the year the year Type of shares shares shares held

tfl tfQfl fti% 2t Ifl

CEA Holding 4831375000 42.84 Listed Nil shsres

HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 642000 3478742299 30.85 Listed 1927375000 Unknown shares

inoluding CES Global
shares held by CES I1

tttMJNtfA Global

EfltI

1927375000

Shanghai Allianoe Investment 427085429 3.79 Listed Unknown shares

Limited 5P

China National Aviation Fuel 421052632 3.73 Listed Unknown shares

Holding Company EfiO l1 AII

Jin Jiang International Holdings 343288860 3.04 Listed Unknown shares

Company Limited

Aerospaoe Capital Holding 99088580 0.88 Listed Unknown shares

Co Ltd Et fl

Sinotrans Air Transportation 83157894 0.74 Listed Unknown shares

Development Co Ltd SHW

China Construotion Bank 36441131 36441131 0.32 Usted Unknown shares

CIFM Alpha Stook Seourities

Investment Fund

fl

Bank ot Communioations Hua 30000000 30000000 0.27 Listed Unknown shares

An Strategy Seleolive Equity EJItffl

Seourities Investment Fund

10 China Minsheng Banking Corp 28009934 28009934 0.25 Usted Unknown shares

Ltd Orient Seleotive Mixed Et tU
Open-end Seourities Investment

Fund

W5ftto5i

Description of any related party relationship among the 10 largest

Shareholders the Company not aware of any related party or concert party

relationship among the above Shareholders
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THE 10 LARGEST REGISTERED LISTED STOCK SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDINGS

Shareholding

of listed stocks

at the end Type of

Name of Shareholders of the year shares held

CEA Holding 4831375000 shares

HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED including CES Global 3478742299 shares

Shanghai Alliance Investment Limited 427085429 shares

A9

China National Aviation Fuel Holding Company 421 0S2632 shares

Jin Jiang International Holdings Company Limited 343288860 shares

Aerospace Capital Holding Co Ltd 99088580 shares

A9

Sinotrans Air Transportation Development Co Ltd 83157894 sharesI2Ti
China Construction Bank CIFM Alpha Stock Securities Investment Fund 36441131 shares

Bank of Communications Hua An Strategy Selective Equity Securities Investment 30000000 shares

Fund

10 China Minsheng Banking Corp Ltd Orient Selective Mixed Open-end Securities 28009934 shares

Investment Fund A9

Description of any related party or concert party relationship among the 10

largest listed stock Shareholders the Company is nft aware of any related

party or concert party retationship among the above listed stock Shareholders
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

There has been no change in the Companys controlling shareholder in the

year

CEA Holding is the parent company of the Company and its registered

capital amounts to RMB12876321 000 Mr Liu Shaoyong is the legal 12876321 0O0t

representative of CEA Holding CEA Holdings scope of business includes

the management of all state-owned assets and state-owned equity of its

group and its investment enterprises which are formed by state investment

CEA Holding headquarter based in Shanghai is one of the three largest core

state-owned aviation transportation group as central enterprises under the

State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State

Council SASAC Since 2009 CEA Holding made new development with 43A
fresh outlook and earned total profit of over RMB1O billion in the consecutive -J-
three years It was classified as enterprise under category by SASAC for

consecutive two years in 2010 and 2011 and has credit rating of 3A in the

capital market As at 31 December 2012 no share of the Company held by

CEA Holding was pledged

PURCHASE SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Save as otherwise disclosed during the year ended 31 December 2012

neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased sold or redeemed f11.tA
any of its listed securities securities having the meaning ascribed thereto

under paragraph of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules without taking into

account any issue of new securities
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SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCESBETWEEN THE Zy
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE

COMPANY AND THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES REQUIRED TO BE FOLLOWED BY
U.S COMPANIES UNDER THE NEW YORK STOCK
EXCHANGES LISTING STANDARDS

As company incorporated in the PRO and Hsted on the Shanghai Stock

Exchange the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the New York Stock

Exchange the NYSE the Company is subject to not only applicable PRO

laws and regulations including the PRO Company Law the PRO Securities .ij
Law the Corporate Governance Standards for Listed Companies and

Guidance Opinions regarding the Establishment of the Independent Director

System in Listed Companies the Independent Director Guidance but also Ij ff1Ijfl Rc
Hong Kong laws and regulations including the

Listing Rules the Companies

Ordinance and the SF0 as well as applicable U.S federal securities laws

and regulations including the U.S Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Based on NYSEs listing Ij ffI1

standards the NYSE imposes series of corporate governance standards

for companies listed on the NYSE However the NIYSE permits foreign

private issuers to follow their respective home country practices and grants

waivers for compliance with certain corporate governance standards One

of the conditions for such waiver is for the foreign private issuer to disclose

in its annual report how the corporate governance practices in its home

country differ from those required of U.S companies under the NYSEs
listing

standards

In accordance with the requirements of Section 303A.1 of the NYSE Listed 1ffi303A.1

Company Manual the following is summary of the significant differences

between the Companys corporate governance practices and those required

to be followed by U.S companies under the NYSEs listing standards

Section 303A.01 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that the

Board of the listed companies must have majority of Independent Directors Ifrji

As company listed in the PRO the Company is subject to the requirement iiff
under the Independent Director Guidance that at least one-third of the Board 2lff

be independent as determined thereunder As company listed in Hong It
Kong the Company is also subject to the requirement under the Listing

Rules that at least three members of the Board shall be independent and

at least one of whom must have appropriate professional qualifications 2IrZ1

or accounting or related financial management expertise The Company

currently has four independent non-executive Directors out of total of eleven

Directors The standards for establishing independence set forth under either frff1 303A.03 ..E11t

the Independent Director Guidance or the Listing Rules differ from those set

forth in the NYSE Listed Company Manual Section 303A.03 of the NYSE gf
Listed Company Manual provides that listed companies must schedule

regular executive sessions in which non management directors meet without

management participation The Company is not required under the applicable

PRO law to hold such executive sessions
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Section 303A.04 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that listed

companies must have nominating/corporate governance committee

composed entirely of independent directors The establishment of the fj

Nomination Committee was considered and resolved and its charter was 2IjJ
passed at the third regular meeting of the fifth session of the Board held on 28 2Iff
April 2009 The merging of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration

and Appraisal Committee into the Nominations and Remuneration Committee

was agreed at the 36th ordinary meeting of the fifth session of the Board

held on 19 March 2010 and the Working Rules of the Nominations and

Remuneration Committee was passed The Nominations and Remuneration 1LT ff1

Committee consists of three members two of which are independent non-

executive Directors of the Company Section 303A.04 of the NYSE Listed

Company Manual also provides that the nominating/corporate governance

committee of listed company must have written charter that addresses

the commfttees purpose and responsibilities which include among others

the development and recommendation of corporate governance guidelines to

the listed companys board of directors The Board is directly responsible for

developing the Companys corporate governance guidelines

Section 303A.05 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that listed

companies must have compensation committee composed entirely of

independent directors Under the
Listing Rules majority of the members of Ij

the remuneration committee must be independent non-executive directors

The merging of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration and

Appraisal Committee into the Nominations and Remuneration Committee tjFfi
was agreed at the 36th ordinary meeting of the fifth session of the Board held

on 19 March 2010 The Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the

Company is composed of two independent non-executive Directors and one

Director

Section 303A.10 of the NYSE Listed Company Manual provides that listed

companies must adopt and disclose code of business conduct and ethics

for directors officers and employees As required under the Sarbanes-Oxley Uj
Act of 2002 the Company has adopted code of ethics that is applicable to 1$
the Companys Directors Supervisors President Chief Financial Officer and

other members of senior management

PRE.-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Under the articles of association of the Company the Articles of

Association and the PRC laws no pre-emptive right exists which requires

the Company to offer new shares to its existing Shareholders on pro rata ff

basis

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the

knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue ff1

of this annual report the Directors believe that the Company has at all times

during the year ended 31 December 2012 maintained the relevant applicable flIj p8.081 aft ff3

minimum percentage of listed securities as prescribed by Rule 8.081a of the th

Listing Rules
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SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEM NT

Names relevant information of and shares held by the Directors the

Supervisors and members of senior management of the Company as at 31

December 2012 are as follows

Number of listed

shares of Capacity in

the Company which the

held personal shares Effective date and expiry

Name Position Age interest shares were held date of appointment

-1Ui9 WrtA

Liu Shaoyong Chairman 54 28 June 2010 28 June 2013

Ma Xulun Vice Chairman 49 11 November 2011 28 June 2013E7
President 28 June 2010 28 June 2013

XuZhao Director 44 28June2012 28June2013

Cu Jiadan Director 57 28 June 2012 28 June 2013

Li Yangmin Director 50 3960 Note Beneficial Owner 29 June 2011 28 June 2013

tiHA --
Vice President 28 June 2010 28 June 2013

Tang Bing Director 46 28 June 2012 28 June 2013

Vice President 28 June 2010 28 June 2013

Luo Zhuping Director 60 11616 Note Beneficial Owner 28 June 2010 28 June 2013IA 7TAB
Board Secretary Company 28 June 2010 April 2012

Secretary

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu Independent non-executive 65 28 June 2010 28 June 2013

Director
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Number of listed

shares of Capacity in

the Company which the

held personal shares Effective date and expiry

Name Position Age interest shares were held date of appointment

PJi1A1

Wu Xiaogen Independent non-executive 47 28 June 2010 28 June 2013

Director

Ji Weidong Independent non-executive 56 28 June 2010 28 June 2013

Director _7
Shao Ruiqing Independent non-executive 56 28 June 2010 28 June 2013

Director

Yu Faming Chairman of the Supervisory 59 29 June 2011 28 June 2013

Committee

XiSheng Supervisor 50 28June2012 28June2013E7
Liu Jiashun Supervisor 56 3960 Note Beneficial Owner 28 June 2010 28 June 2013

Feng Jinxiong Supervisor 51 28 June 2010 28 June 2013

AB
Yanlaisheng Supervisor 59 28 June 2010 28 June 2013

Shu Mingjiang Vice President 45 13 December 2011 28 June 2013H-
H-B

Wu Yongliang Vice President 50 3696 Note Beneficial Owner 13 December 2011 28 June 2013H-
Chief Financial Officer 28 June 2010 28 June 2013

AB AB
Tian Liuwen Vice President 54 13 December 2011 28 June 2013H-

H-H AH
Wang Jian Board Secretary 40 April 2012 28 June 2013

Joint Company Secretary f7
Total 23232
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Note representing approximately 0.000035% of the Companys total issued shares as 2$ 1%
at 31 December 2012 ff10.000035%

Note representing approximately 0.0001% of the Companys total issued shares as .6 -l-
at3l December2012 ffjO.0001%

Note representing approximately 0.000033% of the Companys total issued shares as %3 .6

at 31 December 2012 t40.000033%

Shares Appreciation Rights HU
On November 2012 the Companys general meeting approved the

Shares Appreciation Rights Scheme of China Eastern Airlines Company 1H -t-Ij ll
Limited with an aim to provide medium to long term incentive to certain

Directors senior management key technical and managerial personnel of the

Company and promote the continuous development of the business of the

Group _W -H-R
As at 31 December 2012 the particulars of shares appreciation rights

granted to the Directors and senior management were as follows

The proportion of

Number of shares shares appreciation The proportion of

appreciation rights granted shares appreciation

rights granted to total issued rights granted

Ten thousand share capital of to total issued

Name Position shares the Company Shares

H1
Liu Shaoyong Chairman 100 0.0089% 0.0286%

MaXulun Vice Chairman President 100 0.0089% 0.0286%

Xu Zhao Director 86 0.0076% 0.0246%

Gu Jiadan Director 86 0.0076% 0.0246%

Li Yangmin Director Vice President 86 0.0076% 0.0246%

Tang Bing Director Vice President 86 0.0076% 0.0246%

Luo Zhuping Director 86 0.0076% 0.0246%

Shu Mingjiang Vice President 71 0.0063% 0.0203%

Wu Yongliang Vice President 71 0.0063% 0.0203%

JKg Chief Financial Officer

10 Tian Liuwen Vice President 71 0.0063% 0.0203%

11 Wang Jian Board secretary Joint Company 57 0.0051% 0.0163%

Secretary
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Brief biographical details in respect of each of the Directors Supervisors and 22
members of senior management of the Company are as follows

Mr Liu Shaoyong is currently the Chairman of the Company and president

and deputy party secretary of CEA Holding Mr Liu joined the civil aviation

industry in 1978 and was appointed as vice president of China General

Aviation Corporation deputy director of Shanxi Provincial Civil Aviation

Administration of the PRC general manager of the Shanxi Branch of the S1S1

Company and director general of Flight Standard Department of CMC
Liu served as President of the Company from December 2000 to October

2002 vice minister of the CAAC from October 2002 to August 2004

president of China Southern Air Holding Company from August 2004 to

December 2008 chairman of China Southern Airlines Co Ltd company

listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

from November 2004 to December 2008 In December 2008 Mr Liu was

appointed as president and deputy party secretary of CEA Holding and

became the Chairman of the Company since February 2009 Mr Liu is also Ij Ij

currently the board member of International Air Transport Association the

board member of Association for Relations Across the Taiwan Straits and

the vice chairman of the first session of the supervisory committee of Chinas

Listed Companies Association Mr Lru graduated from the China Civil Aviation

Flight College and obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration

EMBA degree from Tsinghua University Mr Liu holds the title of commanding

pilot

Mr Ma Xulun is currently the Vice Chairman President and Deputy Party

Secretary of the Company and party secretary of CEA Holding Mr Ma was

previously vice president of China Commodities Storing and Transportation IjfJ.J

Corporation deputy director general of the Finance Department of the CAAC

and vice president of Air China International Corporation Limited In 2002 after

the restructuring of civil aviation industry he was appointed as vice president I.I ftJ

of general affairs of Air China International Corporation Limited Later on Mr

Ma served as president and deputy party secretary of Air China International 1f
Corporation Limited company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and .fj

the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from September 2004 to January 2007 Mr 2S
Ma became party member of China National Aviation Holding Company

from December 2004 to December 2008 and deputy general manager of

China National Aviation Holding Company from January 2007 to December

2008 In December 2008 Mr Ma was appointed as President and Deputy

Party Secretary of the Company and deputy party secretary of CEA Holding

Since February 2009 Mr Ma has become Director of the Company Mr Ma

served as party secretary of CEA Holding and Vice Chairman of the Company

with effect from November 2011 Mr Ma is also currently the Deputy Director-

General of Association of Shanghai Listed Companies Mr Ma graduated

from Shanxi University of Finance and Economics and Huazhong University

of Science and Technology Mr Ma holds masters degree and is certified

accountant

Mr Xu Zhao is currently Director of the Company and the chief accountant

of CEA Holding Mr Xu served as engineer and accountant of Dongfeng Motor IjI
Group Company Limited manager of the finance department of Shanghai

Yanhua High Technology Limited Company and chief financial officer of _L
Shaanxi Heavy Duty Automobile Co Limited Since November 2006 Mr

Xu has served as the chief accountant of CEA Holding He was Supervisor iJ
of the Company from June 2007 to November 2011 Mr Xu was appointed

as an independent non-executive director of Yingde Gases Group Company

Limited company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with effect from -j-
September 2009 He has served as Director of the Company since June rl -lh1
2012 Mr Xu graduated from Chongqing University majoring in moulding and

The Chinese University of Hong Kong majoring in accounting and holds

masters degree Mr Xu is qualified as an engineer and an accountant and is

certified public accountant in the PRC
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Mr Gu Jiadan is currently Director of the Company and vice president and

party member of CEA Holding Mr Gu was the assistant to president and

the general manager and the party secretary of the commerce department

of Shanghai Airlines Co Ltd From May 2005 to

August2009 he was party member and vice president of Shanghai Pjrlines

Co Ltd. From August 2009 to January 2010 he was the acting president ffIJ
of Shanghai Airlines Co Ltd. From January 2010 to July 2011 he was vice

president and party member of CEA Holding and the party secretary of

Shanghai Airlines Since July 2011 Mr Gu has served as the vice president ZS
and party member of CEA Holding He was appointed Director of the

Company with effect from June 2012 Mr Gu Jiadan holds masters degree

and is senior economist

Mr Li Yangmin is currently Director Party Secretary and Vice President

of the Company and party member of CEA Holding Mr Li joined the

civil aviation industry in 1985 He was previously deputy general manager

of the aircraft maintenance base and the manager of air route department

of Northwest Company bMfi general manager of the

aircraft maintenance base of China Eastern Air Northwest Company and vice _l4E- f74E
president of China Eastern Air Northwest Company Since October 2005

he has also been Vice President of the Company He served as Safety

Director of the Company from July 2010 to December 2012 He has become

party member of CEA Holding since May 2011 He was appointed the

Party Secretary and Director of the Company with effect from June 2011

He was the chairman of China Cargo Airlines subsidiary of the Company

from February 2012 to January 2013 Mr Li graduated from Northwestern

Polytechnical University with masters degree He is qualified senior

engineer

Mr Tang Bing is currently Director Vice President of the Company and

party member of CEA Holding Mr Tang joined the civil aviation industry in

1993 He served as vice executive president general manager in China Office ff
of MTU Maintenance Zhuhai Co Ltd
office director of China Southern Airlines Holding Company and president of

Chongqing Airlines Company Limited From December ff
2007 to May 2009 he served as chief engineer anc general manager of the

Aircraft Engineering Department of China Southern Airlines Company Limited 2IY1

company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong

Stock Exchange From May 2009 to December 2009 he was appointed as

president of the Beijing Branch of the Company and was the president of

Shanghai Airlines from January 2010 to December 2011 He was appointed

as the chairman of Shanghai Airlines in January 2012 He served as Vice

President of the Company since February 2010 and was appointed

party member of CEA Holding in May 2011 and Director of the Company fi

in June 2012 Mr Tang graduated from Nanjing University of Aeronautics

and Astronautics majoring in electrical technology He obtained Master of

Business Administration MBA degree from the Administration Institute of Sun

Yat sen University and an EMBA degree from the School of Economics and

Management of Tsinghua University
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from December 1996 to April 2012 He was also the Head ofthe Board

Secretariat offhe Company from 1997 to 2008 He was appointed Director

TW flfl
t7 tWM4

tEf
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graduated from Anhul University majoring in Philosophy and Law He also

holds Master in Global Economics from Eastern China Normal University iIII
He participated in the training programme for senior managers of large

scale enterprises organised in the U.S by the State Economic and Trade

Commission and Morgan Stanley

Mr Sandy ICe-Yaw Liu is currently an Independent Non-executive Director

ofthe Company Mr Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu joined the civil aviation industry in tJLtuAS$M If

Taiwan in iggg He served in ZtftSI China Airlines in various

capacities including airport manager in Honolulu Airport marketing director

for the Americas general manager for Hawaii District regional director for jSfJ SJfJ
Europe director of corporate planning and director of marketing planning tfb9I

in its Corporate Office in Taiwan With China Airlines he also served as vice 1S3
president for marketing and sales and vice president for commerce and

president in the Corporate Office In addition Mr Uu served as director of

Taiwan Mandarin Airlines S2MM Taiwan Far Eastem ESkW
Air Transport Taiwan China Pacific Catering Service and ftf

Taiwan Taoyuan International Airport Service Company

as well as chairman of t2S Taiwan Air Cargo Terminal He

relocated to Hong Kong to act as chief operating officer for the Asia Region in

Expeditors International of Washington Inc global logistics company Mr

Liu graduated from Taiwan Shih Hsin University and attended advanced study

programmes at Stanford University in 990 and 1993

Mr Wu Xiaogen is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of the

Company Mr Wu previously served as assistant to the general manager

and deputy general manager of the securities department of

China Jingu International Trust Investment Company

Umited deputy general manager of the securities management department

and general manager of the institutional management department of rj Ift SiflI
China Technology International Trust Investment

Company and head ofthe auditteaching and research unit and deputy dean Wf
of the School of Accountancy of Central University of Finance and Economics

He was chief accountant of China First Heavy Industries from November

2004 to June 2010 He has been professional external director for central

enterprises since June 2010 and holds the title of researcher Mr Wu served

as an independent non-executive director of China Petroleum Chemical

Corporation company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange from May 2010 to May 2012 Mr Wu is also director

and member of the Ethics Committee of the Chinese Institute of Certified

Public Accountants an external director of China National Machinery Industry

Corporation and an external director of China Three Gorges Corporation Mr

Wu graduated from the Department of Economics and Management of the

Central University of Finance and Economics and also obtained Doctoral

Degree in Economics
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Mr Ji Weidong IS currently an Independent Non executive Director of the

Company Mr Ji was an associate professor and professor at the School of

Law of Kobe University Japan Since 2008 he has been the dean and chair

professor of Koguan Law School of Shanghai Jiao Tong University In addition

he is currently an honorary professor at Kobe University Japan Mr Ji

graduated from the Department of Law of Peking University Mr Ji completed lLL
his Master and Doctoral Degrees in Law at the Graduate School of Kyoto i-1
University Japan and obtained his doctoral degree from Kyoto University

Japan From September 1991 to July 1992 he was visiting scholar at

Stanford Law School

Mr Shao Ruiqing is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of the EJ
Company Mr Shao was deputy dean and dean of the School of Economics

and Management of Shanghai Maritime University He served as deputy dean II
at Shanghai Lixin University of Commerce since March 2004 and was also 1-tt

professor in accounting and mentor to doctoral students From June 2007 to

August 2011 Mr Shao served as an external supervisor of China Merchants

Bank Co Ltd company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the

Hong Kong Stock Exchange Mr Shao served as an independent non-

executive director of SAIC Motor Corporation Limited company listed on

the Shanghai Stock Exchange from June 2008 to May 2012 Mr Shao was

awarded the special allowance by the State Council of the PRC in 1995 He

is currently consultative committee member of the Ministry of Transport of

the PRC as an expert in finance and accounting Mr Shao graduated from

Shanghai Maritime University Shanghai University of Finance and Economics

and Tongji University with Bachelor Degree in Economics and Master and

Doctoral Degrees in Management Mr Shao has spent two and half years

studying and being senior visiting scholar in the U.K and Australia

Mr Vu Faming is currently the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

of the Company and party member and the head of party disciplinary 1jiifl
inspection group of CEA Holding Mr Yu served as deputy head of the Survey

and Research Department of the Policy Research Office of the Ministry of

Labour and Human Resources of the PRC head of the Integration Division ijft

of the Department of Policy and Regulation of the Ministry of Labour of the EI nj
PRC deputy head of the Labour Science Research Institute of the Ministry of ftS1
Labour of the PRC deputy head and head of the Labour Science Research

Institute of the Ministry of Labour Protection of the PRC and head of the

Training and Employment Department of the Ministry of Labour Protection

of the PRC From June 2008 to May 2011 he served as head of the

Employment Department of the Ministry of Human Resources and Social

Security of the PRC Since May 2011 he has been party member and head of

party disciplinary inspection group of CEA Holding Since June 2011 he has

served as the Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the Company Mr

Vu graduated from Shandong University majoring in philosophy He holds the

title of associate research fellow
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Mr Xi Sheng is currently Supervisor of the Company and chief auditor

of CEA Holding Mr Xi served as the deputy head of the foreign affairs

department II of the foreign funds utilization and application audit department i1 $ftiJ
and the head of the liaison and reception office of the foreign affairs

department of the National Audit Office of the PRC and the deputy head of

the PRC Audit Institute frHe was also the head of the fixed A$ --
assets investment audit department of the National Audit Office of the PRC -- g1
and the party secretary and special commissioner of the Harbin office of the ft-l-M
National Audit Office of the PRC He served as the head of the personnel and

education department of the National Audit Office of the PRO from January

2007 to September 2009 He was the head of the audit department of CEA

Holding from September 2009 to November 2012 Mr Xi has served as the

chief auditor of CEA Holding since September 2009 Mr Xi is also the council

member of China Institute of Internal Audit and member of International

Institute of Internal Auditors Mr Xi graduated from Jiangxi University of

Finance and Economics with undergraduate education

background He is senior auditor

Mr Liu JIashun is currently Supervisor of the Company Mr Liu was party

secretary deputy president and secretary of the disciplinary committee of

China Aviation Fuel Hainan Company as well as chairman of the board and

president of Hainan Nanyang Air Transport Co Ltd He was also the chief

director in charge of fuel supply engineering at Haikous Meilan Airport and

served as director of Meilan Airport Co Ltd and the vice chairman of the

board and president of Meiya Company From 1999 to

2007 he was deputy party secretary and subsequently the secretary of the

disciplinary committee of China Aviation Fuel East China Company and he

served as the general manager of Shanghai Pudong

Airport Fuel Co Ltd from 2006 to March 2009 Since October 2009 Mr Liu

has served as the party secretary of 4LJ China Aviation

Fuel Huadong Company He was appointed Supervisor of the Company in

2000 Mr Liu received post-graduate education and is qualified as senior

political work instructor

Mr Feng Jinxiong is currently Supervisor and General Manager of the

Audit Department of the Company and deputy general manager of the Audit filfjIf
Department of CEA Holding Mr Feng joined the civil aation industry in 1982 ijij ij

and served as Deputy Head and Head of the Planning Department of the 11-l
Company head of the Finance Department and deputy chief accountant of ffiJf
CEA Holding Manager of the Human Resources Department of the Company j11frI
vice president of CES Finance Holding Co LtcO

and Deputy General Manager of the Shanghai Security Department of the 4T2S
Company He also served as president of the China Eastern Airlines Wuhan

Co Ltd from 2007 to 2009 Since February 2009 he has been General

Manager of the Audit Department of the Company He has been Supervisor

of the Company since March 2009 Mr Feng graduated from the Civil Aviation

University of China and the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of

Social Sciences holding masters degree
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Mr Yan Taisheng is currently Supervisor and the Vice Chairman of the 1$ IIii
Labour Union of the Company Mr Yan joined the civil aviation industry in

1973 and served as Chief of the Board Secretariat of the General Office of the

Company general manager of Shanghai Civil Aviation Ij
Dong Da Industry Company and Deputy Head and Head of the General Office .ii ffI
of the Labour Union of the Company He has been the Vice Chairman of the

Labour Union of the Company since 2005 He served as Supervisor since

March 2009 Mr Yan graduated from East China Normal University

Mr Shu Mingjiang is currontly Vice President of the Company Mr Shu

joined the civil aviation industry in 1989 He served asvice president of general jjlkJi

affairs of TffIIFff Shanghai Eastern Flight Training Co

Ltd subsidiary of the Company Deputy Head of the Safety Monitoring

Division Vice Manager and subsequently Manager of the Safety Monitoring

Department of the Company Deputy General Manager of the Shanghai Flight iff f2j LT ij

Division of the Company and Vice President of the Yunnan Branch of the

Company From November 2006 to December 2009 he was the Chief Pilot fft Ii
and General Manager of the Operating Control Division of the Company From

December 2009 to November 2011 Mr Shu was President of the Beijing

Branch of the Company He has been Vice President of the Company

since December 2011 Mr Shu graduated from the Flight College of Civil

Aviation Flight University of China majoring in aviation flying and obtained

Master in Flight Safety Management jointly held by Civil Aviation University

of China ENAC France and ENSICA France and an Executive Master of

Business Administration EMBA degree from School of Management of Fudan

University

Mr Wu Yongliang is currently Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

of the Company Mr Wu joined the civil aviation industry in 1984 and served

as Deputy Head and subsequently Head of the Finance Department of the

Company Head of Planning and Finance Department of the Company and

head of the Finance Department of CEA Holding From 2001 to March 2009

he served as deputy chief accountant and head of the Finance Department Ijfff

of CEA Holding From April 2009 onwards he has served as Chief Financial

Officer of the Company He has been Vice President of the Company

since December 2011 Mr Wu graduated from the Faculty of Economic

Management of Civil Aviation University of China majoring in planning and

finance He also graduated from Fudan University majoring in business

administration MBA Mr Wu was awarded the postgraduate qualification and

is certified accountant

Mr Tian Liuwen is currently Vice President of the Company and president ff

of Shanghai Airlines Mr Tian served as manager of the Beijing Sales 1f
Department under the Marketing and Sales Division of China General Aviation iii

Corporation He was also the Head of the General Manager Office and

Chairman of the Labour Union and Deputy General Manager of the Shanxi

Branch of the Company From June 2002 to January 2008 he was the Vice

President and subsequently President of the Hebei Branch of the Company

From April 2005 to January 2008 he was President of the Beijing Base of the -j-
Company He served as general manager of China Eastern Airlines Jiangsu

Co Ltd subsidiary of the Company since January 2008 Since December

2011 he has been Vice President of the Company and president of Shanghai

Airlines He obtained an EMBA degree from Nanjing University and is qualified

as senior economist

46



ANNUAL REPORT 2012

REPORT OF DREGTORS 051

Mr Wang Jian is currently the Board Secretary Joint Company Secretary

and the Head of the Board secretariat of the Company Mr Wang joined the

Company in 1995 and served as Deputy Head of the Companys office and

Deputy General Manager of the Shanghai Business Office of the Company

From September 2006 to May 2009 he was the deputy general manager in

the Shanghai Base of China Southern Airlines Company Umited company

listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

Since May 2009 he has served as the Head of the Board secretariat of the $-l 02I
Company He was representative of the Companys Securities affairs from

May 2009 to April 2012 He was appointed as the Board Secretary and Joint

Company Secretary of the Company in April 2012 Mr Wang graduated from tEMBAffr
Shanghai Jiao Tong University and has an MBA postgraduate degree from

East China University of Science and Technology and an EMBA degree from

Tsinghua University as well as qualification certificate for board secretaries of

listed companies issued by the Shanghai Stock Exchange

Mr Ngai Wai Fung is currently Joint Company Secretary of the Company

Mr Ngai is fellow and vice president of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered ij
Secretaries and fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and

Administrators in the United Kingdom Mr Ngai is currently director and

chief executive officer of SW Corporate Services Group Limited Mr Ngai has

become an adjunct professor of the Faculty of Law of Hong Kong Shue Yan .l Ii IIl

University in September 2012 He was appointed as non-official member of

the Working Group on Professional Services of the Economic Development II
Commission by the chief executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative

Region and also committee member of Qualification and Examination

Board by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accounts in January LFfi
2013 He used to serve as joint company secretary in several companies and .t 2I2
has rich experience in being company secretary as well as in enterprise

management legal matters finance and corporate governance He is also

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and

fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United

Kingdom In April 2012 Mr Ngai was appointed as the Joint Company

Secretary of the Company Mr Ngai has Doctorate in Finance from the

Shanghai University of Finance and Economics Master in Corporate Finance

from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University an MBA from Andrews University

in the United States and Bachelors degree Honours in Law from the

University of Wolverhampton in the United Kingdom

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has issued confirmation in

respect of the factors set out in the Usting Rules concerning his independence

pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules The Company considers all of the

independent non-executive Directors to be independent
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IX

CHANGES IN THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD i$A$WIbi
AND MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Appointment

Name Date of appointment Approval Organization Position

Xu Zhao 28 June 2012 2011 annual general meeting Director

fl

Cu Jiadan 28 June 2012 2011 annual general meeting Director

Tang Bing 28 June 2012 2011 annual general meeting Director

nWntC -I-AC fl

Xi Sheng 28 June 2012 2011 annual general meeting Supervisor

Wang Jian April2012 13th meeting of the sixth session of Board Secretary Joint Company Secretary

the Board Authorised Representative in Hong Kong

M$flisfl flASifl

Ngai Wai Fung April 2012 13th meeting of the sixth session of Joint Company Secretary

theBoard

AMfl13Afl

Resignation

ME

Name Date of resignation Position

Luo Zhuping April 2012 Board Secretary Company Secretary

Authorised Representative in Hong Kong

flfl
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CHANGE OF PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS OR j13.51B 11iI$Q
SUPERVISORS UNDER RULE 13.51B1 OF THE
LISTING RULES

Mr Li Yangmin Director was appointed as an executive director of
Shanghai Eastern Airlines Logistics Co Ltd

subsidiary of the Company with effect from December 2012 and ceased to

act as the chairman of China Cargo Airlines subsidiary of the Company with ff3

effect from January 2013

hft4
Mr Tang Bing Director was appointed as the chairman of Shanghai

Airlines subsidiary of the Company with effect from January 2012 and the

chairman of Jetstar Hong Kong with effect from October 2012

Mr Wu Xiaogen an independent non-executive Director ceased to act

as an independent non-executive director of China Petroleum Chemical

Corporation company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange with effect from May 2012

Mr Shao Ruiqing an independent non-executive Director ceased to act as 7f

an independent non-executive director of SAIC Motor Corporation Umited

company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with effect from May 2012 Mi-
SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS CHIEF

EXECUTIVE SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAG EM ENT

Save as disclosed above as at 31 December 2012 none of the Directors

chief executive Supervisors or members of senior management of the LL_J 74Yff

Company and their respective associates had any other interest or short

position in the shares underlying shares and/or debentures as the case

may be of the Company and/or any of its associated corporations within 11XV l3
the meaning of Part XV of the SF0 which was required to be notified to the

Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions

of Divisions and of Part XV of the SF0 and as recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SF0 2ff$
including any interest or short position which any of such Directors chief

executive Supervisors or members of senior management of the Company fri

and their respective associates were taken or deemed to have under such

provisions of the SF0 or which was otherwise required to be notified to the

Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers the Model Code as

set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules which shall be deemed to apply to

the Supervisors to the same extent as it applied to the Directors

In 2012 and as at 31 December 2012 none of the Directors chief executive

Supervisors members of senior management of the Company and/or any of JE

their spouses or children under the age of eighteen were granted any right

and the Company had not made any arrangement enabling any of them to

subscribe for equity securities or debt securities of the Company

As at the date of this report Mr Liu Shaoyong the Chairman of the Company 21E fri

Mr Xu Zhao and Mr Gu Jiadan Directors Mr Vu Faming the chairman of

the Supervisory Committee of the Company and Mr Xi Sheng Supervisor tti iff 1f
are employees of CEA Holding which is company having an interest in the

Companys shares required to be disclosed to the Company and the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions and of Part XV of

the SF0
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service contract

with the Company which is not terminable by the Company within one year NI
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors or Supervisors had material interest directly or

indirectly in any contract of significance to which the Company or any of its

subsidiaries was party to during the Reporting Period the term contract of

significance having the meaning ascribed thereto in paragraph 15 of Appendix

16 to the Listing Rules

REMUNERATION

Directors and Supeivisors

Details of the remuneration of Directors and Supervisors are set out in note

to the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS

Shares Appreciation Rights Scheme

Details of the grant of the shares appreciation rights of the Company are set 2lSS

out in the section headed Report of DirectorsH Shares Appreciation Rights

of this report

Employees MI

As at 31 December 2012 the Group had 66207 employees majority of

whom worked in the PRC The wages of the Groups employees generally 66207A

consisted of basic salary and performance-based bonus

MEDICAL INSURANCE

The majority of the Groups PRC employees participate in the medical

insurance schemes organised by the municipal governments under which jI
the Group and its employees are required to contribute to the schemes 2%Ijo
approximately 12% and 2% respectively of the employees basic salaries For

those employees who participate in these schemes the Group has rio other RLhI 3.91 t1E
obligation for the payment of medical expense beyond such contributions rlIj
For the year ended 31 December 2012 the Groups medical insurance

contributions charged to the income statement amounted to RM8391 million

2011 RMB374 million

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and the Group

as at 31 December 2012 are set out in note 34 to the financial statements

prepared in accordance with IFRS
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INTEREST CAPITALIZED

Interest capitalized by the Group as calculated in accordance with IFRS for the H-
year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB297 million

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property plant and equipment of the Company and the Group

during the year are set out in note 19 to the financial statements prepared in

accordance with IFAS

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group for the year 61 E-1-

ended 31 December 2012 and
profit appropriation by the Company are set

out in note 43 to the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS

STATUTORY COMMON WELFARE FUND

Details in relation to the statutory common welfare fund such as the nature

and application of and movements in the fund and the basis of its calculation

including the percentage used for calculating the amounts are set out in note $611

43 to the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS

DONATIONS

During the year the Group made donations for charitable purposes amounting 50000ft

to approximately RMB1 50000

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SCHEME jj

Details of the Companys employee retirement scheme and post retirement $261II1i J1
benefits are set out in note 38 to the financial statements prepared in

accordance with IFRS

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In 2012 purchases by the Company from the largest and five largest

suppliers accounted for 13.82% and 33.39% respectively of the total annual lJ4 U$tJ13.82%l133.39%

purchases of the Company Total income from sales to the Companys five

largest customers amounted to approximately RMB8173 million accounting 61$AJ9.6%
for 9.6% of the Companys total revenue

None of the Directors Supervisors or any of their respective associates nor

any Shareholders who to the knowledge of the Directors hold 5% or more of

the Companys share capital has any interest in any of the above mentioned

suppliers and customers
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On November2011 in order to be more focused on the core aviation

business and the related business of the Company the Company

entered into an equity transfer agreement with

Shanghai Eastern Airlines Investment Co Ltd SEA Investment

pursuant to which the Company agreed to transfer 5% of the equity

interest in CEA Real Estate Investment Co
Ltd CEA Real Estate Investment held by the Company to SEA

Investment SEA Investment agreed to pay sum of RMB100663590

in cash to the Company subject to modification as the consideration

for this transaction SEA Investment which is wholly-owned subsidiary lti
of CEA Holding substantial shareholder of the Company is

connected person of the Company and thus the transaction constitutes .l

connected transaction of the Company The transaction completed

in 2012 For additional details please refer to the announcement of the

Company issued in Hong Kong dated November2011

On 22 August 2012 in order to manage and conduct internal integration

of the Group the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement

with CEA Holding pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire

20% equity interests in China United Airlines from CEA Holding in

consideration of RMB83951 873.97 the China United Airlines

Acquisition As CEA Holding is controlling shareholder of the

Company the China United Airlines Acquisition constituted connected 14Z
transaction of the Company The China United Airlines Acquisition has i2
completed and China United Airlines is now wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Company For details please refer to the announcement of the

Company issued in Hong Kong dated 22 August 2012

On 11 September 2012 CEA Holding and its wholly owned subsidiary iiJE
CES Finance Holding Co Ltd CES

Finance entered into an shares subscription agreement the

Shares Subscription Agreement with the Company Pursuant

to the Shares Subscription Agreement CEA Holding will at

the subscription price of RMB3.28 per share subscribe in cash Af792277200.56
for 241547927 new shares with total subscription price of

RMB792277200.56 and bCES Finance will at the subscription price Af
of RMB3.28 per share subscribe in cash for 457317073 new shares

with total subscription price of RMB1 499999999.44 the Share

Subscription

Simultaneously with the entering into of the Shares Subscription

Agreement CES Global wholly-owned subsidiary of CEA Holding

entered into an shares subscription agreement the Shares ti
Subscription Agreement with the Company Pursuant to the fi
Shares Subscription Agreement CES Global will at the subscription 621 366800t
price of HK$2.32 per share subscribe in cash for 698865000 new

shares with total subscription price of HK$1621366800 the

Share Subscription

As CEA Holding holds approximately 59 94% of the then issued share li kJ

capital of the Company and CES Finance and CES Global are wholly 59.94%

owned subsidiaries of CEA Holding each of the Shares Subscription

Agreement entered into between the Company and ii CEA Holding

and CES Finance and the Shares Subscription Agreement entered

Into between the Company and ii CES Global constitutes

connected transaction of the Company The purpose of the Share

Subscription and the Share Subscription is to improve the financial

position of the Company and in the long term enhance the Companys

competitiveness and help to improve its operational position
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The Share Subscription and the Share Subscription have been

approved bythe Shareholderson November 2012 but still are subject

to approval from the relevant governmental and regulatory authorities 215 SI

For details please refer to the announcements of the Company issued

in Hong Kong dated 11 September 20129 November2012 February 1-iH
2013 25 February 2013 and 10 April 2013 and the circular of the .fL3i

Company dated 24 September 2012 hj
On December 2012 the Company entered into an equity transfer

agreement with D8ZSI Shanghai Aviation Import

Export Co Ltd SAlE non-wholly-owned subsidiary of CEA nJUt
Holding pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire the 20693900SIUi
remaining 13.98% equity interests in

Shanghai Airlines Tours International Group Co Ltd Shanghai

Tours from SAlE in consideration of RMB2O693900 the Shanghai

Tours Acquisition As SAlE is an indirect non wholly owned subsidiary SI jJJ
of CEA Holding the Shanghai Tours Acquisition constituted connected

transaction of the Company The main purpose of the Shanghai Tours

Acquisition is to resolve the issue of intra group competition between the

Company and CEA Holding in the areas of tourism operation caused by

the absorption of the former Shanghai Airlines Co Ltd _E-1-L
55S The Shanghai Tours Acquisition has completed and Shanghai

Tours is now wholly owned subsidiary of the Company For details

please refer to the announcement of the Company issued in Hong Kong

dated December 2012

On December 2012 the Company entered into an equity transfer ijTY
agreement with China Ocean Shipping

Group Company COSCO Group pursuant to which the Company

agreed to acquire 29.7% equity interests in Eastern Logistics from

COSCO Group in consideration of RMB562266000 the Eastern

Logistics Acquisition COSCO Group was substantial shareholder 215Z S$SI

of Eastern Logistics which in turn was non wholly owned subsidiary ift

of the Company COSCO Group is thus connected person of the

Company Accordingly Eastern Logistics Acquisition constituted

connected transaction of the Company The main purpose of the Eastern 1tJ ii 5S
Logistics Acquisition is to integrate the freight transportation business of FI5t

the Group The Eastern Logistics Acquisition has completed and Eastern

Logistics is now wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company For details

please refer to the announcement of the Company issued in Hong Kong

dated December 2012

On 27 December 2012 Shanghai Tours wholly-owned subsidiary -tH
of the Company entered into an equity transfer agreement with

Eastern Air Tourism Investment Group Co
Ltd Eastern Tourism and SIFSLSI Shanghai

Dongmei Aviation Travel Co Ltd Shanghai Dongmei pursuant kSI 33004007c IMhS

to which Shanghai Tours agreed to acquire the entire equity interests

in Xian Dongmei Aviation Travel Co 1Jti
Ltd Xian Dongmei from Eastern Tourism and Shanghai Dongmei

in consideration of RMB3300400 in total the Xian Dongmei

Acquisition
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On 27 December 2012 Shanghai Tours entered into an equity transfer

agreement with Eastern Tourism and Shanghai Dongmei pursuant to

which Shanghai Tours agreed to acquire the entire equity interests of oo0I
Kunming Dongmei Aviation Travel Co Ltd

Kunming Dongmei from Eastern Tourism and Shanghai Dongmei

in consideration of RMB1O551 000 in total the Kunming Dongmei

Acquisition

On 10 January 2013 Shanghai Tours entered into an equity transfer

agreement with Eastern Tourism pursuant to which Shanghai Tours

agreed to acquire the entire equity interests of hJT 11876200

Shanghai Eastern Air International Travel Service Co
Ltd Eastern Travel from Eastern Tourism in consideration of

RMB1 1876200 in total the Eastern Travel Acquisition

Eastern Tourism is wholly-owned subsidiary of CEA Holding which in

turn is controlling shareholder of the Company Eastern Tourism is thus 1tj Ij

connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules Shanghai 14
Dongmei is interested as to 72.84% by and Is thus an associate of CEA 72.84% itJ

Holding Shanghai Dongmei is thus connected person of the Company

under the Listing Rules

Therefore each of the Xian Dongmei Acquisition the Kunming Dongmei li
Acquisition and the Eastern Travel Acquisition constitutes connected

transaction of the Company The main purpose of the Xian Dorigmei tJfiTh
Acquisition the Kunming Dongmei Acquisition and the Eastern Travel

Acquisition is to reorganise and integrate the tourism business of the i2-
Group For details please refer to the announcements of the Company

issued in Hong Kong dated 10 January 2013

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The estimated transaction caps for the continuing connected transactions

which were considered and approved by the Board and at the general

meetings of the Company and their actual amounts incurred up to 31

December 2012 are set out as follows

The approved

Incurred up to 2012 estimated

31 December 2012 transaction caps

Category

RMBOOO RMBOOO

AT5T
Financial services balance of deposit 1451526 4000000

Catering services 783384 980000

Import and export agency services 78756 98300

Production and maintenance services 121854 123980

Property leasing 66763 95760

Advertising agency services 38846 46000

Sales agency services agency fee 19836 96000

Media resources operation services 36030 50000
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On 16 January 2013 the Company entered into supplemental agreement 7\R
with Eastern Air Group Finance Co Ltd

Eastern Finance to further regulate the balances of the Groups deposits

and loans with the Eastern Finance and its subsidiaries on pre condition Ij2t5
that the agreed maximum daily balance of each of the deposits and the loans 17lS1
under the financial services agreement dated 15 October 2010 remains

unchanged For details please refer to the announcement of the Company

issued in Hong Kong dated 16 January 2013

For further details regarding the above continuing connected transactions

please refer to the Companys 2010 annual report

The Companys independent non executive Directors have reviewed such

continuing connected transactions during the year 2012 and confirmed that

the transactions have been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and

usual course of its business

the transactions have been entered into either on normal commercial

terms or ii where there are not sufficient comparable transactions

to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms on terms no

less favourable to the Company than terms available to or from as

appropriate independent third parties and

the transactions have been entered into in accordance with the relevant

agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in

the interests of the Shareholders as whole

For the purpose of Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules the auditors of the Jj11Ij14A.385

Company have carried out procedures on the above connected transactions

disclosed herein for the year ended 31 December 2012 in accordance with

the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance

Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial _--Lft
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditors Letter

on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing

Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and

reported that in respect of the above connected transactions

nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the

disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been approved

by the Board

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the

Group nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that

the transactions were not in all material respects in accordance with

the pricing policies of the Company

nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that

the transactions were not entered into in all material respects in

accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions
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with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing

connected transactions as set out in the appendix to this letter nothing

has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the disclosed

continuing connected transactions have exceeded the maximum

aggregate annual value disclosed in the previous announcement dated

15 October 2010 made by the Company in respect of each of the

disclosed continuing connected transactions

In respect of each related party transaction disclosed in note 47 to the

thancial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS the Company confirms 47ffJ

that it has complied with the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules if

applicable

Save as disclosed above the related party transactions set out in note 47 to

the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS do not constitute 447 l1TI

connected transactions under the Listing Rules

STAFF HOUSING BENEFITS

Details of the Groups staff housing benefits are set out in note 39 to the

financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS

MATERIAL LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2012 the Company was not involved in any litigation -t-

arbitration or claim of material importance

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

On 23 March 2012 the Company entered into binding memorandum

of understanding with Jetstar Airways Pty Limited wholly-owned

subsidiary of Qantas for the establishment of low-cost airline in

Hong Kong On 24 August 2012 Eastern Air Overseas Hong Kong M61
Corporation Limited Eastern Air Overseas wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company entered into shareholders agreement 6lJetstar International Group

with Jetstar International Group Holdings Co Limited Jetstar Holdings Co
International wholly-owned subsidiary of Qantas pursuant to which 161

Eastern Air Overseas and Jetstar International agreed to establish 61

Hong Kong-based Jetstar-branded low cost carrier For details please 61Ij
refer to the announcements of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated LtlEj\J1 PJ1
23 March 2012 and 24 August 2012

On 27 April 2012 the Company entered into purchase agreement ELH--hH
with Boeing Company in Shanghai China regarding the purchase of

twenty Boeing B777-300ER aircraft On the same date the Company 2061B777-300ER 151

entered into disposal agreement with Boeing Company regarding the

disposal of five Airbus A340-600 aircraft For details please see the A340-60051
announcements of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated 27 April .l .-L
2012 and 28 June 2012 and the circular of the Company dated 14 May AHJJAH
2012
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On 27 April 2012 the resolution on the Companys issuance of super MEL_--FEl
short term commercial paper was considered and approved by the 4YLSI

Board The Company intended to issue within the PRO the super short- 2j ii

term commercial paper with an aggregate principal amount of not more 00Et T270
than RMBIO billion and for term of not more than 270 days in multiple f\
tranches on rolling basis The proposal was considered and approved 2l 51 ihi
at the general meeting of the Company held on 28 June 2012 The

Company completed the issuance of the 2012 first tranche of the super

short-term commercial paper on 13 September 2012 The issuance Tj4.1%
amount of such commercial paper was RMB4 billion with maturity

of 270 days whereas the nominal value was RMB100 per unit and the

issuance interest rate was 4.1% The proceeds from the first tranche of 51Ij fl ----4

the super short-term commercial paper will be principally used to repay -AHlI__ii
bank loans improve its financing structure and replenish short-term

operational working capital For details please see the announcements

of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated 27 April 2012 28 June

2012 and 13 September2012

On 12 June 2012 the Board considered and approved resolutions 7_H
concerning the issuance of corporate bonds The Company intended to 51 iJ
issue within the PRC the corporate bonds with principal amount of not 2I5 885t
more than RMB8.8 billion including RMB8.8 billion and for term of not ii1 ftJ 51

more than 10 years in one tranche or multiple tranches The proposal

was considered and approved at the Shareholders meeting of the lI
Company held on 28 June 2012 On 13 December 2012 the Company

received the Approval for the Non-public Issuance of Corporate Bonds 2ft5
by China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited

issued by the CSRC The first tranche of the 4815

corporate bonds are 10-year fixed interest rate bonds with an amount of ij5o5%
RMB4.8 billion issue price of RMB100 each and coupon interest rate

of 5.05% the issuance of which completed on 20 March 2013 After

deducting issuance expenses the proceeds from the first tranche of the .i

corporate bonds will be used to purchase aircraft For details please

refer to the announcements of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated -J-A lEl flL
12 June 2012 28 June 2012 14 December 2012 13 March 2013 18

March 2013 and 20 March 2013

On 25 August 2012 the Shares Appreciation Rights Scheme of

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited Draft and Initial Grant

Scheme of the Shares Appreciation Rights of China Eastern Airlines

Corporation Limited Draft were considered and approved by the _rlE.l iL
Board On 19 October 2012 the revised Initial Grant Scheme of the

Shares Appreciation Rights of China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited II 2jSj

Draft the Initial Grant Scheme was considered and approved

by the Board The Company granted the shares appreciation rights

pursuant to the initial Grant Scheme on December 2012 For details \_-l-AH .AH
please see the announcements of the Company issued in Hong Kong _.iiH .EHt
dated 28 August 2012 19 October 20129 November2012 30

November 2012 and December 2012 and the circular of the Company

dated 20 October 2012
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On 30 August 2012 the Board considered and approved the resolution W\.H
of proposed amendments to the Articles of Association in relation to 31 Ij

profit
distribution The resolution was considered and approved at the

Shareholders meeting on November 2012 For details please refer

to the announcements of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated 30 _J 1H fl32

August 2012 and November 2012 and the circular of the Company Th
dated 24 September 2012

On 23 November 2012 the Company entered into purchase

agreement with Airbus SAS in Shanghai China regarding the purchase

of sixty Airbus A320 series aircraft On the same date the Company 13

entered into disposal agreement with Airbus SAS regarding the

disposal of eight CRJ aircraft and ten EMB aircraft For details please CRJt10EMBI
see the announcement of the Company issued in Hong Kong dated 23 9Ijfl fl
November 2012 and the circular of the Company dated 26 November -1-L7
2012

INDEPENDENT NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
OPINION

Independent non-executive Directors have performed auditing work and 3111

issued an independent opinion on the external guarantees the Company I133T71
has provided as required by the relevant requirements of the CSRC The

Company has strictly observed the relevant laws and regulations as well as its 1EL 2t

Articles of Association while it has also imposed strict control on the external

guarantees provided As at 31 December 2012 none of the Company and its A-1
subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements has provided any

guarantee to the Companys controlling shareholder and other related parties

other non-corporate bodies and individuals

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers Certified Public Accountants and

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian CPAs Limited Company registered J113 13113 3j2j
accountants in the PRC were the Companys international and domestic

auditors in 2012 respectively

On behalf of the Board

LiuShaoyong

Chairman

Shanghai the PRC 13

26March2Ol3 13l /\H
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has established formal and appropriate corporate governance 74E

structure The Company has also placed emphasis on the corporate

governance principle of having transparency accountability and safeguarding Ij

the interests of all Shareholders

The Board believes that sound corporate governance is essential to the

development of the Company operations The Board regularly reviews

our corporate governance practices to ensure that the Company operates

in accordance with the laws regulations and requirements of the listing

jurisdictions and that the Company continuously implements corporate

governance of high efficiency

The Companys corporate governance practices include but are not limited to

the following

Articles of Association rules of meeting of general meetings rules of meeting ff1 ff
of the Board rules of meeting of the Supervisory Committee working Ij
regulations of independent directors management regulations of connected JU
transactions and articles of association of the audit and risk management Ifff ff1

committee articles of association of the planning and development ffJ ffiIglj
committee detailed working rules for the Nominations and Remuneration

Committee detailed working rules for the aviation safety and environment 1$I1

committee working regulations of presidents management regulations of

investor relationship detailed implementation rules for the management of

investor relationship detailed implementation rules for connected transactions

regulations on external guarantee and the interim administrative regulations

concerning hedging businesses

Forthe yearended 31 December2012 and as atthe date of publication ofthis

annual report the Board has reviewed the relevant provisions and corporate

governance practices under the codes of corporate governance adopted by fl ff1

the Company and took the view that the Companys corporate governance ft 22 ffj fl 1ff
practices during the year ended 31 December 2012 met the requirements

under the code provisions in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices

for the period from January 2012 to 31 March 2012 and Corporate

Governance Code for the period from April 2012 to 31 December 2012 -j-
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules the Code In certain aspects

the code of corporate governance adopted by the Company is more stringent

than the provisions set out in the Code The following sets out the major ffji

aspects which are more stringent than the Code

Major aspects which are more stringent than provisions set out in the Code

all members of the audit and risk management committee are

independent non-executive Directors

13 meetings of the Board were held during the financial year of 2012

The Board is responsible for the leading and control of the Company itIfff
The Directors are jointly responsible for the affairs of the Company by

directing and supervising the affairs of the Company

59



CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2012 the Board consists of eleven Directors including

four independent non-executive Directors At the Companys 2011 annual ff
general meeting held on 28 June 2012 the Shareholders approved the 2Y2SIIjt

appointment of Mr Xu Zhao Mr Gu Jiadan and Mr Tang Bing as Directors

of the sixth session of the Board All Directors shall retire in the third annual

general meeting following their appointment but are eligible for re election LLf tI

Names personal particulars and conditions of appointment of the Directors

are set out in page 38 of this report

Independent non-executive Directors shall possess specialised knowledge 1t1

and experience They shall be able to play their roles of supervising and

balancing to the fullest extent to protect the interests of Shareholders and

the Company as whole The Board considers that they shall be able to Ij313IJ
exercise independent judgment effectively which complies with guidelines EfliIj3.13I
on assessment of independence pursuant to Rule 13 of the Listing Rules

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules the Company has received the

annual confirmation letters from each of the independent non-executive

Directors on their independence All Directors including independent

non-executive Directors are appointed for term of years The formal

appointment letters and the Articles of Association have set out the terms and

conditions of their appointment Other than working relationships Directors

Supervisors and members of senior management of the Company do not

have any financial business or family connection with one another

POWERS OF THE BOARD

On periodic basis the Board reviews the relevant performance against

proposed budgets and business objectives of each operating unit It also

exercises number of powers retained by the Board including the following

responsibility for convening general meetings and reporting to

Shareholders on its work in such meeting

implementing resolutions passed in general meetings

deciding on the operating plan and investment proposals of the

Company

formulating the annual preliminary and final budget proposals Ij2tszff

formulating the Companys profit distribution proposal and the proposal

to offset losses

formulating the Companys proposals to increase or reduce the

registered capital and proposals to issue debt securities

drawing up proposals for the Companys merger demerger and

dissolution

deciding on the Companys internal management structure

employing or dismissing the Companys President and Board Secretary

appointment or dismissal of the Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer of the Company on the nomination of the President and the

determination of their remuneration
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formulating the basic management systems of the Company Ji2Iffl

formulating proposals to amend the Articles of Association

discharging any other powers and functions granted in general meeting

The Board and the relevant specialized committees are also responsible for

the completeness of financial information and are responsible for maintaining

an effective internal control system and for risk management of the Group

as well as preparing the financial statements of the Company Setting the

business objectives and overseeing the
daily operations of the Company are

the responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer The Articles of Association

specify the duties and authorities of the Board and management The Board

periodically reviews the duties and functions of the Chief Executive Officer

and the powers delegated to him to ensure that such arrangements are

appropriate In order to ensure the balance of powers and authorization I1
the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer have been clearly

defined The Chairman of the Company is Mr Liu Shaoyong and the

Chief Executive Officer is Mr Ma Xulun Director and the President of the

Company There are also other senior officers who are responsible for the

daily management of the Company within their scope of duties

The Board continued to made strenuous efforts to establish and improve

the Companys corporate governance policies apart from the formulation of RI
corporate governance policies such as Rules of Meeting of General Meetings $Ij
Rules of Meeting of the Board Working Regulations of Presidents and

Working Regulations of Independent Directors the Company also drew up $ijj
the Information Disclosure Management System Management Regulations of ijj
Connected Transactions and Management Regulations of Extemal Guarantees

for specific operations

During the Reporting Period in order to strengthen the work related to

registration and management of insiders of the Company the Board BIf
considered and approved the Registration and Management Regulation A2VJ
of Insiders in January 2012 On 30 August 2012 pursuant to the new

requirements in respect of strengthening the risk management of financial TTi -ftft
derivative businesses of the Company the Board considered and amended

the Risk Management Manual of Derivative Business

flft in timely manner In addition with view to enhance the basic

management of the Company and strengthen system building the Company

streamlined the relevant constitutional documents and policies considered

and approved by the Board and amended and supplemented certain policies

which are incompatible with the Companys development requirement based .IEI i\ It
on the new changes of regulatory requirements and the actual conditions of -j-ftB
the production and operation of the Company and repealed the Rules on

Operating Procedures for Aircraft Purchase and Leasing

ff Provisional Regulations on Approval Process of Investment

Decisions and Disposals of Asset IJIi
and China Eastern Administrative Rules on External Investment MI5

28 October 2005 edition Based on the Companys need

to issue debt securities the Board considered and approved the Management

Regulation of the Information Disclosure in the Interbank Bond Market on

30 October 2012 Meanwhile in order to strengthen the Companys risk

management of specific connected transaction the Board considered and

approved the Risk Control Regulation of the Connected Transaction with

Eastern Air Group Finance Co Ltd
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GENERAL MEETINGS

The procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general

meeting and to send enquiries to the Board and the procedure for proposing

resolutions at general meetings are as follows

According to the relevant requirements of the Articles of Association and rules 1ttZ
of meeting of general meetings of the Company Shareholders may convene

general meeting on their own the major rules of which are as follows

Shareholders either individually or jointly holding over 10% of the

Companys shares may request the Board to convene an extraordinary

general meeting Such request shall be made to the Board in writing The

Board shall in accordance with the requirement of laws administrative .Ijt10H ii1bI

regulations and the Articles of Association make response in writing

on whether or not it agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting

within 10 days upon receipt of such request

If the Board refuses to convene the extraordinary general meeting or

fails to make response within 10 days upon receipt of such request .10H

Shareholders either individually or jointly holding over 10% of the

Companys shares may propose to convene an extraordinary general

meeting to the Supervisory Committee Such proposal shall be made to

the Supervisory Committee in writing

If the Supervisory Committee agrees to convene the extraordinary

general meeting notice convening the general meeting shall be

issued within days upon receipt of such request Should there be any

amendments to the original proposal in the notice the consent of the

relevant Shareholders shall be obtained

If the Supervisory Committee fails to give the notice of the general

meeting within the specified time limit it shall be deemed to have

failed to convene or preside over the general meeting in which case

Shareholders either individually or jointly holding over 10% of the

Companys shares for more than 90 consecutive days shall have the

right to convene and preside over the meeting by themselves

Pursuant to the relevant requirements of the Articles of Association and rules 4ttI4L

of meeting of general meetings of the Company Shareholders have the right

to inspect or make copies of the Articles of Association minutes of general

meetings resolutions of Board meetings resolutions of meetings of the

Supervisory Committee and financial or accounting reports Shareholders may 1M1ttj I4-2

request to inspect the accounting books of the Company In such case such FIj

request shall be made to the Board secretariat of the Company in writing and

state its purposes If the Company on reasonable grounds considers that

the Shareholders are inspecting the accounting books for improper purposes Iii

and may result in damage to the Companys legal interests the Company

may refuse the inspection and make written response to the Shareholders

stating its reasons within 15 days upon delivery of the written request by the

Shareholders If the Company refuses the inspection Shareholders may make

proposal to the Peoples Court to request the Company to provide inspection

of the accounting books of the Company
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Pursuant to the relevant requirements of the Artioles of Association and rules S.L ptt
of meoting of general meetings of the Company the procedures for the flE
Shareholders to propose resolutions at the general meeting are as follows

Shareholders either individually or jointly holding over 3% of the

issuod shares of the Company carrying the right to vote may propose

extraordinary resolutions and submit the same in writing to the convener

prior to the holding of the general meeting However subject to the

requirement of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited the Company shall issue

supplemental circular of the new extraordinary resolutions and the

relevant materials to the Shareholders at least 14 days before the date BUP Sf ft
of holding the general meeting therefore the time for the proposing

Shareholders to propose new extraordinary resolutions shall not be

later than such time limit for issuing the supplemental circular to the

Shareholders and shall consider and provide the Company reasonable

time to prepare and despatch the supplemental circular

The aforesaid proposed resolutions shall be reviewed by the Board and

shall be included in the agenda of such meeting if the matters fall within fl 1J it
the scope of terms of reference of the general meeting The convener

shall announce the content of the extraordinary resolutions by issuing

supplemental notice of the general meeting upon receipt of the proposed

resolutions as soon as possible If the Board considers that the content

of the proposed resolutions do not fall within the scope of terms of

reference of the general meeting explanation and description shall be

given at such general meeting which together with the content of such

proposed resolutions and explanation of the Board shall be published

along with the resolutions of the general meeting in announcement after

the conclusion of the meeting
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the Board shall review the proposed resolutions in accordance with the

following principles

Relevance The Board shall review the resolutions proposed by the

Shareholders Matters in resolutions proposed by the Shareholders

which have direct impact on the Company and are not outside the Li

terms of reference of the general meeting as stipulated in the laws I1
regulations and the Articles of Association shall be submitted to

the general meeting for discussion For matters which fail to meet

the above requirements it is recommended not to submit the

proposed resolutions for discussion at the general meeting

Procedural issues The Board may make decisions on procedural 5J tS fI1

issues concerning resolutions proposed by the Shareholders

Consent of the proposing Shareholders shall be obtained if the

proposed resolutions will be split up or combined for voting

In the event of any objection to the change by the proposing

Shareholders the convener of the general meeting may present

the procedural issues to the general meeting for decision and

discussions shall be conducted in accordance with the procedures

decided by the general meeting

Please refer to the section headed Corporate Governance Investor

Relations of this report for details of the contact information for Shareholders 5iFj
to inspect the relevant information and propose extraordinary resolutions
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The Company held two general meetings in 2012 details of which are set out 2t
as follows

The 2011 annual general meeting of the Company was held on 28 June 2012 LS ff1

at the Meeting Centre Shanghai International Airport Hotel

2550 Hongqiao Road Shanghai the PRC For details please refer to the 1$S
Companys announcement dated 28 June 2012

The 2012 first extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on

November 2012 at Shanghai International Airport Hotel

2550 Hongqiao Road Shanghai the PRO For details please refer to the 2I2ttJ ii fitjj

Companys announcement dated November 2012

Attendance of Directors at general meetings of the Company was as follows

Attendance/

Eligibility Attendance

Directors of Meetings rate

LiuShaoyong 1/2 50%

MaXulun 2/2 100%

XuZhao 2/2 100%

GuJiadan 1/2 50%

Li Yangmin 2/2 100%

Tang Bing 1/2 50%

LuoZhuping 2/2 100%

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu 2/2 100%

IJ
Wu Xiaogen 2/2 100%

Ji Weidong 2/2 100%

Shao Ruiqing 2/2 100%
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MEETING OF THE BOARD

The Chairman leads the Board to ensure that the Board performs its various

duties effectively and he is responsible for drawing up the agenda of the

meeting of the Board and considering other matters that the other Directors jll IJ I14

propose to be included in the agenda The agenda together with documents

of the Board should be as far as practicable circulated at least days prior

to the meeting of the Board or its specialized committees The Chairman is

also obliged to ensure that all the Directors are suitably briefed on matters

to be raised in the meeting of the Board The Chairman ensures that the

Directors receive information that is accurate timely and clear Through on-

the-job training of Directors continuous participation in meetings of the Board

and of specialized committees of the Board and meetings with key persons in

headquarters and other departments the Directors are encouraged to update

their skills knowledge and their understanding of the Group

The Company has established specialised organisation i.e the secretariat of AT
the Board to work for the Board All the Directors have access to the service fj

of the Company Secretary The Company Secretary periodically updates the il4

Board of the latest information on governance and regulatory matters The

Directors may seek independent professional advice through the Chairman for

the purpose of performing their duties with the cost borne by the Company

Specialized committees may also seek professional advice The Company

Secretary is responsible for the records of the Board meetings These minutes

of meetings together with other related documents for the Board meetings

shall be made available to all members of the Board Board meetings are

meant to enable the Directors to have open and frank discussions

In order to ensure sound corporate governance as at the date of the

announcement of this annual report the Board had committees in place

Audit and Risk Management Committee Nominations and Remuneration

Committee Planning and Development Committee and Aviation Safety and

Environment Committee with their terms of reference drawn up in accordance II
with the principles set out in the Code The Company Secretary drafts the

minutes of meetings for these committees and the committees report to the

Board
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The Board held 13 meetings in 2012 Details of attendance of each Director at 1linnt TI 13it 1it
the Board meetings were as follows

Attendance/

Eligibility Attendance

Directors of Meetings rate

fl U1l

Shaoyong 13/13 100%

MaXulun 13/13 100%

XuZhao 7/7 100%

Gu Jiadan 7/7 100%

LiYangmin 13/13 100%

Tang Bing 7/7 100%

LuoZhuping 13/13 100%

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu 13/13 100%

Ij
Wu Xiaogen 13/13 100%

Ji Weidong 13/13 100%

nil
Shao Ruiqing 13/13 100%

Note Each Oirector attended the respective Board meetings in pereon lt4tt

DIRECTORS INTERESTS

All the Directors shall declare to the Board upon their first appointment their

capacities as directors or any other positions held in other companies or

institutions the declaration of which shall be renewed once year When

the Board discusses any motion or transaction and considers any Director

has any conflict of interest the Director shall declare his interest and abstain
dJt

from voting and will excuse himself as appropriate The Company shall

pursuant to guidelines applicable to the Company request from Directors their
II II71 fl3CI flfiflZ

confirmation if they or their associates are connected with any transactions
e1BtIt lllifI2

entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries dunng the Reporting Period

Material transactions which have been confirmed as having been entered into

with any connected person have been disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements prepared in accordance with IFRS of this annual report

67



CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED ft

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE fl 72

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the

Listing Rules as the securities transactions code for the Directors Each of the

Directors and the Supervisors has been provided with copy of the Model

Code upon his appointment

All the Directors and the Supervisors have confirmed that they have complied

with the Model Code in 2012 Ij

The Company has also adopted the related provisions set out in Appendix 14

to the Listing Rules and has established its Code of Conduct for Securities

Transactions by Employees of the Company according to Its own situation

and with reference to the Model Code as set out in Appendix lOto the Listing

Rules The aforesaid code of conduct shall apply to the conduct of dealings

in the securities of the Company by the Supervisors and members of senior

management of the Company

In addition pursuant to the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of IJtft
Stock on Shanghai Stock Exchange the shares of the Company transferred ft

by each of the Directors Supervisors and members of senior management of ll 25%

the Company every year shall not exceed 25% of the total number of shares

held by each of them and they are not allowed to purchase the shares of the 5I 552 15
Company within six months after they have sold their shares They are also not ThT5fr55$5 J515

allowed to sell the shares of the Company within six months after they have

bought the shares of the Company Additionally within six months after their

retirement they are not allowed to transfer the shares of the Company held by

them

All the employees who may have Inside information related to the Group are

also required to comply with the Model Code During the Reporting Period

the Company is not aware of any breach of laws and regulations

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF I1
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors confirm that they are responsible for the preparation of the I5
financial statements of the Group

The Auditors Report of the Companys auditors in respect of the financial

statements is set out on page 88 to page 89 of this annual report 58889
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TRAINING OF DIRECTORS

Content of development of skills and training Directors participatedII
Participated in

training on amendments to the
Listing

Rules and Corporate Liu Shaoyong Ma Xulun Xu Zhao Cu Jiadan Li

Governance Codes in February 2012 Yangmin Tang Bing Luo Zhuping Sandy Ke-Yaw

Liu Wu Xiaogen Ji Weidong Shao Ruiqing

Ij

On-site training conducted by Hong Kong securities partners of Baker Liu Shaoyong Ma Xulun Xu Zhao Cu Jiadan Li

McKenzie regarding amendments to the Listing Rules and case study Yangmin Tang Bing Luo Zhuping Sandy Ke-Yaw

thereof in April 2012 Liu Wu Xiaogen Ji Weidong Shao RuiqingtA iJ
VlZ

Lecture on the basic concept and typical case study of the anti-corruption Liu Shaoyong Ma Xulun Xu Zhao Cu Jiadan Li

laws of the United States by US securities partners of Baker McKenzie Yangmin Tang Bing Luo Zhuping Sandy Ke-Yaw

in April 2012 Liu Wu Xiaogen Ji Weidong Shao Ruiqing

VtIj

Participated in 4-day training on independent directors qualification Luo Zhuping

organized by the Shanghai Stock Exchange covering total of areas

of operation framework and information disclosure of listed company in

April2012

Provided the book Corporate Governance An Obstacle Impossible to Liu Shaoyong Ma Xulun Xu Zhao Cu Jiadan Li

Overcome for Entrepreneur iS .f to all the Yangmin Tang Bing Luo Zhuping Sandy Ke-Yaw

Directors Supervisors and members of the senior management for study Liu Wu Xiaogen Ji Weidong Shao Ruiqing

in June 2012 _J_
Participated in training for directors and supervisors organized by the Xu Zhao Cu Jiadan

Association of Shanghai Listed Companies in September 2012

Participated in training for directors and supervisors organized by the Luo Zhuping

Association of Shanghai Listed Companies in December 2012

The board secretariat of the Company is responsible to arrange and review

the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and the

members of the senior management of the Company
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2012 the Audit and Risk Management Committee of the

Company comprises Mr Shao Ruiqing Mr Wu Xiaogen and Mr Ji Weidong

all of whom are independent non-executive Directors Mr Shao Ruiqing

the chairman of the committee possesses professional qualifications in

accounting

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is specialized committee under -j-ii

the Board It is responsible for checking and monitoring the financial reports

and internal control of the Company checking and evaluating the overall risk 7SLT

management of the Company in particular the risk management and risk

control policy for material decision significant events and major business and

overseeing their implementation

INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control system

The Board shall be responsible for the overall internal control system

of the Company/Group and periodically review the effectiveness of the

internal control system of the Company through the Audit and Risk

Management Committee The internal control system is essential to risk

management which in turn is important in ensuring that operational

objectives can be achieved Internal control procedures are designed

to prevent assets from unauthorised use or disposal to ensure the

maintenance of appropriate accounting records and to provide reliable

financial information either for internal use or for dissemination externally fj2j
However the control procedures aim at reasonably but not absolutely

assuring that there will not be material misrepresentation loss or

misconduct The internal control system is prepared in accordance with

the relevant laws subsidiary regulations and constitutional documents

The Company reviews the effectiveness of its internal control system

annually which includes control over finance operations compliance

with laws and regulations as well as risk management The results of

the review have been reported to the Audit and Risk Management

Committee and the Board

The Board confirms that the Company has systems and procedures

in place to identify manage and report material risks in the course of

achieving its strategic objectives The Board continues to monitor risks lI
with the support of the specialised committees and senior management

INTERNALAUDIT

The Companys internal audit department is responsible for conducting 2fT ff fif--fij3

an independent audit of whether or not the internal control system

is sufficient and effective The auditing plan is prepared using risk

based approach and is discussed and finalized by the Audit and Risk

Management Committee annually Other than the pre determined scope

of work for each year the department is also required to conduct other

specific audits
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The Groups internal audit department primarily reports to the President kj ffiI3 itt

it may also report directly to the chairman of the Audit and Risk

Management Committee All the internal audit reports are delivered to .J
the Chairman of the Board the President Chief Financial Officer the

management of the department being audited and related departments S1flNfff
The outcome of each audit in summary will also be discussed with

the Audit and Risk Management Committee The Board and the Audit Uit
and Risk Management Committee of the Company actively monitor

the number and seriousness of the inspection results submitted by the

internal audit department and the relevant corrective measures taken by

the relevant department

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Audit and Risk Management Committee of the Company is

responsible for checking and evaluating the overall risk management

of the Company and overseeing their implementation checking and JS1fltttJNV
evaluating the risk management and risk control system and duties on

developing aviation fuel foreign exchange and interest rate hedging

businesses and overseeing their implementation

The internal audit department of the Company has undertaken

related risk management duties and reports to the Audit and Risk

Management Committee periodically It is responsible for coordinating

the implementation of appropriate procedures to manage the operational

risks of the Group

The Audit and Risk Management Committee held eight meetings in 2012 In it
each meeting senior management and external and internal auditors were

invited to attend Based on the reports of the external and internal auditors MWi
according to the accounting principles and practices and internal controls M-Attt
adopted by the Group with view to comply with the requirements of the

Listing Rules the Audit and Risk Management Committee conducted reviews J1f
of audits internal control risk management and financial statements The ttnWntl
Groups first quarterly results interim results and third quarterly results for

2012 and the final results for 2012 had been discussed in the Audit and Risk $t%ji
Management Committees meetings before they were submitted to the Board

for approval

Attendance of members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee

meetings is as follows

Attendance/

Eligibility Attendance

Members of Meetings rate

Shao Ruiqing 8/8 100%

tj3f

Wu Xiaogen 8/8 100%

Ji Weidong 8/8 100%

Note All members of Audit snd Risk Menegement Committee attended the respective 4f
Audit snd Risk Msnsgement Committee meetings in person
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Additionally the Audit and Risk Management Committee also conducted IEbI
other compliance work to comply with PRO and US reporting requirements in If
2012 including guiding and overseeing the development of internal controls UIj
hearing and reviewing the overall plan for risk management implementing Ij

risk management work in accordance with the requirements of the relevant LT
regulatory authorities in full scale reviewing the Companys compliance

with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and considering the work undertaken by the

management including management assessment to ensure the Companys

compliance with internal control regulations under Section 404 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act

The articles of association of the Audit and Risk Management Committee is

posted on the website of the Company and the website of the Hong Kong ftiL

Stock Exchange

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

For the Reporting Period the annual audit fees payable to the external auditors

both international and domestic auditors is estimated to be RMB12 88 PIfl

million for the regular annual audit of the Groups 2012 financial statements

prepared under IFRS and PRC Accounting Standards and the other relevant

documents applicable for the purpose of Annual Report in Form 20 filing

service fee of RMB1.5 million is also payable to the external auditors for

approved non-audit services rendered during the Reporting Period The

auditors remuneration shall be approved by the Audit and Risk Management

Committee and the Board

The Audit and Risk Management Committee obtained brief understanding of tN1
the scope of the non-audit service and related fees and was satisfied that the

non-audit service in respect of the nature of service and the total cost of non-

regular audit services compared to regular audit service fee had not affected

the independence of the accounting firm

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

As of 31 December 2012 the Planning and Development Committee of the

Company comprises three members Mr Li Yangmin Mr Luo Zhuping and

Mr Shao Ruiqing all of whom are Directors Mr Li Yangmln DIrector is the

chairman of the committee

The Planning and Development Committee is specialized committee under

the Board It is responsible for studying considering and making plans or

recommendation in regard to the long term development plans and material

investment decisions of the Company and overseeing their implementation Its

main duties are

to consider the annual operational goals of the Company and make

recommendations to the Board

to consider the annual investment proposal of the Company and make

recommendations to the Board
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to consider the material investments other than the annual investment

proposal of the Company and make recommendations to the Board

to consider the development plan of the Company and make

recommendations to the Board

to study and consider the fleet development plan and aircraft purchase

plan of the Company and submit ndependent report to the Board

to study other major events which may have influence on the

development of the Company and make recommendations in

connection with the same

to oversee the implementation of the above matters and conduct

inspection of the same

to consider other matters as authorized by the Board and oversee their

implementation

Attendance of members of the Planning and Development Committee

meetings is as follows

Attendance

Eligibility Attendance

Members of Meetings rate

Li Yangmin 7/7 100%

Luo Zhuping 7/7 100%

AZ
Shao Ruiqing 7/7 100%

Note All members of Planning and Development Committee attended the respective 11ff ft

Planning and Development Commiftee meetings in person

The Detailed Working Rules for the Planning and Development Committee are

posted on the website of the Company
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NOMINATIONS AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the Board comprises three Ij Ij

members Liu Shaoyong Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu and Ji Weidong Liu Shaoyong

is the chairman of the committee Note while both Sandy Ke Yaw Liu and Ji

Weidong are independent non executive Directors

Note With effect from April 2012 when considering and approving nomination related ff -f5Ji ff

matters the Nominations and Remuneration Committee shall be chaired by Mr

Liu Shaoyong when considering and approving remuneration related matters the

Nominations and Remuneration Committee shall be chaired by Mr Sandy Ks-Yaw

Liu or Mr Ji Weidong

The main duties of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the

Board are

to make recommendations to the Board regarding its size and

composition based on the relevant provisions of the Company Law and

in the
light

of specific circumstances such as the characteristics of the

Companys equity structure

to study the criteria and procedures for selecting Directors and

management personnel and to make recommendations to the Board

to conduct wide-ranging searches for qualified candidates to become

Directors and members of the management personnel

to examine the candidates for the positions of Director and manager and

make recommendations in connection with the same

to examine candidates for other senior management positions

whose engagement is subect to approval by the Board and make

recommendations in connection with the same

to study and review the policies and plans for remuneration of the

Directors and senior management personnel

to study the criteria for assessing the Directors and senior management k$
personnel carry out such assessments and make recommendations in

connection with the same

to evaluate the performance of the Directors and senior management

personnel based on the Companys actual business circumstances and

make recommendations in connection with the same

to be responsible for monitoring the implementation of the Companys

remuneration system

other matters delegated by the Board

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee is responsible to make

recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual

executive Directors and the members of the Senior Management
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In 2012 under the leadership of the Board the Nominations and

Remuneration Committee performed their duties diligently to standardize the IIJji
election of Directors and members of senior management of the Company 4ij$u EE ff1

establish and refine the incentive and assessment mechanism of Directors and ffA
members of senior management of the Company and realize the long-term

goals of the Company pursuant to the requirements of the Detailed Working

Rules for the Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the Board of

Directors Major tasks completed by the Nominations and Remuneration

Committee in 2012 were as follows

Standardizing the election of Directors and 1JI
members of senior management and nominating
candidates to become Directors and members of

senior management to the Board

In 2012 pursuant to the relevant requirements of the Detailed Working

Rules for the Nominations and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Ifff ijffj

Directors the Nominations and Remuneration Committee after review

and study nominated Mr Tang Bing to the Board as candidate for

Director of the sixth session of the Board Also according to the actual

work needs of the Company the Nominations and Remuneration

Committee after review and study nominated Mr Wang Jian to the

Board as candidate for Board Secretary and Company Secretary of

the Company

Guiding and considering the share incentive plan of

the Company

In order to establish long-term incentive mechanism which is closely

linked to the results and the long-term strategy of the Company as

well as optimize the overall remuneration structure and system of the

senior management personnel and key management personnel of the

Company the Nominations and Remuneration Committee held three

meetings in 2012 to listen to the specific presentation on the share

incentive plan of the Company and actively studied and considered

the share incentive plan in timely manner With the coordination and

efforts in the earlier stages the plan was officially approved by SASAC Tf
in October 2012 The resolution was approved by majority vote at the

Companys general meeting held on November 2012 and the initial

grant was completed on 30 November 2012

Revising and considering the Detailed Working
Rules for the Nominations and Remuneration
Committee

According to the requirements of the new amendments to the Rules

Governing the Listing Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited in 2012 the Nominations and Remuneration Committee If If
revised and considered the Detailed Working Rules for the Nominations ff1

and Remuneration Committee based on its actual working conditions
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Considering the remuneration of the Directors and

members of senior management for year 2011 HN15

The members of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee

seriously reviewed the remuneration of the Companys paid Directors

and members of senior management for year 2011 and have requested z2lE tt

the Company to make disclosure in its 2011 annual report in accordance

with the relevant requirements

According to the Detailed Working Rules for the Nominations and

Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors the procedure for electing

Directors and management personnel is as follows

the Nominations and Remuneration Committee shall actively liaise with

the relevant departments of the Company to study the requirement for $t $1$
Directors and management personnel and produce written document

thereon

the Nominations and Remuneration Committee may conduct wide-

ranging search for candidates for the positions of Director and manager

within the Company within enterprises controlled by the Company or

within enterprises in which the Company holds equity and on the human

resources market

the profession academic qualifications professional titles detailed work 111

experience and all concurrently held positions of the initial candidates

shall be compiled as written document

the Nominations and Remuneration Committee shall listen fully to the t1

opinion of the nominee regarding his/her nomination

meeting of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee shall

be convened and the qualifications of the initial candidates shall be It

examined on the basis of the conditions for appointment of Directors

and managers

before the selection of new Director and the engagement of new

member of the management personnel the recommendations of and

relevant information on the relevant candidates shall be submitted to

the Board

the Nominations and Remuneration Committee shall carry out other -I I1
follow-up tasks based on the decisions of and feedback from the Board

76



ANNUAL REPORT 2012 fl

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
081

Attendance of members of the Nominations and Remuneration Committee

meetings are as follows

Attendance

Eligibility Attendance

Members of Meetings rate

Liu Shaoyong 5/5 100%

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu 5/5 100%

Ji Weidong 5/5 100%

Note All members ct Nominations and Remuneration Committee attended the ffftt

respective Nominations and Remuneration Committee meetings in person

The Detailed Working Rules forthe Nominations and Remuneration Committee

are posted on the website of the Company and the website of the Hong Kong
tiE

Stock Exchange

REMUNERATION POLICY OF DIRECTORS

Directors generally do not receive remuneration from the Company except

independent non-executive Directors who receive fixed remuneration

However Directors who serve in other administrative positions of the

Company will receive salary separately for those positions

Certain Directors received emoluments from CEA Holding the parent

company in respect of their directorship or senior management positions in

the Company and its subsidiaries

Generally the policy regarding the remuneration packages of Directors are

aimed primarily at linking the remuneratioR of Directors and their performance tfltIttI

to the obiectives of the Company in order to motivate them in their WCtlM
performance and retain them Pursuant to the policy the Directors are not

allowed to approve their own remuneration

The remuneration of the Directors mainly comprises basic salary and bonus

BASIC SALARY

The Directors review the basic salary of each Director on an annual basis

pursuant to the remuneration policy of the Company in 2012 pursuant to nWntl
the service contracts entered into between the Company and each of the

Directors the Directors are entitled to receive fixed basic salary

BONUS

Bonuses are calculated based on the measurable performance and

contribution of the operating units for which the Directors are responsible
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REMUNERATION POLICY OF INDEPENDENT

NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Remuneration before tax received by the Companys independent non- 21c

executive Directors in 2012 wore as follows

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu
HK$120000

l120000

Wu Xiaogen

Ji Weidong
RMB1 20000

Al120000

Shao Ruiqing
RMB1 20000

A120000

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The remuneration payable to the members of the senior management of the

Company in 2012 are set out as follows

Remuneration

Name Position before tax

RMBAk
Ma Xulun Vice Chairman President 696500

Li Yangmin Director Vice President 624750

Tang Bing Director Vice President 592025

Shu Mingjiang Vice President 1267576

Wu Yongliang Vice President Chief Financial Officer 544320

Tian Liuwen Vice President 544320

Wang Jian Board Secretary Joint Company Secretary 385560

Notes

Mr Shu Mlngjiang our Vice President is pilot His remuneration includes air

crewman packages

Mr Wang Jian was appointed as our Board Secretary and Joint Company

Secretary from April 2012 His remuneration covers period from April 2012 to

December 2012
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AVIATION SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT
COM MITTEE

The Aviation Safety and Environment Committee comprises Mr Ma Xulun

Mr Li Yangmin and Mr Sandy Ke Yaw Uu and Mr Ma Xulun serves as the

chairman of the committee

The Aviation Safety and Environment Committee is specialized committee

under the Board It is responsible for consistent implementation of the

relevant laws and regulations of national aviation safety and environmental 74
protection examining and overseeing the aviation safety management of the

f1L

Company studying considering and making recommendation on aviation

safety plans and major issues of the related safety duties and overseeing their

implementation studying considering and making recommendation on major

environmental protection issues in relation to aviation carbon emission on

domestic and international levels and overseeing their implementation

Attendance of members of the Aviation Safety and Environment Committee

meetings are as follows

Attendance

Eligibility Attendance

Members of Meetings rate

MaXulun 2/2 100%

Li Yangmin 2/2 100%

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu 2/2 100%

The Detailed Working Rules for the Aviation Safety and Environment IJ4ttJ
Committee are posted on the website of the Company
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company undertakes that the disclosure it makes is fair and the reports

it provides are comprehensive and transparent The ultimate responsibility of fJ

the Chairman of the Board is to ensure effective communication with investors fitj

and to ensure that the Board is aware of the views of substantial shareholders

Accordingly the Chairman is required to meet the Shareholders in this regard

and the routine communication of the Board with the substantial shareholders is

mainly conducted through the Company Secretary

The Company has drawn up and implemented the Information Disclosure

Management System and has further improved the Companys information

disclosure system in order to ensure the accuracy completeness and

timeliness of information disclosed to public the Company has also

established an information disclosure office for which the Company Secretary fIf
is responsible The information disclosure office is mainly responsible for Ijj

the collection collation and compilation of basic information for disclosure

and is also responsible for drawing up the rules and systems for information

disclosure and related internal control and procedures It is responsible for

monitoring the correct implementation of the various control measures

The Company has also drawn up and implemented the Investor Relations

Management System and Investor Relations Management Detailed

Implementation Rules which specifies the basic principles and the institutional tJf
structure of investor relations management as well as the duties and

responsibilities of investor relations work so as to further foster corporate

integrity
and self-discipline and to realize standardized operation with the

ultimate aim of maximizing corporate value and Shareholders interests and

ensuring that interests of investors are protected

The Company has released information in relation to its quarterly results

The latest annual general meeting was held on 29 June 2012 in Shanghai

The meeting was open to all the Shareholders and the media total of 13

Shareholders attended in person or by proxy

In the annual general meeting each matter was proposed as an individual

resolution and voted by poll

Investors and the public may access our website and download related

document briefings The website also sets out details of each of the Groups

operations Announcements notices or other documents issued by the 34

Company may also be downloaded from the website Qf the Company

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Please refer to section headed Report of Directors Significant Events of

the annual report for details of the amendments of the Articles of Association

made in 2012

The Company Secretary and the managers of the investor relations department ff1 ff1 1IfP

and the capital investment market department held two specialized meetings

with securities analysts in respect of The 2011 annual financial results and the Ti

2012 interim financial results and one press conference with financial media thI

and organized 16 one-to-one roadshows and investors meetings
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Based on publicly available information and to the best knowledge of the

Directors at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the Company is

held by the public As at 31 December 2012 there were total of 250268 .l -j- 2Y2i ..250268
Shareholders on the Companys register of members

For any enquiries of the Board Shareholders may contact the Company $ff1JJ8J
Secretary by phone at 8621 -22330928 22330921 or by e-mail at 22330928 22330921

irceair.com or they may put forward their questions in the annual general

meeting or extraordinary general meetings In respect of the procedures for

Shareholders to convene annual general meeting or extraordinary general

meetings and propose resolutions they may enquire With the Company

Secretary through the aforesaid channels

Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary or Representative

of the Companys securities affairs to inspect the relevant information and

propose extraordinary resolutions at the contact given below

Board Secretary Representative of

Joint Company Secretary the Companys securities affairs

/IJ

Name Wang Jian Yang Hui

Address The Secretariat of the Board China Eastern Airlines The Secretariat of the Board China Eastern Airlines

Corporation Limited 92 Konggang 3rd Road Corporation Limited 92 Konggang 3rd Road

Changning District Shanghai Changning District Shanghai

Telephone 021-22330928 021-22330921

Fax 021-62686116 021-62686116

Email ir@ceair.com davidyang@ceair.com

On behalf of the Board

Liu Shaoyong 1J
Chairman

Shanghai the PRC

26 March 2013
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Dear Shareholders

In the new year the Supervisory Committee will as in the past conscientiously MI tt

exercise the powers bestowed upon it by the Articles of Association and

perform corresponding obligations further strengthen its supervision of the

Companys financial affairs and ensure compliant business practices It will

continue to explore monitoring and control mechanism which is useful in

protecting the investors and promoting the Companys development

Meetings Convened by the Supervisory Committee

On 23 March 2012 the Supervisory Committee held meeting at

which it adopted the Report of the Supervisory Committee for the year

2011 the Supervisory Committee considered the financial report of

the Company for the year 2011 truly reflected the financial position and

operating results of the Company which was objective and fair and

resolved that it would be put forward to the 2011 annual general meeting 25J JIj
of the Company for consideration the Supervisory Committee adopted

the 2011 profit distribution proposal of the Company and resolved

that it would be put forward to the 2011 annual general meeting of

the Company for consideration the Supervisory Committee reviewed

the full text and summary of the annual report for 2011 prepared by

the Company and expressed written audit opinion Meanwhile the

Supervisory Committee reviewed the resolution on the day-to-day

connected transactions of the Company for the year 2011 and the self

assessment report on the internal control of the Company for the year

2011

On 26 April 2012 the Supervisory Committee held meeting at which it

reviewed the full text and summary of the Companys 2012 first quarterly 2tE

report and expressed written audit opinion

On 25 August 2012 the Supervisory Committee held meeting at

which it considered and approved the Opinion on the List of Incentive

Recipients of Initial Grant Scheme of the Shares Appreciation Rights

Scheme of China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited 4i

and

expressed an audit opinion

On 30 August 2012 the Supervisory Committee held meeting at

which it reviewed the 2012 interim financial report full text and summary

of the Companys interim report for 2012 and expressed written audit

opinion

On 11 September 2012 the Supervisory Committee held meeting at $__
which it considered and approved the ResolutiQn on the Description of iJ

Use of Proceeds of the Previous Fund Raising ActivitiesiJ and expressed an audit opinion

On 30 October 2012 the Supervisory Committee held meeting at _hH
which it reviewed the full text and summary of the Companys 2012 third

quarterly report and expressed written audit opinion
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II Independent Opinion of the Supervisory Committee

Legality of the Operation of the Company

in 2012 the Supervisory Committee monitored the procedures of _J
convening the genera meetings and Board meetings of the Company

and their resolutions execution of the resolutions passed in the general

meetings by the Board and execution of the resolutions passed in the

Board meetings by the management It is of the view that the Company Ui
has strictly complied with the Company Law the Securities Law the hrpj
Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on Shanghai Stock Exchange

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of 1lJIJ
Hong Kong Umited the Articles of Association and other regulations in

drawing operational decisions monitored its operations based on law

continuously optimized the internal control system and further enhanced

its corporate governance standards The Directors and the senior

management of the Company were able to protect the interests of the

Shareholders and the Company as whole and carry out their duties

with dedication The Supervisory Committee did not discover any of

their actions that in any way violated laws regulations or the Articles of

Association or were prejudicial to the interests of the Company

Financial Position of the Company

The Supervisory Committee seriously reviewed the Companys 2012

financial report 2012 profit distribution proposal 2012 annual report

and the 2012 financial audit report issued by the PRC and international

auditOrs expressing unqualified opinions The Supervisory Committee

resolved that the Companys 2012 financial report truly reflects the

financial position and operating results of the Company for the year

2012 The Supervisory Committee agreed to the 2012 financial audit

report issued by the auditors and the 202 profit distribution proposal of ijJ
the Company

Purchases or Sale of Assets of the Company 2tt1f

In 2012 the Supervisory Committee conducted examination on the

resolutions in respect of mpjor acquisitions asset disposal and connect ii

transactions The Supervisory Committee did not discover any acts of

insider trading any acts prejudicial to the interests of the Shareholders or

resulting in loss of assets or prejudice to the interests of the Company

83



CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED ttttt

REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
O8

Connected Transactions of the Company jj5
In 2012 the Supervisory Committee conducted examination on the

resolutions in respect of the connected transactions of the Company

The Supervisory Committee conducted examinations on all the

connected transactions of the Company in the current year and believes l1ttI
that all the contracts agreements and other relevant documents related ff1 1fI
to the connected transactions of the Company in the current year had

complied with the legal procedures and the terms of the transactions jIff
were fair and reasonable to the Company and the Shareholders as

whole The connected transactions were dealt with under stringent

principles of fairness impartiality and transparency The Supervisory

Committee did not discover any acts of insider trading or breach of

good faith by the Board in making decisions signing agreements and

information disclosure

Internal Control of the Company ff ftIj

The Supervisory Committee reviewed the Assessment Report of the

Companys Internal Control for the year 2012 in prudent and cautious

manner and has no objection with the self-assessment report of the

Board The Supervisory Committee also seriously reviewed the internal

control audit report issued by the auditor The Supervisory Committee Ijfl
considers that the Company has developed internal control regulation

system in place and the implementation in actual circumstances is

satisfactory

The Supervisory Committee is extremely grateful for the continuous support ffI9
for its work offered by all the Shareholders the Board and its staff

On behalf of the Supervisory Committee

YuFaming

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shanghai the PRO

26 March 2013 7H
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group adhered to the philosophy of cherished by staff preferred by

customers satisfactory to shareholders and trusted by society for its social

responsibility While pursuing sustainable development of enterprise the

Group incorporates its social responsibility philosophy into the whole process

of corporate decision and production operation with view to unify corporate

development and social responsibilities

LOW-CARBON FLYING

The Group advocate the idea of low-carbon flying and initiate an operational 1ci
mode of Consuming and emitting less but performing more efficiently to

establish an environmentally friendly and resource conservative enterprise and

achieve harmonious development of the enterprise the environment and the 90% -l-Uiii5

community Jet fuel consumption accounted for more than 98% of the energy 9fj

consumption of the Group More than 90% of the Groups flights undergo iIJ
refueling and

flying
in accordance with the low-carbon flying scheme Low-

carbon flying is implemented via standardized and regulated management

Fuel consumption and carbon emission are lowered through approaches such

as system restrictions procedural enhancement and technological innovation

Optimization of Fleet

The Group strives to enhance the environmental protection functionality of

its operating fleet by eliminating and surrendering the lease of old aircraft

and introducing high performance and environmental friendly aircraft on an

annual basis The Group also adopted new engines with higher fuel efficiency 5it A340-300

but lower noise pollution and refitted its existing fleet In 2012 the Group

disposed five A340-300 aircraft which have higher fuel consumption per hour

and entered into purchase agreement of twenty B777-300ER aircraft and

sixty A320 aircraft as well as disposal agreement of eighteen regional aircraft

Meanwhile additional winglets were installed in twelve B737NG aircraft to

save fuels

Optimization of Routes

The Company strengthened its control and management over the DOC Direct DOC ItIt$ ttj 1u

Operation Control system facilitated precise refueling according to flight plans h3fl
and stringently implemented cost-saving flight control requirement and weight

and balance operation The Group also reduced the flying time of flights and 6.7U

thus effectively lowered fuel consumption by selecting the most economical

route The Group saved 67000 tons of jet fuel in 2012

APPLICATION OF NEW TECHNOLOGIES

Emphasizing and promoting the application of new technologies are important

measures adopted by the Group to achieve continuous flight safety ensure

regular flights and realise low carbon flying
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PBN Performance-based Navigation Technology Flying Program PBNILWJ
The application of PBN technology is an important reform of the flight

operation It can effectively
facilitate the continuous safety of the civil aviation

increase airspace capacities decrease input of ground navigation facilities 2012

decrease fuel consumption and increase energy saving and emission HI LLJ
reduction In 2012 the Group has completed the verification of trail flying of JPBNff A330
PBN program in airports namely Yangzhou Nantong Kunming Zhoushan A320 B737NGLRNP APCH ft
Ningpo Yulin Linyi Hangzhou and Xlning thereby establishing operation tB737-700 A319 133RNP AR
capacities of RNP APCH Approach for A330 A320 and B737NG aircrafts

at those airports and established operation capacities of RNP AR required

navigation functionality which require specific authorization for B737-700 and

A31 133 aircraft at Jiuzhai Airport

ADS-B Air Traffic Control and Surveillance Technology Automatic ADS-B
Dependent Surveillance-Broadcast

CEA is the pilot unit that is appointed by CAAC to operate with ADS-B 2011
Automatic Dependent Surveillance-Broadcast in the early stage The ADS-B A340 600 ffADS-B1
operation verification of trail

flying
of A340-600 aircraft in the airspace of 2012 A330

Hudson Bay Canada has been completed and approved by CAAC in 2011

In 2012 CEA has successfully completed the ADS-B verification of trial flying ADS-B

of its A330 aircraft along the Hawaii routes With the application of ADS-B the

workload of the flight crew and fuel consumption would decrease while the

flying capacity would increase providing better assurance of flight safety

EFB Electronic Flight Bag EFBI
On 26 December CEA was approved to implement Class EFB trial flying 12.26 EFBt
for its A330 fleet which is the first airline being approved to adopt Class EFB tJj ffj EFB
EFB in China EFB is an electronic equipment which provide the flight crew

various types of flight information including manuals documents flight EFBffJ

maps navigation notices and climatological data in the aircraft cockpit

The promotion and application of EFB can realise electronisation of aircraft 2tE

information thereby reducing operation cost increasing operation efficiency

and enhancing the level of safety operation

ENERGY MANAGEMENT

The Group continued to promote energy saving and emission reduction

Capacities has increased year by year while fuel consumption per traffic

volume has decreased year by year resulting in decrease in energy 2012w

consumption intensity and an increase in energy utilization rate every year

In 2012 the carbon dioxide emission reduced by 225000 tons through the

implementation of various energy saving and emission reduction measures

GREEN OFFICE

The Group actively promotes the application of the internet office system

and advocates the concept of paperless office The energy consumption at fTEP
ground facilities is also reduced by promoting energy-saving measures such

as video conferencing and telephone conferencing double-sided printing and fl

turning off
lights as you leave and through other measures such as the oil- j1

to gas boiler conversion project central air-conditioning refitting project and TEI-t
energy saving lighting refitting project Meanwhile traveler rest card of upper

class cabins have been canceled at Terminal T2 of Hongqiao International

Airport Eligible
travelers may take rest in the VIP lounges directly

with their

boarding pass thereby reducing waste of resources resulted from printing of

the rest cards
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED

Incorporated in the Peoples Republic of China with ilmited liability

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Eastern

Airlines Corporation Limited the Company and its subsidiaries together TI

the Group set out on pages 90 to 208 which comprise the consolidated

and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2012 and the consolidated .l T.
statement of comprehensive income the consolidated statement of changes iLl
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended

and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of

consolidated financial statements that give true and fair view in accordance ffII
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal

control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of

consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement

whether due to fraud or error

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial

statements based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with

International Standards on Auditing Those standards require that we comply j-
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about

the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements

The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial

statements whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments TI2f%fI1 ffl

the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entitys preparation of Ii
the consolidated financial statements that give true and fair view in order to 2TI
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entitys

internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

made by the directors as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinion

88



ANNUAL REPORT 2012 fl

fl3
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

OPINION

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give true and fair view

of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December

2012 and of the Groups profit and cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been

properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance

OTHER MATTERS

This report including the opinion has been prepared for and only for you as 4f Th ffli ii

body and for no other purpose We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report II

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Pub/ic Accountants

Hong Kong 26 March 2013
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CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
.A

I71J\ Il

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011

Note RMBOOO RMBOOO

Revenues

Other operating income 1thtlA i626

Operating expenses

Aircraft fuel fJ4
Gain on fair value movements of derivatives Ift

financial instruments $834

Take off and landing charges

Depreciation and amortisation

Wages salaries and benefits

Aircraft maintenance ii

Impairment reversals/charges 0I/ 10

Food and beverages O1
Aircraft operating lease rentals 48t69
Other operating lease rentals 16

Selling and marketing expenses 47Jj
Civil aviation infrastructure levies fL4 4iiI
Ground services and other charges

Office administrative and other expenses

Total operating expenses

Operating profit 11

Share of results of associates 23 13O9
Share of results of jointly controlled entities 24 960
Finance income 12 3460
Finance costs 13 tt9 474

Prof it before income tax

Income tax 14 2Ł48O
-ti

Profit for the year O3
iir

Other comprehensive 1055/income

fortheyear

Cash flow hedges net of tax 40

Fair value movements of available-for-sale

investments 3B9

Fair value movements of available-for-sale

investments held by an associate 23

Total comprehensive income for the year
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 095
14 17

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2012 tnWnn.h El-

2012 2011

fl
Note RMBOOO RMB000XF AF

Profit attributable to

Equity shareholders ot the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income

attributable to

Equity shareholders of the Company

Non controlling interests

Earnings per share attributable to the

equity shareholders of the Company

during the year

Basic and diluted RMB 17

The notes on page 99 to 208 are an integral part of these financial statements

2012 2011

nt
Note RMBOOO RMBOOO

Dividends tj 15
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CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED A20APftOS1

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

As at 31 December20 ft

2012 2011

Note RMBOOO RMBOOO

ff1
_________

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 18

Property plant and equipment 19

Lease prepayments 20

Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft ftfi 21

Investments in associates 23

Investments in jointly controlled entities 24

Available-for-sale financial assets

Other long-term assets 25

Deferred tax assets 37

Derivative assets 40

Current assets

Flight equipment spare parts 26

Trade receivables 27

Prepayments and other receivables tI 28

Derivative assets 40

Restricted bank deposits and short-term

bank deposits 29

Cash and cash equivalents 30

Assets held for sale 44

Current liabilities

Sales in advance of carriage

Trade payables and notes payable 31

Other payables and accrued expenses 32

Current portion of obligations under

finance leases 33

Current portion of borrowings
34

Income tax payable

Current portion of provision for return

condition checks for aircraft under

operating leases 35

Derivative liabilities 40

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards

As at 31 December 2012 tt

2012 2011

-----
Note RMBOOO RMBOOO

Non-current liabilities

Obligations under finance leases 33

Borrowings 34

Provision for return condition checks

for aircraft under operating leases 35

Other long-term liabilities 36

Deferred tax liabilities 37

Post-retirement benefit obligations 38b
Derivative liabilities 40

Net assets

Equity

Capital and reserves attributable to the equity

shareholders of the Company

Share capital 42

Reserves 43

Non controlling interests

Total equity

The notes on pages 99 to 208 are an integral part of these financial 99208
statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26

March 2013 and were signed on its behalf tFi

Liu Shaoyong Ma Xulun

Director Director
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COMPANYS BALANCE SHEET fl8

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

As at 31 December2012

2012 2011

Note RMBOOO RMBOOO

f1t

Non current assets _____________________________

Intangible assets 18 11

Property plant and equipment 1i 19 615
Lease prepayments

20 78

Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft 21 10

Investments in subsidiaries 22

Investments in associates 23

Investments in jointly
controlled entities 24 33

Available-for sale financial assets 2l6Z56

Other long-term assets 25 O36 4134

Derivative assets 40

Current assets _______________________________

Flight equipment spare parts 26 447

Trade receivables 27 6thP2$

Prepayments and other receivables 28 9O899
Derivative assets 40 1I8

Restricted bank deposits and short-term

bank deposits
29 109 6Q

Cash and cash equivalents
30 4Z Of

Assets held for sale 44
_______________________________

13o49499

Current liabilities _______________________________

Sales in advance of carriage
2308 175 980

Trade payables and notes payable
31 58342

Other payables and accrued expenses
32 t087271 ft

Current portion of obligations under

finance leases 33 8t8
Current portion of borrowings 34 14 3Q 480

Income tax payable P528

Current portion of provision for return

condition checks for aircraft under

operating leases 34 88i 1T4

Derivative liabilities 40
_________________________________

43$O25 34

Net current liabilities O35
Total assets less current liabilities 169
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COMPANYS BALANCE SHEETflfl
Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

As at 31 December 2012 QJflt-j-E5JL-l-

2012 2011

fl-flft

Note RMBOOO RMBOOO

Non-current liabilities

_____________________________
Obligations Under finance leases 33 1508192 41 3134

Borrowings MIt 34 15081334
fJL 8436B

Provision for retUrn condition checks
UI

for aircraft under operatiRg leases 35 1874553 444
Other long-term liabilities XMflM 36 962jt9

fi
331

Post-retirement benefit obligations fIttItItIiji$IM 38b 2508450

Derivative liabilities 40 304338

S63586

Net assets 24734178

Equity

Share capital 42 11276539 78

Reserves MM 43 1345Z639 057

ni..ri

Total equity 24734178

The notes on page 99 to 208 are an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 MMIME SItnmtl1n\
March 2013 and were signed on its behalf

Liu Shaoyong Ma Xulun

Director Director

cc cc
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CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
100

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year
ended 31 December 2012 .fl

2012 2011

-L
Note RMBOOO RMBOOO

.F5t AF
Cash flows from operating activities -i

Cash generated from operations 45a 13 $l 4t9

Income tax paid 2P4Æ1 158394

Net cash inflow from operating activities Of5

Cash flows from investing activities

Additions of property plant and equipment t1t 4141Vt

Payment of short-term deposits with original

maturity over three months

Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft
21 81Ot28

Investment in available-for-sale financial assets 472

Acquisition of cargo business of Great Wall

Airlines Co Ltd Great Wall Airlines

netting of cash acquired

Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale 411535

Proceeds from disposal of property

plant and equipment
18 88881

Proceeds of short-term deposits with original

maturity over three months 29

Interest received J4Ij
Dividends received EflIj 44 82 294

Proceeds from disposal of interests in an

associate

Proceeds from disposal of interests in

available-for-sale financial assets 426

Net cash outflow from investing activities tH1 14 939p61
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CONSOLIDATED GASH FLOW STATEMENT

I7T-t/lL

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011

Note RMBOOO RMBOOO

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from draw down of short-term

bank loans

Repayments of short term bank loans

Proceeds from issuance of short term

debentures and bonds iij

Proceeds from draw down of long-term

bank loans

Repayments of long-term bank loans

Principal repayments of finance lease

obligations

Receipts of restricted bank deposits

Interest paid

Capital contribution from non-controlling ffJ

interests of subsidiaries

Acquisition of non controlling interests in

subsidiaries

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests of $IJi
subsidiaries

Net cash outflow/inflow from financing /ftA
activities

Net decrease/increase in cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at January

Exchange adjustments

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December E-I-

30

The notes on page 99 to 208 are an integral part of these financial statements 99J208J
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CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
102

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standarda

For the year ended 31 December 2012 ihftl

Attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

_____________________________ Non-

Share Other Accumulated controlling

capital reserves losses Subtotal interests Total equity

11 tIif Hf tl4Vi

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMB000 RMB000 RMBOOO RMB000

AtFfr AF AtJfr At
50

Balance at January2011

Total comprehensive income

fortheyear

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Accumuatedlossesshared

by non-controlling interests after

capital Injection in subsidiary

Dividends paid to non controlling

interests of subsidiaries

Capital conthbution by non controlling 0fI
interests in subsidiary

11

Acquisition
of non-controlling interests 1i

Bance aU31 December 2011

Balance at January 2012 1t2 1722 8379775 ZO125892 1679215 218051G7

Total comprehensive income

for the year t1P4 Z953646 Z946271 146080 2800191

Profit for the year 2953645 953645 146042 Z807603

Other comprehensive loss 74 7314 38 7412

Dividends paid to non-controlling 1iitNZJ

interests of subsidiaries 178580 178580

Capital contribution by non-

controlling interests in subsidiaries

Note 22ab 22ab 453850 453850

Acquisition of non-controlling

interests in subsidiaries

Note 22cd 22d 4901S1 490151 180806 670957

Others 43 86 343j86 343786

Balance at 31 December 2012 2639 I701589 5426130 2Z925198 1627599 24553397

The notes on page 99 to 208 are an integral part of these financial statements 992O8 7t
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 103U4
Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2012

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited the Company joint Jj
stock company limited by shares was incorporated in the Peoples

Republic of China the PRC on 14 April 1995 The address of the

Companys registered office is 66 Airport Street Pudong International L5I1
Airport Shanghai the PRO The Company and its subsidiaries together i5
the Group are principally engaged in the operation of civil aviation

including the provision of passenger cargo mail delivery tour operations

and other extended transportation services

The Company is majority owned by China Eastern Air Holding Company 531f555
CEA Holding state-owned enterprise incorporated in the PRC di

The Companys shares are traded on Shanghai Stock Exchange

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and The New York Stock

Exchange

These financial statements were approved for issue by the Companys

Board of Directors the Board on 26 March 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

financial statements are set out below These policies have been

consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in di

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 151 di

IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standard Board

and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance The financial statements have been prepared under

the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of

available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets and financial

liabilities including derivative instruments at fair value through

profit or loss

Going concern

As at 31 December 2012 the Groups accumulated losses i--
were approximately RMB5.43 billion and its current liabilities di -l-t Al54.3t
exceeded its current assets by approximately RMB35.95

billion For the year ended 31 December 2012 cash and

cash equivalents of the Group decreased by RMB1 .35 billion jf
In preparing the financial statements the Board considers

the adequacy of cash inflows from operations and financing

to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ttftffff
For the year ended 31 December 2012 iLJ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES continued

Basis of preparation continued

Going concern continued

As at 31 December 2012 the Group had total unutilised

credit facilities of approximately RMB27.09 billion from

banks The Board believes that based on experience to A270.9
date it is likely that these facilities will be rolled over in future

years it required

With the cash inflows from operations and available credit

facilities the Board considers that the Group will be able to

obtain sufficient financing to enable it to operate as well as LlEi

to meet its liabilities as and when they become due and the Ij
capital expenditure requirements for the upcoming twelve

months Accordingly the Board believes that it is appropriate 2j
to prepare these financial statements on going concern

basis without including any adjustments that would be

required should the Company and the Group fail to continue

as going concern

ii New and amended standards adopted by the Group ii

The Group has adopted the following new standards and

amendments to existing standards which are relevant for the

Groups existed business and mandatory for the first time for

the financial year beginning January 2012

Amendments to IFRS Financial instruments

Disclosures Transfer of financial assets this

amendment promotes transparency in the reporting of

transfer transactions and improve users understanding lJ

of the risk exposures relating to transfers of financial

assets and the effect of those risks on the Companys

financial position The Group did not have any

significant
transfers of financial assets in previous year Fl

or the current year which require disclosures in current

accounting year under the amendments and these

amendments have had no material impact on the

Group

100



ANNUAL REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 05

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES continued

Basis of preparation continued

ii New and amended standards adopted by the Group ii

continued

Amendment related to IAS12 Income taxes

Currently lAS 12 Income taxes requires an entity

to measure the deferred tax relating to an asset

depending on whether the entity expects to recover

the carrying amount of the asset through use or sale

It can be difficult and subjective to assess whether

recovery will be through use or through sale when the

asset is measured using the fair value model in lAS

40 Investment Property Hence this amendment

introduces an exception to the existing principle for

the measurement of deferred tax assets or liabilities

arising on investment property measured at fair value aQ ftj Ij

As result of the amendments SIC 21 Income tax

recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets would Wit 21 1ff

no longer apply to investment properties carried at fair

value The amendments also incorporate into lAS 12

the remaining guidance previously contained in SIC 21

which is accordingly withdrawn This improvement has

no material impact on the Group

iii New and amended standards and interpretations iii fliiM1W
mandatory for the first time for the financial year

beginning January 2012 but not currently relevant to

the Group

IFRS Amendment First-time Adoption of IFRSs Umited I1
Exemptions from Comparative IFRS

Disclosures for First-time Adopters

IFRS Amendment First time adoption on hypenflation and

fxed dates
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2012 ihJ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES continued

Basis of preparation continued $1
iv New standards amendments and interpretations iv

to existing standards have been issued but not yet

effective for the financial year beginning January

2012 and which are relevant for the Groups operations

The following standards and amendments to existing

standards have been published and are mandatory for the

Groups accounting periods beginning on after January

2013 but the Group has not early adopted them

lAS 19 Amendment effective from January 2013

This amendment eliminate the corridor approach

and calculate finance costs on net funding basis

Remeasurements replace actuarial gains and losses

and include the difference between actual investment

returns and the return implied by the net interest cost 1ff

and any effect of an asset ceiling They are recognised

in other comprehensive income and not recycled

to income The corridor method and the option to

recognise immediately in the income statement are Ij

no longer available This will increase balance sheet

volatility for many entities The Group will apply the

standard retrospectively from January 2013 and the .lt

actuarial gains and losses will be recognised in other

comprehensive income As at 31 December 2012 the

unrecognised actuarial losses is RMB2.89 billion

28917L
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Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES continued

Basis of preparation continued $1
iv New standards amendments and interpretations iv

to existing standards have been issued but not yet

effective for the financial year beginning January

2012 and which are relevant for the Groups operations

continued

IFRS Financial Instruments effective from January

2013 The standard addresses classification and

measurement of financial assets introducing the

following changes Introduces single model that

has only two classification categories amortised

cost and fair value which are driven by the entitys

business model for managing the financial assets

and the contractual characteristics of the financial

assets ii Removes the requirement to separate iiX5
embedded derivatives from financial asset hosts

and requires hybrid contract to be classified in

its entirety at either amortised cost or fair value iii

Prohibits reclassifications except in rare circumstances 11 iiiI ff

when the entitys business model changes and the

changes apply prospectively iv Provides specific

guidance for contractually linked instruments that

create concentrations of credit risk which is often

the case with investment tranches in securitisation

Indicates that all equity investments should be

measured at fair value However management has

an option to present in other comprehensive income

unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses on

equity investments that are not held for trading vi

Removes the cost exemption for unquoted equities and IJ

derivatives on unquoted equities but provides guidance 2.1f

on when cost may be an appropriate estimate of fair

value The management is in the process of evaluating fl ff3

the impact of IFRS on the Group and will apply the

standard from January2013

103



CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS fl8

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards tf
For the year ended 31 December 2012

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES continued

Basis of preparation continued

iv New standards amendments and interpretations iv

to existing standards have been issued but not yet

effective for the financial year beginning January $Ij

2012 and which are relevant for the Groups operations

continued

IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements effective Ij 10

from January 2013 The objective of IFRS 10 is to

establish principles for the presentation and preparation Ij 10

of consolidated financial statements when an entity

controls one or more other entity an entity that controls th i1

one or more other entities to present consolidated

financial statements Defines the principle of control IJ

and establishes controls as the basis for consolidation lj fl

Set out how to apply the principle of control to identify

whether an investor controls an investee and therefore Ij

must consolidate the investee Sets out the accounting

requirements for the preparation of consolidated

financial statements The management is in the process t5 IE

of evaluating the impact of IFRS 10 on the Group and

will apply the standard from January 2013

IFRS 13 Fair value measurement effective from

January2013 IFRS 13 aims to improve consistency

and reduce complexity by providing precise

definition of fair value and single source of fair value

measurement and disclosure requirements for use

across IFRSs The requirements which are largely

aligned between IFRS5 and United States Generally

Accepted Accounting Principles US GAAP do not

extend the use of fair value accounting but provide

guidance on how it should be applied where its use is

already required or permitted by other standards within 2j-f tJ
IFRS5 or US GAAP The management is in the process

of evaluating the impact of IFRS 13 on the Group and

will apply the standard from January 2013 lj
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Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2012 jhl

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES continued

Basis of preparation continued

iv New standards amendments and interpretations iv

to existing standards have been issued but not yet 4Jc5tc

effective for the financial year beginning January

2012 and which are relevant for the Groups operations

continued

lAS Amendment effective from July 2013

Financial statements presentation regarding other

comprehensive income The main change resulting

from these amendments is requirement for entities

to group items presented in other comprehensive

income OCl on the basis of whether they are

potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently

reclassification adjustments The amendments do not

address which items are presented in 001 The Group

will apply the standard from July 2013 and it is not

expected to have material impact on the Groups or 2I
Companys financial statement

IFRS 11 effective from January 2013 Joint

arrangement IFRS 11 is more realistic reflection

of joint arrangement by focusing on the right and

obligation of the arrangement rather than its legal

form There are two types of joint arrangement

joint operations and joint ventures Joint operations

arise where joint operation has right to assets

and obligations relating to the arrangement and

hence accounts for its interest in assets liabilities

revenue and expenses Joint ventures arise where

the joint operation has rights to the net assets of

the arrangement and hence equity accounts for its

interest Proportional consolidation of joint ventures is

no longer allowed The Group will apply the standard

from January 2013 and it is not expected to have

material impact on the Groups or Companys financial

statement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

Forthe year ended 31 December 2D12

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES continued

Basis of preparation continued

iv New standards amendments and interpretations iv

to existing standards have been issued but not yet 1J3t
effective for the financial year beginning January iJ
2012 and which are relevant for the Groups operations

continued

lAS 28 Revised 2011 effective from January 2013 jc Ij 28

Associates and joint ventures The amendment

includes the requirements for joint ventures as well

as associates to be equity accounted following the

issue of IFRS 11 The management is in the process of

evaluating the impact of lAS 28 on the Group and will

apply the standard from January2013

IFRS 12 effective from January 2013 Disclosure of

interests in other entities The amendment includes

the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in

other entities including joint arrangements associates fj- fij

special purpose vehicles and other off balance IIj

sheet vehicles The management is in the process of

evaluating the impact of IFRS 12 on the Group and will

applythestandardfrom January2013

lAS 27 revised 2011 effective from January 2013

Separate financial statements The amendment

includes the provisions on separate financial statements

that are left after the control provisions of lAS 27 have

been included in the new IFRS 10 The management fIj1O
is in the process of evaluating the impact of lAS 27 on 27
the Group and will apply the standard from January

2013 00
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Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2012 JJJ

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES continued

Consolidation

The Groups consolidated financial statements include the financial fr 31

statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to

31 December

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities including special purpose

entities over which the Group has the power to govern the ii.$ i1lz

financial and operating policies generally accompanying ff

shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights

The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are

currently exercisable or convertible are considered when

assessing whether the Group controls another entity The

Group also assesses existence of control where it does

not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to

govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of de

facto control De-facto control may arise in circumstances

where the size of the Groups voting rights relative to the

size and dispersion of holdings of other shareholders give

the Group the power to govern the financial and operating

policies etc

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which

control is transferred to the Group They are de-consolidated
31 IjJj

from the date that control ceases

The Group applies the acquisition method of accounting

to account for business combinations The consideration

transferred for the acquisition of subsidiary is the fair

values of the assets transferred the liabilities incurred and

the equity interests issued by the Group The consideration

transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability

resulting from contingent consideration arrangement The j$ IitMIai

Group recognises any non controlling interest in the acquiree

on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or th1I

at the non-controlling interests proportionate share of the

recognised amounts of acquirees identifiable net assets

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent

liabilities assumed in business combination are measured

initially at their fair values at the acquisition date

If the business combination is achieved in stages the

acquisition date fair value of the acquirers previously held

equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at

the acquisition date through profit or loss
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Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December2012 LIJff

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES continued

Consolidation continued

Subsidiaries continued

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the

Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date

Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent

consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is

recognised in accordance with lAS 39 either in profit or loss

or as change to other comprehensive income Contingent

consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured

and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost

less impairment Cost is adjusted to reflect changes

in consideration arising from contingent consideration

amendments Cost also includes direct attributable costs of

investment

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate

of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-

controlling interest over the net identifIable assets acquired

and liabilities assumed Note ki If this consideration is

lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary

acquired the difference is recognised in profit or loss

Inter-company transactions balances income and expenses ff1

on transactions between Group companies are eliminated

Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions ff1

that are recognised in assets are also eliminated Accounting 0Ai
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary

to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group

ii Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without ii

change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result 11

in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions

that is as transactions with the owners in their capacity

as owners The difference between fair value of any

consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the

carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded

in equity Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling

interests are also recorded in equity
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES continued

Consolidation continued

iii Disposal of subsidiaries iii

When the Group ceases to have control any retained

interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the

date when control is lost with the change in carrying amount

recognised in profit or loss The fair value is the initial carrying

amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the ffiJ

retained interest as an associate joint venture or financial

asset In addition any amounts previously recognised in

other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are

accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities This may mean that amounts

previously recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss

iv Associates iv

Associates are all entities over which the Group has

significant influence but not control generally accompanying ij

shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting

rights Investments in associates are accounted for using the

equity method of accounting arid are initially recognised at

cost The Groups investment in associates includes goodwill

identified on acquisition net of any accumulated impairment

loss

The Groups share of its associates post-acquisition

profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated income

statement and its share of post-acquisition movements in

other comprehensive income is recognised in reserves The

cumulative post acquisition movements are adjusted against fH n2j
the carrying amount of the investment When the Groups

share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest

in the associate including any other unsecured receivables

the Group does not recognise further losses unless it has

incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its

associates are eliminated to the extent of the Groups interest

in the associates Unrealised losses are also eliminated

unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of

the asset transferred Accounting policies of associates have Si fF
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group
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Consolidation continued I9R

iv Associates continued iv

Dilution gains and losses in associates are recognised in the

consolidated income statement

In the Companys balance sheet the investments in

associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment

losses Note 2n The results of associates are accounted I42n
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable

Jointly controlled entities t2J

jointly controlled entity is an entity in which the Group has

joint control over its economic activity established under

contractual arrangement The Groups investments in jointly

controlled entities includes goodwill net of any accumulated

Impairment loss identified on acquisition

The Groups interests in jointly controlled entities are

accounted for by the equity method of accounting based on

the audited financial statements or management accounts

of the jointly controlled entities The Groups share of its

jointly controlled entities post acquisition profits or losses

is recognised in the consolidated income statement and

its share of post-acquisition movements is adjusted against

the carrying amount of the investment When the Groups

share of losses in jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds

its interest in that entity including any other unsecured

receivables the Group does not recognise further losses

unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on

behalf of the jointly controlled entity

The Group recognises the portion of gains or losses on

the sale of assets by the Group to the joint venture that it

is attributable to the other venturers The Group does not

recognise its share of profits or losses from the joint venture

that result from the Groups purchase of assets from the joint

venture until it resells the assets to an independent party

However loss on the transaction is recognised immediately

if the loss provides evidence of reduction in the net

realisable value of current assets or an impairment loss

In the Companys balance sheet the investments in jointly

controlled entities are stated at cost less provision for

impairment losses Note 2n The results of jointly controlled tf42n
entities are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES continued

Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in manner consistent with the IjfiFI1M
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker

CODM The 00DM who is responsible for allocating resources

and assessing performance of the operating segments hOs been

identified as the office of the General Manager that makes strategic

decisions

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the

Groups entities are measured using the currency of the

primary economic environment in which the entity operates

the functional currency The financial statements are

presented in Chinese Renminbi RMB which is the

functional and presentation currency of the Company and

the Groups entities

ii Transactions and balances
ii

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the

functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at

the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and

losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and

from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary I-I-I
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in the income statement except when deferred in

other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges

or qualifying net investment hedges

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings

and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income IJ J1Aai
statement within finance income or costs
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POLICIES continued

Revenue recognition and sales in advance of

carriage

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable for the sale of goods and the provision of services in

the ordinary course of the Groups activities Revenue is shown

net of business taxes or value-added taxes returns rebates and 1U
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can

be reliably measured it is probable that future economic benefits

will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of iU fl1 frtfl fiP

the Groups activities as described below The amount of revenue

is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies Ii 1A

relating to the sale have been resolved The Group bases its

estimates on historical results taking into consideration the type Ij

of customer the type of transaction and the specifics of each

arrangement

The Group operates frequent flyer programmes that provide travel 2I

awards to programme members based on accumulated miles

portion of passengers revenue attributable to the award of frequent ij A1

flyer benefits is deferred and recognised when the miles have been

redeemed or have expired

Traffic revenues $A
Passenger cargo and mail revenues are recognised as traffic

revenues when the transportation services are provided The

value of sold but unused tickets is recognised as sgles in

advance of carriage SlAG

ii Ground service income ii

Revenues from the provision of ground services are

recognIsed when the services are rendered

iii Tour operation revenues iii

Revenues from tour and travel services and other travel

related services are recognised when the services are tlA
rendered

iv Cargo handling income iv W1A
Revenues from the provision of cargo handling income are

recognised when the service are rendered
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES continued

Revenue recognition and safes in advance of

carriage continued

Commission income 4.tItA

Commission income represents amounts earned from other

carriers in respect of sales made by the Group on their

behalf and is recognised in the income statement upon

ticket sales

vi Other revenue vi hLX
Revenues from other operating businesses including

income derived from the provision of freight forwarding are

recognised when the services are rendered

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value

where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be

received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised

in the income statement over the period necessary to match them

with the costs that they are intended to compensate

Government grants relating to property plant and equipment are lj

included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants

and are credited to the income statement on straight-line basis

over the expected lives of the related assets

Maintenance and overhaul costs icz
In respect of aircraft and engines under operating leases the

Group has obligations to fulfill certain return conditions under the

leases Provision for the estimated cost of these return condition fl 1-1-k
checks is made on straight line basis over the term of the leases

In respect of aircraft and engines owned by the Group or

held under finance leases overhaul costs are capitalised as

component of property plant and equipment and are depreciated

over the appropriate maintenance cycles Note 2l t2l

All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the income

statement as and when incurred
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POLICIES continued

Interest income I1tIX

Interest income is recognised on time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method When loan and receivable is impaired

the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount ff fll1 ii-

being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original

effective interest rate of the instrument and continues unwinding

the discount as interest income Interest income on impaired loan

and receivables are recognised using the original effective interest

rate

Borrowing costs 1P
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying

asset including the interest attributable to loans for advance

payments used to finance the acquisition of aircraft are capitalised

during the period of time that is required to complete and

prepare the asset for its intended use Other borrowing costs are

expensed

Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax 21tZ fl Tfl

Tax is recognised in the income statement except to the extent

that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income ijII
or directly in equity In this case the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the

tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet

date in the jurisdictions where the Company and its subsidiaries

associates and jointly controlled entities operate and generate

taxable income Management periodically evaluates positions

taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable 5TtDfl
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions

where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to

the tax authorities

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability method on

temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and fl1

liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements ilf1

However deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise

from the initial recognition of goodwill and deferred income tax is .i It

not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or

liability in transaction other than business combination that at

the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable ij

profit or loss Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws

that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance Ij
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred

income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is

settled
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POLICIES continued

Current and deferred tax continued

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable

that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising TI fl /T LT TI

on investments in subsidiaries associates and jointly controlled

entities except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary ij 101 fl II

difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition

over the fair value of the Groups share of the net identifiable

assets of the acquired subsidiary associate or jointly

controlled entity at the date of acquisition Goodwill on otj

acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets

Goodwill on acquisition of associates and jointly controlled

entities is included in investments in associates and

investments in jointly controlled entities and is tested

for impairment as part of the overall balances Separately

recognised goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually tlj
or whenever there is an indication of impairment and carried

at cost less accumulated impairment losses Impairment

losses on goodwill are not reversed Gains and losses on the

disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill

relating to the entity sold

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the

purpose of impairment testing The allocation is made to

those cash generating units or Groups of cash-generating

units according to the identified operating segments that are fiti

expected to benefit from the business combination in which filt
the goodwill arose

ii Computer software costs ii 4it

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on

the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use

the specific software These costs are amortised using the

straight line method over their estimated useful lives of

years costs associated with developing or maintaining

computer software programs are recognised as expense

when incurred
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POLICIES continued

Deferred pilot recruitment costs

Deferred pilot recruitment costs represent the cost bore by the

Group in connection with securing certain minimum period of ittL
employment of pilots and are amortised on straight line basis

over the anticipated beneficial period of five years starting from the A2lE
pilot joins the Group

Property plant and equipment pJ

Property plant and equipment is recognised initially at cost which tl
comprises purchase price and any directly attributable costs of

bringing the assets to the condition for their intended use

Where parts of an item of property plant and equipment have

different useful lives the cost of that item is allocated on

reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated

separately

When each major aircraft overhaul is performed its cost is

recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property

plant and equipment and is depreciated over the appropriate

maintenance cycles Components related to airframe overhaul

cost are depreciated on straight-line basis over to 7.5 years

Components related to engine overhaul costs are depreciated

between each overhaul period using the ratio of actual flying

hours and estimated flying hours between overhauls equivalent to

approximately to years Upon completion of an overhaul any

remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous overhaul is

derecognised and charged to the income statement

Except for components related to overhaul costs the depreciation 11 t1

method of which has been described in the preceding paragraph

other depreciation of property plant and equipment is calculated

using the
straight-line

method to write down their costs or revalued

amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as

follows

Owned and finance leased aircraft and engines 15 to 20 years 520
Other fight equipment including rotables 10 years ThQ
Buildings 15 to 45 years 545
Other property plant and equipment to 20 years tIt4i 520

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and

adjusted if appropriate at each balance sheet date An assets

carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable

amount if the assets carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount
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Property plant and equipment continued 1Jt

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the

proceeds with the assets carrying amount and are recognised in Ijrj
the income statement

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction

and equipment pending installation This includes the costs of TIij
construction or acquisition and interest capitalised No depreciation

is provided on construction in progress until the asset is completed

and ready for use

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries fJ
associates jointly controlled entities and non-

financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or which are not yet

available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested

for impairment at least annually or whenever there is indication of Ij
impairment Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever .VVV
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying

amount may not be recoverable An impairment loss is recognised 1I 3Jil3 1ff ffJ5
for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds

its recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the higher of i1IH
an assets fair value less costs to sell and value in use For the

purposes of assessing impairment assets are Grouped at the

lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows

cash-generating units Non-financial assets other than goodwill

that have suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal

of the impairment at each balance sheet date

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when

their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through

sale transaction rather than through continuing use and sale

is considered highly probable They are stated at the lower of

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and are classified as

assets held for sale

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent acquisition costs of land use rights

less accumulated amortisation Amortisation is provided over the

lease period of the land use rights on straight line basis

Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft

Advanced payments on acquisition of aircraft represent payments

to aircraft manufacturers to secure deliveries of aircraft in future

years including attributable finance costs and are included in non-

current assets The balance is transferred to property plant and

equipment upon delivery of the aircraft
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES continued

Flight equipment spare parts

Flight equipment spare parts are stated at the lower of cost and

net realisable value Cost is determined using the weighted average Ij

method The cost of
flight equipment spare parts comprises the

purchase price net of discounts freight charges duty and value

added tax and other miscellaneous charges Net realisable value

is the estimated selling price of the flight equipment in the ordinary

course of business less applicable selling expenses

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method less provision for impairment provision for

impairment of trade receivables is established when there is

objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all V4
amounts due according to the

original
terms of the receivables 4IjP jEiM

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor probability that the

debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and

default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators .4ti $-itj4I
that the trade receivable is impaired The amount of the provision

is the difference between the assets carrying amount and the Ij
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the

original
effective interest rate The carrying amount of the assets is

reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount tlfff

of the loss is recognised in the income statement When trade

receivable is uncollectible it is written off against the provision

account for trade receivables Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited in the income statement

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand deposits held at

call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with lj 41 Qlk1

original maturities of three months or less

Trade payables frfU

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that

have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from

suppliers Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if IjI
payment is due within one year or less or in the normal operating

cycle of the business if longer If not they are presented as non-

current liabilities

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method
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Borrowings 13

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction

costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised

cost any differences between the proceeds net of transaction

costs and the redemption value is recognised in the income

statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective

interest method

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group

has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at

least 12 months after the balance sheet date in which case such

borrowings are classified as non current liabilities

Provisions 11

Provisions are recognised when the Group has present legal or 2l ti fl
constructive obligation as result of past events it is probable that ff

1111 iit

an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and 4ff
the amount can be reliably estimated

Where there are number of similar obligations the likelihood

that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by

considering the class of obligations as whole provision is

recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any fl

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures lkfl flAt
expected to be required to settle the obligation using pre tax

rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value

of money and the risks specific to the obligation The increase

in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest

expense

For the contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting

the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits iJ
expected to be received under it the present obligation under the

contract is recognised and measured as provision
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POLICIES continued

Leases

Group company is the lessee

Finance leases

The Group eases certain property plant and equipment

Leases of property plant and equipment where the Group

has acquired substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership are classified as finance leases Finance leases

are capitalised at the leases commencement at the lower of

the fair value of the leased property and the present value of

the minimum lease payments

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and

finance charges The corresponding rental obligations net of Ijij
finance charges are included in other short-term and other

long-term payables The interest element of the finance cost ij

is charged to the income statement over the lease period

so as to produce constant periodic rate of interest on the Ij Ij

remaining balance of the liability for each period Leased

assets are depreciated using straight-line basis over their

expected useful lives to residual values

For sale and leaseback transactions resulting in finance

lease differences between sales proceeds and net book

values are deferred and amortised over the minimum lease

terms

Operating leases

Leases in which significant portion of the risks and rewards

of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as

operating leases Payments made under operating leases net iiW lfl

of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to the

income statement on straight-line
basis over the period of

the lease

For sale and leaseback transactions resulting
in an operating IJ

lease differences between sales proceeds and net book

values are recognised immediately in the income statement

except to the extent that any profit or loss is compensated

for by future lease payments at above or below market value

then the profit or loss is deferred and amortised over the

period for which the asset is expected to be used
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Leases continued

ii Group company is the lessor ii

Assets leased out under operating leases are included in

property plant and equipment in the balance sheet They

are depreciated over their expected useful lives on basis

consistent with similar property plant and equipment Rental

income is recognised on straight-line basis over the lease

term

Retirement benefits

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement schemes

regarding pension and medical benefits for employees organised

by the municipal governments of the relevant provinces The

contributions to the schemes are charged to the income statement

as and when incurred

In addition the Group provides retirees with certain post- il7

retirement benefits including retirement subsidies transportation

subsidies social function activity subsidies as well as other welfare Ij ij7cij
The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined

benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit

obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan

assets together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains Ij 5-j-
or losses and past service costs The defined benefit obligation

is calculated annually using the projected unit credit method

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined

by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest Ij
rates of government bonds that are denominated in the currency ilj O%
in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity

approximating to the terms of the related pension liability Actuarial ajZtaJ
gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes

in actuarial assumptions in excess of the greater of 10% of the

value of plan assets or 10% of the defined benefit obligation are

charged or credited to the income statement over the employees

expected average remaining working lives

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the income

statement unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional

on the employees remaining in service for specified period of

time the vesting period In this case the past service costs are

amortised on straight-line
basis over the vesting period
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Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in the

balance sheet at fair value on the date derivative contract is

entered into and are subsequently remoasured at their fair value

The accounting for subsequent changes in fair value depends on tT
whether the derivative is designated as hedging instrument and

if so the nature of the item being hedged

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the

relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items as

well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking 7l
various hedge transactions The Group also documents its

assessment both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis of

whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are

highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of

hedged items

Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge

accounting are accounted for as trading instruments and any

unrealised gains or losses being changes in fair value of the

derivatives are recognised in the income statement immediately

changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and

qualify as fair value hedges and that are highly effective are

recorded in the income statement along with any changes in the

fair value of the hedged assets or liabilities that are attributable to

the hedged risk

Derivative financial instruments that qualify for hedge accounting

and which are designated as specific hedge of the variability in -1-

cash flows of highly probable forecast transaction are accounted

for as follows

the effective portion of any change in fair value of the

derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in

equity Where the forecast transaction or firm commitment

results in the recognition of an asset or liability the gains uifl4

and losses previously deferred in equity are included in

the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability

Otherwise the cumulative gain or loss on the derivative

financial instrument is removed from equity and recognised

in the income statement in the same period during which the

hedged forecast transaction affects net profit or loss

ii the ineffective portion of any change in fair value is ii

recognised in the income statement immediately
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Derivative financial instruments continued MaiI
The full fair value of hedging derivative is claaaified as non- iSPflRfi 2li

current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged

items is more than 12 months and as ourrent asset or liability

when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 t121 itTJ-tTh1I
months Trading derivatives are classified as current asset or Ii iFt13i
liability

When hedging instrument expires or is sold or when hedge 114

no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting any cumulative 1fl11tM-1JI45l4 frfl
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and MftJ1aQt4
is recognised in the income statement when the committed or 14l45t4tjrM4fl4
forecast transaction ultimately occurs When committed or 1T3Jl4
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur the cumulative It ff

gain or loss that was recorded in equity is immediately transferred

to the income statement

aa Available-for-sale financial assets aa æJ4$M
Investments in securities other than subsidiaries associates and 1tWij
jointly controlled entities being held for non-trading purposes are 53J
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are recognised 44 41
on the trade date the date on which the Group commits to Afiliti4g
purchase or sell the asset Investments are initially recognised

at tair value plus transaction costs At each balance sheet date 41I144itI 44
the fair value is remeasured with any resulting gain or loss being M4t
recognised directly in other comprehensive income except for t4
impairment losses When these investments are derecognised the 4ff4444 4ft4444 jj444

cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly in equity is A4iJ41

recognised in the income statement

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is $1 44444114 4444444
objective evidence that financial asset is impaired In the case

of equity securities classified as available for sale significant 544

or prolonged decline in the fair value of the securities below its 44tfl4444444l4 414
cost is considered an indicator that the securities are impaired

If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets 4446 ut 41
the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the

acquisition cost and the current fair value less any impairment

loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income lIt 44441414
statement is removed from equity and recognised in the income

statement Impairment losses recognised in the income statement 444ij4444
on equity instruments are not reversed through the income

statement

ab Dividend distribution ab Ij

Dividend distribution to the companys shareholders is recognised 53 jlji3 444 114 014411534

as liability in the financial statements in the period in which the t4ij44211i
dividends are approved by the companys shareholders

ac Share Capital ac fl

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly 144444444
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as deduction net of tax from the proceeds 4444444ljj
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group activIties expose it to variety of financial risks

market risk including currency risk fair value interest rate risk cash ft clj lj

flow interest rate risk and fuel price risk credit risk and liquidity

risk The Groups overall risk management programme focuses

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Groups financial performance

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage risk

exposures whenever management consider necessary

Risk management is carried out by central treasury department

the Group Treasury under policies approved by the Board The ft sftiIMv

Group Treasury identifies evaluates and hedges financial risks in

close cooperation with the Group operating units The overall

risk management strategies as well as written policies covering 4$I cljN
specific areas such as foreign exchange risk interest rate JttJ

risk credit risk use of derivative financial instruments and non

derivative financial instruments were approved by the Board

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates its business in many countries and

territories The Group generates its revenue in different

currencies and its foreign currency liabilities at the end of

the period are much higher than its foreign currency assets

The Group major liability item resulting from purchases 7$
and leases of aircraft is mainly priced and settled in foreign

currencies primarily US dollars The Group is exposed to

currency risks from fluctuations in various foreign currency

exchange rates against RMB

RMB is not freely convertible currency and is regulated

by the PRO government Limitation on foreign exchange IJflI
transaction imposed by the PRO government could cause

future exchange rates to vary significantly from current or

historical exchange rates

In addition fluctuations in exchange rates will affect lLbI

the Group future costs for purchases of aircraft flight lft11-

equipment and aviation fuel and take off and landing

charges in foreign airports

The Group entered into certain foreign exchange forward

option contracts to manage part of these foreign currency

risks Details of foreign currency forward contracts are

disclosed in Note 40b to the financial statements
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Financial risk factors continued

Foreign currency risk continued

The following table details the Groups and the Companys

exposure at the balance sheet date to major currency risk

Group

2012 2011

USD Euro JPY USD Euro JPY

575

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

195 ATTC A9m
Trade and other receivables JI 1259043 156354 161020 $80O 121 646 i4014

Restfcted bank deposits and

short-term bank deposs 1608 9818 39124 9$02 243
Cash and cash

equivalents 7Z387 38115 30451 52O978 1q15 5425

Deposits relating to aircraft

under
operating leases 562199 54

Tradeandotherpayables 24604 t165 3355 448w 2781 276
Obligations under finance leases 8751982 6735i1 41 64316

Borrowings 31605345 1303433 i814

Currency derivatives at

notional value 364559

Net balance sheet
exposure 48O3166 204181 Z4944 44 569 6O42 167451

Company

2012 2011

USD Euro JPY USD Euro JPY

5t 7C 7C 575

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

19 AF Ah A9
Trade and other receivables 133769 60826 161020 04tTh 42 163 O6

Restncted bank deposfs and

short-term bank
deposits 1808 9818 39724 45 8O18 24631

Cash and cash
equivalents 263523 3431 30268 48763 7B38 1021

Deposits relafing to aircraft

under
operating leases 251411

Trade and other
payables 12154T4 254

Obligations
under finance leases 14 3%182 667351 1411 4M

Borrowings 25176398 303433 116 84
Currency derivatives at

notional value 364559 28684

Net balance sheet exposure 15fifi5 38095710 106075 740026 09022 16S76 59364
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Financial risk factors continued

Foreign currency risk continued

The following table indicates the approximate change

in the Groups profit and loss and other components of

consolidated equity in response to 1% appreciation of the

RMB against the following major currencies at the balance

sheet date

Group

2012 2011

Effect on Effect on

Effect on other Effect on other

profit components profit components

and loss of equity and loss of equity

1t

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOA1
US dollars 4$962 988 4O 797

Euro 42O4

Japanese Yen 7429 11 75

Company

2012 2011

Effect on Effect on

Effect on other Effect on other

profit components profit components

and loss of equity and loss of equity

1th

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOf5 e9
US dollars

Euro

Japanese Yen
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Financial risk factors continued

ii Interest rate risk
ii lJJt

The Groups interest-rate risk primarily arises from

borrowings and obligations under finance leases Borrowings

issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow i1Ii
interest-rate risk Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the

Group to fair value interest rate risk The interest rates and

terms of repayment of borrowings made to the Group and ij fif

interest rate swaps are disclosed in Notes 34 and 40a to 40a
the financial statements

To hedge against the variability in the cash flows arising from

change in market interest rates the Group has entered into

certain interest rate swaps to swap variable rates into fixed

rates

The following table details the interest rate profiles of the

Groups and the companys interest-bearing financial

instruments at the balance sheet date

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

AFi tFju
Floating rate instruments

Cash and cash equivalents 5Q79 85 611 890

Restricted bank deposits and

short-term bank deposits 1O9543 36P 68

Borrowings It354$7O 128516O31 2832
Obligation under finance

leases t7 47621 76
.k

885 4D8o
Interest rate swaps at

notional amount I559 774

14728683 39i62O34 335

127



CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2012 LLl

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Financial risk factors continued

ii Interest rate risk continued ii iiNL
Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

_14E
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

Fixed rate instruments

Borrowings

Interest rate swaps at

notional amount

The following table indicates the approximate change in the

Groups profit and loss and other components of equity ic

taking into the consideration of the interest rate swap if

interest rate had been 25 basis points higher with all other

variables held constant

2012 2011

Effect on Effect on

Effect on other Effect on other

profit components profit components

and loss of equity and loss of equity

ftf tt
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

1F56 Jt At
Floating rate instruments IjT

iii Fuel price risk iii

The Groups results of operations may be significantly

affected by fluctuations in fuel prices which is significant

expense component for the Group Aircraft fuel accounts for li1

36% of the Groups operating expenses 2011 37% 36% 37%

As at 31 December 2012 the Group had no open crude oil

option contracts and all the contracts signed in past years

had been settled before 31 December 2012 ITfltJ

For the year ended 31 December 2012 if fuel price had icBih
been 5% higher/lower with all other variables held constant fth I4 ic

excluding the impact of crude oil option contracts the

Groups fuel cost would have been RMB1 494 million higher/ f/ 5% 21 I% 2l

lower
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Financial risk factors continued

iv Credit risk iv

The Groups credit risk is primarily attributable to cash

and cash equivalents deposits and derivative financial

instruments with banks and financial institutions as well as

credit exposures to sales agents

significant portion of the Groups air tickets are sold by

sales agents participating in the Billing and Settlements

Plan BSP clearing system between airlines and sales

agents organised by the International Air Transportation

Association The balance due from BSP agents amounted

to approximately RMB812 million as at 31 December

2012 2011 approximately RMB756 million The credit A7.561
risk exposure to BSP and the remaining trade receivables

are maintained by the Group on an on-going basis and

the allowance for impairment of doubtful debts is within

managements expectations

The Groups cash management policy is to deposit cash

and cash equivalents mainly in state-owned banks and

other banks which are highly rated by international credit

rating companies The Group also deposits cash and cash 3fl

equivalents in an associate financial institution owned by its

holding company Note 47ciii The management does

not expect any loss to arise from non-performance by these

banks and the financial institution

Transactions in relation to derivative financial instruments

are only carried out with financial institutions of high credit

rating The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit

exposure to any one financial institution Management does

not expect any losses from non-performance by these

banks
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Financial risk factors continued

Liquidity risk

The Groups primary cash requirements have been for

day-to-day operations additions of and upgrades to

aircraft engines and flight equipment and payments on

related borrowings The Group finances its working capital

requirements through combination of funds generated

from operations bonds and bank loans both short and long

term The Group generally finances the acquisition of aircraft

through long-term finance leases or bank loans

The Group operates with working capital deficit As at 31

December 2012 the Groups net current liabilities amounted

to RMB35948 million 2011 RMB29679 million For the

year ended 31 December 2012 the Group recorded net 296.795f

cash inflow from operating activities of RMB1 2617 million .11

2011 inflow RMB13623 million net cash outflow from

investing activities and financing activities of RMB13963 126.174---
million 2011 outflow RMB12803 million and decrease 136.237t

in cash and cash equivalents of RMB1 349 million 2011

increaseofRMB82omilllon A13.49
1t

The Directors of the Company believe that cash from

operations and short and long term borrowings will be

sufficient to meet the Groups operating cash flow Due

to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses the

Groups treasury policy aims at maintaining flexibility in

funding by keeping credit lines available The Directors of

the Company believe that the Group has obtained sufficient 11fl$1
general credit facilities from PRC banks for financing future I1I342a

capital commitments and for working capital purposes see

Note 2a
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Financial risk factors continued

Liquidity risk continued tU
The table below analyses the Groups and the Companys

financial liabilities that will be settled into relevant maturity

groupings based on the remaining period at the balance

sheet to the contractual maturity date The amounts liJ Ttft

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash

flows Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying tL121
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant

Group

Less than Between Between

year and years and years Over years

tT
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

AtF Atf AflF

At31 December2012 ZEB
Borrowings 23L69O528 780344 84834 876551

Derivative financial instruments 1ZT5f 216895

Obligations
under finance leases 34 44 8685669 9027940

Trade and other payables f8Bl 66 36 988 566S

Provision for return condition checks

for aircraft under operating
lease 7345 99 t381893 64465

Other
long term liability 265QO 2988 16610 29629

Total 463275O fl1$ 511 1944324 1984 151

At31 December2011

Borrowings 1DS089 25 00

Derivativefinancial instruments 87 i941fl

Obligationsunderfinanceleases 0Ii 5fl4T 4482B
Trade and other payables 148 515 67 iO

Other
long term liability 24 703 50O95

Total 15340 597
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At31 December2011 LcH
Borrowings

Derivative financial Instruments

Obligations under finance leases

Trade and other payables

Other long term liability

Total

Over years

RMBOOO

AfF5c

21049778 4274259 6251534 6315543

504 122751 216895

2306694 2348170 6776545 7707677

18383799 71236 131913 58665

88081 586490 647745 440318

13852 14101 40694 46286

41842708 7294256 13971182 14785384

15480104 7.656356 4803.315 3630257

1099 1987 110.487 219411

2278734 2298934 6190.003 6690.780

13905.802 71410 80041 67210

88.004 88.784 239055 258395

31753743 10117471 11422901 10866053

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Financial risk factors continued J.I@I

Liquidity risk continued J11

Company

Less than Between Between

year and years and years

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

At31 December2012 E--8
Borrowings

Derivative financial Instruments

Obligations under finance leases

Trade and other payables

Provision for return condition checks 5t1
for aircraft under operating lease

Other long term liability

Total
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Capital risk management

The Groups objectives when managing capital are to safeguard

the Groups ability to continue as going concern in order to

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders ij

and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of

capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure the Group may

adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt it1J
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt ratio which is

calculated as total liabilities divided by total assets The debt ratio

at3l December2012 and 2011 wereasfollows E--ll

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOOAF
Total liabilities

Total assets

Debt ratio

Fair value estimation of financial assets and

liabilities

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value

by valuation method The different levels have been defined as

follows

Quoted prices unadjusted in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities level

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level that

are observable forthe asset or liability either directly that is

as prices or indirectly that is derived from prices level

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data that is unobservable inputs level flPA
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Fair value estimation of financial assets and

liabilities continued

The following table presents the Groups assets and liabilities

that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2012 and 31 Lft It
December 2011

Group

Level Level Level Total

RMBOOO RMBODO RMBOOO RMBOOOA5
At31 December2012 -t-
Assets

Derivatives financial instruments

Forward foreign exchange

contracts Note 40b ti40b 18074 18074

Available for-sale financial assets 1955 2327$ 234690

Total 1955 18074 232735 252164

Liabilities

DerIvatives financial instruments IA
Interest rate swaps Note 40a 140a 2951J05 295005

Forward foreign exchange

contracts Note 40b 140b 45146 4546

Total 340151 340151

Group

LJ
Level Level Level Total

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOir
At31 December2011 W--H
Assets

Derivatives financial instruments

Interest rate swaps Note 40a 1t440a
Forward foreign exchange

contracts Note 40b f40b
Available for sale financial assets

Total

Liabilities

Derivatives financial instruments

Interest rate swaps Note 40a Ij-Jt4
Forward foreign exchange

contracts Note 40b 1140

Total
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

Fair value estimation of financial assets and

liabilities continued

Company

Level Level Level Total

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

AFi AF5 AF5
As at 31 December2012

Assets

Derivatives financial instruments

Forward foreign exchange

contracts Note 40b 1t40b
Available-for-sale financial assets

Total

Liabilities

Derivatives financial instruments

Interest rate swaps Note 40a ff4

Forward foreign exchange

contracts Note 40b i140b

Total

Company

Level Level Level Total

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

A1Y Afl9 A9 AflTb

As at 31 December2011

Assets

Derivatives financial instruments

Interest rate swaps Note 40a liiJft40a
Forward foreign exchange

contracts Note 40b 4t4ob
Available-for-sale financial assets 2fl557Ar-
Total 21

Liabilities

Derivatives financial instruments

Interest rate swaps Note 40a tt40a 2709
Forward foreign exchange

contracts Note 40b 140b

Total 94
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT contInued

Fair value estimation of financial assets and

liabilities continued

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets

is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date Ij
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and

regularly available from an exchange dealer broker industry

Group pricing service or regulatory agency and those prices

represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on

an arm length basis The quoted market price used for financial

assets held by the Group is the current bid price

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in

an active market for example over the counter derivatives

is determined by using valuation techniques These valuation

techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is

available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates

If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are SI

observable these instruments are included in level of the above

table

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data the instrument is included in level

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments

include

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar

instruments

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the

present value of the estimated future cash flows based on

observable yield curves

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is

determined using forward exchange rates at the balance

sheet date with the resulting value discounted back to

present value

Other techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis iiiJ

are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial

instruments
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND iiift
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the financial statements are

continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors including expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances The Group makes estimates and

assumptions concerning the future The resulting accounting estimates

will by definition seldom equal the related actual results The estimates

and assumptions that have significant risk of causing material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year are discussed below

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises traffic revenues in accordance with the

accounting policy stated in Note 2e to the financial statements

Unused tickets are recognised in traffic revenues based on current 3lj tftJA fft

estimates Management annually evaluates the balance in the SlAG 1IJ

and records any adjustments which can be material in the period

the evaluation is completed

These adjustments result from differences between the estimates WA
of certain revenue transactions and the timing of recognising

revenue for any unused air tickets and the related sales price

and are impacted by various factors including complex pricing

structure and interline agreements throughout the industry which

affect the timing of revenue recognition

Frequent flyer programme 1tI
The Group operates frequent flyer programmes that provide travel 2E Si fi
awards to programme members based on accumulated miles

portion of passengers revenue attributable to the award of frequent fl

flyer benefits is deferred and recognised when the miles have been

redeemed or have expired The deferment of revenue is estimated

based on historical trends of redemptions which is then used to

project the expected utilisation of these benefits and estimated fair

values of the unredeemed miles Different judgements or estimates

could significantly affect the estimated provision for frequent flyer

programmes and the results of operations

Provision for costs of return condition checks

for aircraft under operating leases

Provision for the estimated costs of return condition checks for

aircraft under operating leases is made based on the estimated

costs for such return condition checks and taking into account

anticipated flying hours flying cycle and time frame between each 1t
overhaul These judgments or estimates are based on historical

experience on returning similar airframe models actual costs lk2tjf

incurred and aircraft status Different judgments or estimates Ij
could significantly affect the estimated provision for costs of return

condition checks
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS continued

Retirement benefits

The Group operates and maintains defined retirement benefit

plans which provide retirees with benefits including transportation

subsidies social activity subsidies as weil as other weifare The tlj
cost of providing the aforementioned benefits in the defined

retirement benefit plan is actuarialiy determined and recognised

over the employees service period by utitsing various actuarial

assumptions and using the projected unit credit method in

accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2y to the

financiai statements These assumptions include without hmitation

the selection of discount rate annuai rate of increase of per capita

benefit payment and employees turnover rate The discount rate is

based on managements review of government bonds The annual

rate of increase of benefit payments is based on the general local

economic conditions The employees turnover rate is based on

historical trends of the Group Additionai information regarding

the retirement benefit plans is disclosed in Note 38 to the financial

statements

Deferred income tax

In assessing the amount of deferred tax assets that need to be

recognised in accordance with the accounting policy stated in

Note to the financial statements the Group considers future

taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning -j-lj

strategies in the event that the Groups estimates of projected

future taxable income and benefits from avaiiable tax strategies are

changed or changes in current tax reguiations are enacted that

would impact the timing or extent of the Groups ability to utilise

the tax benefits of net operating loss carry forwards in the future

adjustments to the recorded amount of net deferred tax assets

and taxation expense wouid be made

Provision for flight equipment spare parts

Provision for flight equipment spare parts is made based on the

difference between the carrying amount and the net realisable

vaiue The net realisabie value is estimated based on current

market condition historical experience and Companys future

operation plan for the aircraft and related spare parts The net

reahsable vaiue may be adjusted significantly
due to the change

of market condition and the future plan for the aircraft and related

spare parts
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ittJftGI
JUDGMENTS continued

Depreciation of property plant and equipment P8 MaSJtJFW

Depreciation of components related to airframe and engine

overhaul costs are based on the Groups historical experience

with similar airframe and engine models and taking into account

anticipated overhauls costs timeframe between each overhaul ttt iI at It

ratio of actual flying hours and estimated flying hours between

overhauls Different judgments or estimates could significantly tfli
affect the estimated depreciation charge and the results of

operations

Except for components related to airframe and engine overhaul

costs other property plant and equipment are depreciated on

straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives after taking into 115 3It tC
account the estimated residual value The useful lives are based on

the Groups historical expenence with similar assets and taking into

account anticipated technological changes The Group reviews Ijt5
the estimated useful lives of assets regularly in order to determine i3t

the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any

reporting period The depreciation expense for future periods is

adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates

Estimated impairment of property plant and M4M
equipment and intangible assets

The Group tests whether property plant and equipment and

intangible assets have been impaired in accordance with the l5M tTh.i
accounting policy stated in Note 2k and Note 2m to the financial jj fftf 3J

statements The recoverable amounts of cash generating units

have been determined based on fair value less cost to sell and

value in-use calculations Value-in use calculations use cash flow %L5 .fl Ifli

projections based on financial budgets approved by management tAS $t 5jit
and certain key assumptions such as passenger-kilometres yield 5t PM
level load factor aircraft utilisation rate and discount rates etc
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REVENUES

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of civil aviation

Including the provision of passenger cargo mail delivery tour operations

and other extended transportation services

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Traffic revenues

Passenger

Cargo and mall

Tour operation income

Ground service income

Cargo handling income

Commission income

Others

Notes

Before January 2012 the major elements of the Groups revenues were subject

to business tax levied at rates of 3/ or 5% The Group revenues from the 5%S
provision of international transportation services are exempted from business tax

from January 2010 pursuant to the notice of exemption of business tax on the

provision of international transportation services Ce Shui No lointly issued tt

by the Ministry of Finance MoP and the State Administration of Taxation SAT

Pursuant to the notice of the pilot programme for the transformation of

transportation and certain modern service industries in Shanghai from business ..E

tax BT to Value Added Tax VAT Cai Shui 120111 No 111 issued by M0F f1r1Xf% 11 11 .ff
and SAT traffic revenue of the Company and subsidiaries located in Shanghai H%
and other revenues including ground service income cargo handling income tfjJ

commission income and part of others generated in Shanghai are subjected to t1A /o6/
VAT levied at rates of 11% or 6% from January2012 instead of BT

Pursuant to the notice of the pilot programme for the transformation of

transportation and certain modern service industries from BT to VAT in Beijing and

other eight provinces/cities Cai Shui No 71 issued by M0F and SAT traffic

revenue and other revenues including ground service income cargo handling

income commission income and pad of others generated by subsidiaries located tih tJ8
in Beijing and other eight provinces/cities scoped in the notice are subjected f%%A
to VAT levied at rates of 119/ or 6/a with different effective date ranging from

September 2012 to December 2012 fl8fhd9

The VAT input generated from purchase of fuel take off and landing services ttff
food and beverages property plant and equipment and certain BT paid by the Mff $t1
branches of the Company outside above notice scope can be used to deduct the ftt t/ fLlAfftf
VAT output generated from taxable revenue

The traffic revenue and other revenue generated in other locations of China will

continue to be subject to business tax at rates of 3% or 5%

As result of the implementation of aforementioned reform from BT to VAT

the relevant portion of the Group operations have been changed to VAT instead tt
of BT as they were in prior year revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 1lAJ-1A%2954
December 2012 decreased by RMB2 954 million and operating expenses of the tffJ-9/JA31 32ft iJ ttj
Group decreased by RMB3 132 million resulting in an increase in profit before A%fi 781
income tax of RMB1 78 million for the year ended 31 December 2012

The business tax incurred and offset against the above Groups revenues for the Hj..LJ GfM..Lttit

year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to approximately RMB67O million 2011 Aff9/JA%l6 7of5 4iA
approximately RMB1 803 million

l18
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OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Group

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Other operating income Note

Government subsidies fi t119626 1061451

Note

Government subsidies represent subsidies of RMB353 million 2011 RMB78

million based on certain amount of tax paid granted by governments to the Group Ao.7831
and subsidies granted by various local governments to encourage the Group to

operate certain routes to cities where these governments are located

There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies related to subsidies that 31 LLl
have been recognised for the year ended 31 December 2012

SEGMENT INFORMATION

CODM office of the General Manager reviews

the Groups internal reporting in order to assess lY 13k

performance and allocate resources

The Group has one reportable operating segment reported as

airline transportation operations which comprises the provision

of passenger cargo mail delivery ground service and cargo

handling income

Other services including primarily tour operations air catering and tJlI
other miscellaneous services are not included within the airline

transportation operations segment as their internal reports are

separately provided to the 00DM The results of these operations

are included in the other segments column

Inter-segment transactions are entered into under normal

commercial terms and conditions that would be available to

unrelated third parties

In accordance with IFRS segment disclosure has been

presented in manner that is consistent with the information used

by the Groups 00DM The Groups 00DM monitors the results

assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment based 1l
on financial results prepared under the PRO Accounting Standards

for Business Enterprises the PRO Accounting Standards which

differ from IFRS in certain aspects The amount of each material

reconciling items from the Groups reportable segment revenue lJ7f4
and profit or loss arising from different accounting policies are set t7c
out in Note 7c below
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SEGMENT INFORMATION continued

CODM office of the General Manager reviews

the Groups internal reporting in order to

assess performance and allocate resources II
continued

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2012 are as _h iEJ

follows

Airline

transportation Other

operations segments Elimination Unallocated Total

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

A9 At A19 1t
Reportable segment revenue

from external customers 8127233 Z44O17 8556950

Inter-segment
sales 261631 261631

Reportable segment revenue 83127233 27O3648 261631 85569250

Reportable segment proft

before income tax 3176660 104938 234058 3515656

Other segment rnformation

DeprecIation
and amortisation 7892045 114430 80064Th

Capita expenditure 1849O8O1 1121Z 1867013

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2011 are as Lhl

follows

Airline

transportation
Other

operations segments Elimination Unallocated Total

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMB000 RMBOOO

A9Tc AUflt AWfl flF AF
Reportable segment revenue

from external customers

Inter-segment sales

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment profit

before income tax

Other segment information

Depreciation
and amortisation

Impairment losses

Capital expenditure
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SEGMENT INFORMATION continued 4j
CODM office of the General Manager reviews

the Groups internal reporting in order to

assess performance and allocate resources 1k
continued

The segment assets and habilities as at 31 December 2012 and 31

December 2011 are as follows Ll

Airline

transportation Other

operations segments Elimination Unallocated Total

rii
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOUO RMBOOO RMBOOOhF 9t

At31 December2012 -l-
Reportable segment assets t46166 62 89j89 1486321 12O96247

Reportable segment liabilities 3ll1 94ó4 j4OÆ 691 B9 959t9837
ii

At31 December2011 -EH-R
Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilities Itfi .. i2e wo

Unallocated assets primarily represent investments in associates

and
lointly controlled entities and available-for-sale financial assets 31

Unallocated results primarily represent the share of results of

associates and lointly controlled entities and also the gain arisen from

available-for sale financial assets

The Groups business segments operate in

three main geographical areas even though

they are managed on worldwide basis fl

The Groups revenues by geographical are analysed based on the

following criteria

Traffic revenue from services within the PRO excluding the ITh
Hong Kong Special AdmInistrative Region Hong Kong IJ
Macau Special Administrative Region Macau and Taiwan tt ic
collectively known as Regional is classified as domestic 3i
operations Traffic revenue generated from international

routes excluding regional routes is classified as international

operations
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SEGMENT INFORMATION continued

The Groups business segments operate in three 111

main geographical areas even though they are

managed on worldwide basis continued fl

Revenue from ticket handling services ground services

cargo handling service and other miscellaneous services are

classified on the basis of where the services are performed

Group

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Domestic the PRC excluding Hong Kong

Macau and Taiwan

Regional Hong Kong Macau and Taiwan

International

Total

The major revenue-earning assets of the Group are its

aircraft all of which are registered in the PRC Majority of

the Groups other assets are also located in the PRO Since

the Groups aircraft are deployed flexibly across Its route

network there is no suitable basis of allocating such assets

and the related liabilities by geography and hence segment

assets and capital expenditure by geography have not been

presented

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue 2ItX
profit assets and liabilities to the consolidated

figures as reported in the consolidated financial

statements

Group

2012 2011

Note RMBOOO RMBOOO

1E AF
Revenue IA

Reportable segment revenue

Reclassification of business tax and

expired sales in advance of carriage

Consolidated revenue
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SEGMENT INFORMATION continued

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue ItIA Ii51
profit assets and liabilities to the consolidated

figures as reported in the consolidated financial

statements continued

Group

2012 2011

Note RMBOOO RMBOOO

tf4

Profit before income tax

Reportable segment profit

Difference in depreciation charges for 71J
aircraft and engines due to different

depreciation lives ii

Provision for post-retirement benefits iii

Others

Consolidated profit before income tax %ij

Group

2012 2011W-
Note RMBOOO RMBOOO

Assets

Reportable segment assets

Difference in depreciation charges for

aircraft and engines due to different

depreciation lives ii wi oo

Difference in intangible asset goodwill

arising from the acquisition of

Shanghai Airlines iv 2j60665 760 665

Others 42518

Consolidated total assets 123818563 4Th88E
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SEGMENT INFORMATION continued KJJ
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue I5IA 1liF
profit assets and liabilities to the consolidated

figures as reported in the consolidated financial

statements continued

Group

2012 2011

Note RMBOOO RMBOOO

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities 959rI$7
Provision for post retirement benefits iii 349I
Others

Consolidated total liabilities 99265

Notes

The difference represents the different classification of business tax

and expired sales in advance of carriage under PRO Accounting

Standards and IFRS

ii The difference is attributable to the differences in the useful lives ii

and residual values of aircraft and engines adopted for depreciation fft

purpose in prior years under PRC Accounting Standards and IFRS

Despite the depreciation policies of these assets have been unified

under IFRS and the PRO Accounting Standards in recent years

the changes were applied prospectively as changes in accounting

estimates which results in the differences in the carrying amounts itt
and related depreciation changes under IFRS and PRO Accounting itt tf
Standards flIjT

iii In accordance with the PRO Accounting Standards certain t$
employees post-retirement

benefits are recognised upon payment

Under IFRS such post-retirement benefits under defined benefit

schemes are required to be recognised over the employees service

period using proected unit credit method

iv The determination of the fair values of the acquisition costs and iv

identifiable assets and liabilities of Shanghai Airlines acquired is

different under IFRS and the PRO Accounting Standards which

results in difference in the intangibles/goodwill recognised arising from

the acquisition
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GAIN ON FAIR VALUE MOVEMENTS OF
DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Group

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Gain arising from fair value movements of

derivatives financial instruments

Interest rate swap and forward foreign

exchange contracts Note 40a I1440a

Crude oil option contracts

WAGES SALARIES AND BENEFITS

Group

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOOA9
Wages salaries bonus and allowances 7%OO7883

Employee welfare and benefits 428191

Defined contribution retirement schemes

Note 38a 1262017 14 16

Post-retirement benefits Note 38b f438b 581175 02

Staff housing fund Note 39a f39a 67336 44C74

Staff housing allowance Note 39b f39b t7141 875

1OO59O4 64S54
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WAGES SALARIES AND BENEFITS continued

Emoluments of directors and supervisors

Details of the emoluments paid to the Companys directors and

supervisors are as follows

2012

Salaries and

Allowance Bonus Total

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOAT

Total

Executive Directors

Liu Shaoyong

Ma Xulun

Xu Zhao

Gu Jiadan

Li Yangmin

Tang Bing

Luo Zhuping

Independent non-executive

Directors

Liu Keya

Wu Xiaogen

Ji Weidong

Shao Ruiqing

Supervisors

Yu Faming

Xi Sheng
Liu Jiashun

Feng Jinxiong

Yan Taisheng

ljl
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WAGES SALARIES AND BENEFITS continued

Emoluments of directors and supervisors

continued

2011

Salaries arid

Allowance Bonus Total

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

______________________________-
Executive Directors

Liu Shaoyong

MaXulun

LiYangmin

Luo Zhuping 5AZ
Li Jun
Luo Chaogeng

Independent non-executive

Directors

LiuKeya

Wu Xiaogen

Ji Weidong

Shao Ruiqing

Supervisors

Yu Faming

Feng Jinxiong

Yan Taisheng

Liu Jiashun ljll

Liu Jiangbo

XuZhao

Total

These directors and officials of the Company received emoluments

from CEA Holding the parent company part of which were in

respect of their services to the Company and its subsidiaries No

apportionment has been made as it is impracticable to apportion this

amount between their services to the Group and their services to CEA

Holding

These directors and officials of the Company retired or resigned

during the year ended 31 December 2011

These directors and officials of the Company were newly appointed $EffIfiI1

during the year ended 31 December 2012

During the year ended 31 December 2012 no directors and ftE_H.Lht
supervisors waived their emoluments 2011 Nil
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WAGES SALARIES AND BENEFITS continued

Five highest paid individuals

None of the Companys directors and supervisors was among the

five highest paid individuals in the Group for the year ended 31

December 2012 2011.Nil The emoluments payable to the five

highest paid individuals are as follows

Group

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOOAF
Wages salaries bonus and allowances

The emoluments fell within the following band IIJflTc

Number of individuals

2012 2011

Below HK$2000000 200000051

During the year ended 31 December 2012 no emoluments

were paid by the Group to the Directors supervisors and the five

highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining

the Group or as compensation for loss of office 2011 Nil
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10 IMPAIRMENT CHARGES/REVERSALS 10 1/1
Group

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Reversal of/provision for impairment charges

on flight equipment spare parts Note ta
Impairment charges on assets held for sale

Note

Impairment charge on property

plant and equipment

Note

After acquisition of Shanghai Airlines Co Ltd Shanghai Airlines in 2010

the Company has reviewed the composition of its aircraft fleet aiming to t61Ifif
simpi/ the models of aircraft and maximise operation efficiencies In 2012 tfl1fl2
the Company has defined the main model of aircraft for future operation and

signed series of contracts to dispose other models of aircraft between 2014 ij fl jft

and 2016 As consequence the Company has reassessed the provision .l iii 4c fiIZ1
for the flight equipment spare parts in relation to the main models of aircraft

and also the spare parts in relation to the aircraft to be disposed and

reversed provision of RMB1OS million during the year ended 31 December

2012 in accordance with the reassessment results

In December 2011 the Group management entered into an agreement

with third party to dispose certain aircraft and related engines in the 53tt12LR

forthcoming 12 months in view of high maintenance costs of those aircraft ft

The aircraft and engines has been classified as assets held for sale at 31

December 2011 and an impairment loss of approximately RMB61 million fii
was made against those aircraft and engines by reference to the contracted

selling price less estimated cost to sell Note 44 1f1t44

11 OPERATING PROFIT ii

Operating profit is stated after charging the following items
iJ

Group

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

AF5T AF
Amortisatlon of intangible assets 384O4

Depreciation of property plant and equipment ttti

owned 5Q7337
leased finance leases 37544

Amortisation of lease prepayments 4L85
Consumption of flight equipment spare parts 4726
Reversal/provision of impairment of trade and

other receivables 68
Auditors remuneration 12880
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12 FINANCE INCOME

Exchange gains net Note

Interest income

2011

RMBOOO

AFC

2011

RMBOOOAt
1359644 1379452

411547 268487

149425 40833

73855 34289

1994471 1723061

296997 253027

7307

1697474 1462727

13 FINANCE COSTS

12

Group

2012

RMBOOO

Note

The exchange gain primarily related to the translation of the Groups foreign

currency denominated borrowings and obligations under nance leases 13
Group

2012

RMBOOO

Interest on bank borrowings ftThIe

Interest relating to obligations under

finance leases

Interest on bonds and debentures

Interest relating to notes payable

Less amounts capitalised into advanced

payments on acquisition of aircraft Note

amounts capitalised into construction in

progress Note

Note

The average interest rate used for interest capitalisation is 3.73% per annum for

the year ended 31 December 2012 2011 3.84% i3.73% 3.84%
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14 INCOME TAX 14

Income tax charged to the consolidated income statement is as follows

Group

2012 2011_-
RMBOOO RMBOOOAT

Provision for PRC income tax

Deferred taxation Note 37

Prior to 2008 the Company and certain of its subsidiaries the Pudong

Subsidiaries located in Pudong District Shanghai were entitled to

reduced rate of 15% pursuant to the preferential tax policy in Pudong $i15%
District Shanghai Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the Peoples

Republic of China the New CIT Law which was approved by the

National Peoples Congress on 16 March 2007 and became effective

from January 2008 the Company and the Pudong Subsidiaries

are entitled to transitional arrangement to gradually increase the 21S

applicable corporate income tax rate to 25% over five years from 2008 I4J ff 25%
For the year ended 31 December 2012 the corporate income tax rate 24%

applicable to the Company and the Pudong Subsidiaries was 25% 2011 16.5% 16.5%

24% Other subsidiaries of the Company except for those incorporated

in Hong Kong which are subject to Hong Kong corporate income tax

rate of 16.5% 2011 16.5% are generally subject to the PRC standard 25%

corporate tax rate of 25% 2011 25% under the New CIT Law

Pursuant to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance the State

Administration of Taxation and the General Administration of Customs

on Issues Concerning Relevant Tax Policies for Enhancing the

Implementation of Western Region Development Strategy Cai Shui

20111 No.58 and other series of tax regulations the enterprises

located in the western regions and engaged in the industrial activities as 15%

listed in the Catalogue of Encouraged Industries in Western Regions

will be entitled to reduced income tax rate of 15% from 2011 to 2020 015%
upon approval from tax authorities In 2012 China Eastern Yunnan

Airlines Co Ltd CEA Yunnan subsidiary of the Group obtained

approval from tax authorities and enjoy the reduced tax rate of 15% from

January2011
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14 INCOME TAX continued 14

Tax on the Groups consolidated income statement differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the standard taxation rate of

the Company as follows

Group

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOOA9
Profit before income tax Ijr 01Z404 tf

Adjusted by

Share of result of associates and jointly

controlled entities 131

287923 4w
Tax calculated at the tax rate of 25%

201124% 2011 24% 719809

Effect attributable to subsidianes charged 115%16.5%Pfl1PW
attaxratesoflfl%orl6.5% 2011 25%fi16.5%

2011 25% or 16 5% t48669

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 12989

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses

654996j

Unrecognised tax losses for the year 2i077 2W

Realisation of/Unrecognised deductible

temporary differences for the year 35IO9

Tax charge 2Q480i

The Group operates international
flights

to overseas destinations There th
was no material overseas taxation for the year ended 31 December

2012 and 2011 as there are avoidance of double tax treaties between tfl
the PRO and the corresponding jurisdictions including Hong Kong

relating to aviation businesses

15 DIVIDEND 15

The Board has not recommended any dividend for the year ended 31 4Y21

December 20122011 Nil

16 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 16.2lir
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company is dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of A4523cE
RMB2661 million 2011 RMB4523 million
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17 EARNINGS PER SHARE 17

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit

attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB2954 million

2011 RMB4576 million and the weighted average number of shares of 11 276538860
11276538860 2011 11276538860 in issue during the year ended 1276538860
31 December 2012 The Company has no potentially dilutive option or

other instruments
relating to the ordinary shares

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18

Group

Goodwill Computer

Note software Total

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

9i nw
Cost jV4s

AtlJanuary2Oll

Additions

mi
At31 December2011 JEl
At January 2012 1126969S 263792 1I54$7
Additions 1913 133$t3

At31 December2012 i126969S 397705 11667A00

Accumulated amortisation

AtlJanuary2Oll

Chargefortheyear

At31 December2011 -f-ThEHJJJ
Ati January2012 179897 17997

Charge for the year 38404 38404

At31 December2012 -f-E-I-fl 218301 218301

Fit
Net book amount

At31 December 2011 E-1-
At31 December2012 -f--- tt69695 119404 1t449099
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued 18

Company

Goodwill Computer

Note software

ta
RMBOOO RMBOOO

Cost

Ati January2011

Additions

At31 December2011

Ati January2012

Additions

At31 December2012

Accumulated amortusation

Ati January2011

Charge for the year

At31 December2011

Atl January2012 LJG
Charge for the year

At31 December2012

Net book amount

At31 December2011 LD
At 31 December 2012

Notes

The balance represents the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Shanghai

Airlines The goodwill is attributable to strengthening the competitiveness of tJ 51 SI l-

the Group airlines operation business attaining synergy through integration
15

of the resources and providing the evolution of Shanghai international air

transportation center For the purpose of impairment assessment the

goodwill is allocated to the airline operation business the principal
cash

generating unit CGU that the Group operates and benefits from the

acquisition

The recoverable amount of the CGU is principally based on the Company

fair value which is determined by reference to the observable quoted market ft 15it5A Si 5tS

price of the Company shares less the costs of disposal No impairment for Si Si Si

the goodwill is required based on the Company fair value as at the balance itf

sheet date
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19 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19

Group

Aircraft engines and

flight equipment

Other

Held under property

finance
plant and Construction

Owned Leases
Buildings equipment in progress Total

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO95 fi5 fif
Cost

AtlJanuary2Ol2

Transfers from construction in
progress

Transfers from advanced payments

on acquisition of aircraft Note 21 1t21
Sales and finance leased back

Additions

Other decrease

Transfer to other
long term assets

Disposals

At31 December2012

Accumulated depreciation

At January 2012

Charge for the
year

Sales and finance leased back

Disposals

At31 December2012

Impairment

Ati January2012 ft--pS
Charge for the

year

Disposals

At31 December2012

Net book amount

At31 December2012

At January2012

157

59860668 37640743 5237670 5632102 2139160 110510343

1584745 69657 1654402

4716802 1982177 6698979

1583999 1583999

5443597 2862007 3721 562357 1576395 10448077

25656 664141 689797

55506 55506

906650 486316 7079 195284 1595329

67504762 42918469 6819057 6068832 2005647 125316767

22677254 8391720 1293602 3538955 35901531

4394601 2397541 234749 443957 7470848

32363 32363

855457 486315 5062 148301 1495135

26184035 10335309 1523289 3834611 41877244

721101 107770 550 21596 851017

89870 89870

20125 20125

790846 107770 550 21596 920762

40529881 32475390 5295768 2233671 1984051 82518761

36462313 29141253 3944068 2092597 2117564 73757795
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PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19

Group

iI

Aircraft engines
and

flight equipment

Other

Held under property

finance plant and

Owned Leases Buildings equipment

RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000

A9J A9L A9b A9
Cost

Atl January2011

Transfers from construction in progress

At31 December2011

14At21

1t44

In

Accumulated depreciation

Ati January2011

Charge for the year

Transfer to assets held for sale

Note 44 ff44

Disposals

At 31 December2011

Impairment

AtlJanuary2Oll

Transfer to assets held for sale

Note 44 f44
Disposals

Atl January2011

19 PROPERTY
continued

Construction

in progress

RMBOOO

Total

RMBOOO

Transfers from advanced payments

on acquisition of aircraft Note 21

Additions

Transfer to assets held for sale

Note 44

Transfer to lease prepayments

Disposals

At 31 December 2011

Net book amount

At 31 December2011

RH---
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19 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19
continued

Company

Aircraft engines and

flight equipment

Other

Held under property

finance plant and Construction

Owned Leases Buildings equipment in progress Total

ffJI
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

At9t At95t AtF5

Cost

At January2012 39657470 923758t Z706474 295543 994541 75891709

Transfers from construction in
progress 50510 87 51317

Transfers from advanced payments

on acquisition of aircraft Note 21 l21 4719802 i982171 6598979

Sales and finance leased back 1583999 tS8999

Additions 3660109 Z74t934 3149 260683 559260 7230135

Invests to subsidiaries as capital

contribution 1393417 5460 i445977

Transfer to subsidiaries $A43p 309240 1829542 2238782

Disposals 533429 p34251 1993 79831 949504

Other decrease 1tU 537294 537294

At 31 December 2012 M-f-s-- 44119298 3Z744404 759140 524742 1502484 84649266

Accumulated depreciation

At January 2012 15139068 6449397 751256 2474624 24811345

Chargefortheyear 4r 2439275 1882829 9678 247833 5066695

Sales and finance leased back 3fJ01 32263 32363

Invests to subsidiaries as capital

contbution 566468 42120 608588

Transfer to subsidiaries 23 677 579193 602870

Disposals 50236t 334251 12 77139 915278

At 31 December 2012 z-t-z-- 19853470 744M45 840491 2803198 27751304

Impairment

At January 2012 721101 tO717O 5200 834071

Impairment charge for the year 1- 49718 48718

At31 December2012 769819 107770 5200 882789

Net book amount

At 31 December 2012 i-- 29496007 fi1886$9 1911649 821544 1497284 56019173

At January2012 flH 23 97401 683414 1959218 820915 989341 50246293
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Cost

At January2011

Transfers from construction In progress 1ItA
Transfers from advanced payments fiA

on acquisition of aircraft Note 21 421
Additions

Transfer to assets held for sale

Note44 1- 44

Invests to subsidiary as capital

contribution

Transfer to subsidiaries A1C
Transfer to lease prepayments

Disposals

At31 December2011

Accumulated depreciation E1i
AtlJanuary2Oll

Charge for the year

Transfer to assets held for sale

Note 44 144
Invests to subsidiary as capital

contribution

Transfer to subsidiaries

Disposals

At31 December2011

Impairment

AtlJanuary2Oll

Transfer to assets held for sale

Note 44 444

At 31 December2011

Net book amount

At31 December2011

At January2011

Note

As at 31 December 2012 certain aircraft and buildings owned by the Group

and the Company with an aggregate net book amount of approximately

RMB22 544 million and RMB1 078 million respectively 2011

approximately RMB18 317 million and RMB1O 005 million respectively

were pledged as collateral under certain loan arrangements Note 34
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19 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19

continued

Company

Aircraft engines and

flight equipment

Other

Held under property

finance plant and Construction

Owned Leases Buildings equipment in progress
Total

tyt
888

RMBOOO RMBOOO IRMBOOO RMBDOO RMBOOO RMBOOOAc Af7c A0 AL A9t

41.725.668 30512148 2522648 3225784 823081 78809329

154235 47500 201735

1584.261 2230.271 3814532

2.853247 2.312515 55710 336622 956481 6514575

3863025 3.863025

5537.968 16500 138.085 429406 6121959

301.521 1654.1841 1955705

53.880 153880

666117 300144 96f9 176278 1152158

39657.570 29.237581 2.706474 3295543 994541 75891709

15.161832 7595373 661.402 2.413.261 25831868

2745666 1922252 94444 294242 5.056.604

2402.8731 2402873

2102313 1918 96946 2201177

368211 368211

666117 300144 2672 135933 1104.866

15139.068 6446397 751.256 2474624 24811345

721101 473393 5200 1.199694

365623 365.623

721101 107.770 5200 834071

23.797401 22683414 1955218 820.919 989341 50246293

25842735 22443382 1861246 812523 817881 51777767

ijA225.44A5150.78

A183.17820A8OO.05188
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1E5

10968344 6356602 10195340 6231270

7328529 8180128 6947846 7533.475

296997 253027 289692 245127

6698979 3821413 6698979 3814532

11894891 10968344 10733899 10195.340

20 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 20

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

W_E ---
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOAF 95

Cost

At January

Additions

Disposals

At31 December

Accumulated amortisation

AtiJanuary

Charge for the year

Disposals

At31 December

Net book amount

At31 December

Lease prepayments represent unamortised prepayments for land use

rights

The Groups land use rights are located in the PRC and the majority

of these land use rights have terms of 50 years from the date of grant

As at 31 December 2012 the majority of these land use rights had

remaining terms ranging from 34 to 50 years 2011 from 35 to 50

years

21 ADVANCED PAYMENTS ON ACQUISITION OF 21
Al ACRAFT

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOAH A9 AF
Atl January

Payment during the year

Interest capitalised Note 13 iPff13
Transfers to property plant and

equipment Note 19 119
At31 December

Included in the Groups and the Companys balance as at 31 December

2012 the amounts of accumulated interest capitalised are approximately

RMB63O million and RMB623 million respectively 2011 RMB632 million

and RMB617 million A6.17
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22 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 22

Company

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Investment at cost 14S5OO 71134 10

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries majority of which are limited

liability companies established and operating in the PRC are as follows

Place and date Attributable

Company of establishment Registered capital equity interest Principal activities

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

At5t AE _____________
China Eastern Airlines Yunnan Co PRC

Provision of airline serces

Ltd CEA Yunnan Note August 2011

China Cargo Airlines Co Ltd PRC Provision of cargo carriage

China Cargo 22 July 1998 servicesARrJ

China Eastern Airlines Wuhan Co PRC

Ltd CEA Wuhan Note 16 August 2002

--7\

China United Airlines Co Ltd PRC

United Airlines Note co 21 September 1984

LA

Shanghai Eastern Airlines Logistics PRC Provision of cargo logistics

Co Ltd Eastern Logistics 23 August 2004 services

Note

1Iiti

162
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22 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES continued 22

Place and date Attributable

Company of establishment Registered capital equity interest Principal activities

Jft
2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

ffi Af7E

China Eastern Airlines Jiangsu Co PRO Provision of airline services

Ltd CEAJiangsu May 1993

Fi
Shanghai Eastern Flight Training PRO Provision of flight training

Co Ltd Flight Training 18 December1995 services

Shanghai Airlines Co Ltd PRO Provision of airline services

16 March 2010

Eastern Airlines Hotel Co Ltd PRO Provision of hotel services

18 March 1998 pdmarily to crew

members

EAH

Shanghai Airlines Tours PRO Tour operations travel and

International Group Co Ltd 29 August 1992 air
ticketing agency and

Shanghai Airlines Tours transportation

iJi_
AiH

Eastern Business Airlines PRO Provision of airlines

Service Co Ltd 27 September 2008 consultation services

Niotes

In 2010 the Company entered into an agreement with the State-owned fit
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the Peoples aitffl
Government of Yunnan Province to Yunnan SASAC establish CEA Al36.62f
Yunnan with registered capital

of RMB3662 million in which the Company

holds 65% interests As at 31 December 2012 the Company has

contributed all its share of RMB2380 million in cash and net assets Yunnan

SASAC has contributed its share of RM6254 million in cash of which %1

RMB154 million was injected
in 2012
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22 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES continued 22

Notes continued tn

In 2012 the existed shareholders of CEAWuhan and certain new

shareholders decided to increase the registered capital
of CEA Wuhari

from RMB600 million to RMB1 750 million As at 31 December 2012 the A17.50it
Company has contributed capital of RMB525 million in cash among which

RMB237 million was recognized as registered capital and RMB288 million

was credited to the share premium of CEA Wuhan and the other investors

have contributed capital of RMB300 million among which IRMB288 million AD.121t
was recognized as registered capital and RMB12 million was recognized as

share premium of CEA Wuhan Upon completion of aforementioned capital fij96%2ij72%
injections the share percentage of the Company in CEA Wuhan was diluted

from 96% to 72%

In 2012 the Company acquired 20% of interest in United Airlines owned 42Sl
by non-controlling interest with total consideration of RMB84 million and

United Airlines became Wholly owned subsidiary of the Company after

the acquisition The difference of IRMB41 million between the consideration

and the net book value of non-controlling interest as at the acquisition date TtM
has been debited to capital reserve Subsequent to the acquisition the

Company contributed RMB317 million in cash and RMB9O3 million in net

assets into United Airlines

In 2012 the Company acquired 30% interest in Eastern Logistic owned

by non-controlling interest with total consideration of RMB562 million and Tt3O%
Eastern Logistic became wholly owned subsidiary of the Company after

the acquisition The difference of RMB449 million between the consideration

and the net book value of non-controlling interests as at the acquisition

date has been debited to capital reserve Subsequent to the acquisition
the

Company contributed RMB95O million in cash into Eastern Logistic 1ic .ft

23 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

Unlisted investments at cost 62O329 622 Th8 578836 5Th836

Share of results/reserves 213143 2j4 81

833472 6S 578836 678836
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837589 807669 578836 578836

103209 75435

2188 2701

2439

107075 42814

833472 837589 578836 578836

Provision of financial

services to Group

companies of CEA

HoldingIT
Provision of air catering

services

ttft

Provision of maintenance

of aircraft engine and

other related components

maintenance services

1u

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2012 ILFJ

23 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES continued 23

The movement on investments in associates is as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011--
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO3c

AtiJanuary

Share of results of associates

Share of revaluation on

available-for-sale investments tJ 3J1.t

held by an associate

Disposal of associates

Dividend received/declared during the

year

At31 December

Particulars of the principal associates which are limited liability

companies established and operating in the PRO are as follows

Place and date Attributable

Company of establishment Registered capital equity interest Principal activities

MW
2012 2011 2012 2011

W-
RMBOOO RMBOOOfA

Eastern Air Group Finance Co Ltd PRO

Eastern Finance December 1995II
.Th\H

China Eastern Air Catering PRC

Investment Co Ltd 17 November 2003

-l8
Shanghai Pratt Whitney Aircraft PRC

Engine Maintenance Company 28 March 2008

Limited Shanghai PW Noteah2
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Provision of property

development and

management

Provision of aviation

equipment spare parts

purchase

ProvIsion of traveling and

accommodatIon agency

services

Provision of aviation

advertising agency

services

Provision of cable and

wireless communication

services

Provision of airline electronic

product maintenance

services

23 INVESTMENTS IN

Company

ASSOCIATES continued 23

Place and date Attributable

of establishment Registered capital equity interest Principal activities

2012 2011 2012 2011

-E
RMBOOO RMBOOO

At5
New Shanghai International Tower PRO

Co Ltd 17 November 1992

L9
Eastern Aviation Import Export Co PRC

Ltd Eastern Import Export June 1993

1ii iLLII

Shanghai Dongmei Aviation Travel Co PRC

Ltd Dongmei Travel 17 October 2004

Thh

Eastern Aviation Advertising Service PRC

Co Ltd Eastern Advertising 04 March 1986

Shanghai Hongpu Civil Airport PRC

Communication Co Ltd 18 October 2002

AH
Collins Aviation Maintenance Service PRC

Shanghai Ltd 27 September 2002

Notes

In 2008 the Company entered into an agreement with United Technologies

International Corporation Technologies International to establish 51 1i1iQ-
Shanghai Pratt Whitney Aircraft Engine Maintenance Company Limited

Shanghai PW Shanghai PW has registered capital of approximately 2l3 0151

USD40 million in which the Company holds 51% interests According to

the shareholders agreement Technologies International has the power to 5151
govern the financial and operating policies and in this respect the Company

accounts for Shanghai PW as an associate
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23 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES continued 23

Notes continued f1f fe

The Groups aggregated share of the revenues results assets and liabilities 2Ic Lf tlA Ut
of its associates are as follows

Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit

1j
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

Aftt AF0 I1F/ AfFIO

2012 _$ 402t663 3188i9I 2973719 1209

2011 13 28i 89O4O 2478 75425

24 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24
ENTITI ES

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011W-
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

Unlisted investments at cost 11Ii4
Share of results/reserves

The movement on investments in jointly controlled entities is as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

_-_
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOA9

AtiJanuary ft
Share of results

Dividend received/declared during the

year

At31 December
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Company

Shanghai Eastern Union Aviation

Wheels Brakes Maintenance

Services Overhaul Engineering

Co Ltd Wheels Brakes

Eastern China Kaiya System

Integration Co Ltd

Place and date

of establishment Paid-up capital

2012 2011

PRC

28 December 1995

ii

PRC

21 May1999

tLjL-L

Principal activities

Provision of repair and

maintenance Services

Provision of spare pads

repair and maintenance

Services

Provision of computer

systems development

and maintainance

services

168
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24 INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24

ENTITI ES continued

Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities all of which are

limited liability companies established and operating in the PRO are as L5.oT

follows

Attributable

equity interest

2012 2011

Shanghai Technologies Aerospace PRC

Co Ltd Technologies 28 September 2004

Aerospace Note

Notes

al Under Joint Venture Agreement with the loint venture partner of

Technologies Aerospace dated 10 March 2003 the Company has agreed

to share control over the economic activities of Technologies Aerospace lS .-f ftit tJ

Any strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the activities of

Technologies Aerospace require
the unanimous consent of the Company

and the joint venture partner 151

bi The Groups aggregated share of the revenues results assets and liabilities

of its jointly controlled entities is as follows

2012

2011

Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit

AI
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

A5Ft AF1t AtF13 A55
494042 75883 312600 29960

524.573 101317 287822 31437
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13

807543 749580 251411 262420

869082 886177 769908 650822

281631 294077 55717 67192

1958256 1929834 1077036 980434

25 OTHER LON-TERM ASSETS 25

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOAc A97c
Deposits relating to aircraft Under

operating leases Note

Deferred pilot recruitment costs

Note

Other long-term assets

Notes

The fair values of deposits relating to aircraft held under operating leases

of the Group and the Company are approximately RMB722 million and i9S
RMB219 million 2011 RMB685 million and RMB248 million respectively

which are determined using the expected future refunds discounted at

market interest rates at the year end

Deferred pilot recruitment costs represent the cost bore by the Group in

connection with securing certain minimum period of employment of pilots

and are amortised on straight-line basis over the anticipated beneficial

period of five years starting from the pilot joints the Group

26 FLIGHT EQUIPMENT SPARE PARTS 26

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOAF \5T
Flight equipment spare parts

Less provision for spare parts

Provision for flight equipment spare parts is made based on the

difference between the carrying amount and the net realisable value

The net realisable value is estimated based on current market condition

historical experience and Companys future operation plan for the aircraft

and related spare parts
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At January Dt
Provision written off in relation to

disposal of spare parts

Provision for/reversal of impairment of -Mi4ff1/
spare parts Note 0ab H- 0ab

At31 December

2851736 2381707 3527071 2372192

68488 79636 37897 46081

35995 38382 28799 33885

208770 237356 87537 116794

3164989 2737081 3681304 2568952

202808 233055 80283 106329

2962181 2504026 3601021 2462623

Less provision for Impairment

of receivables

Trade receivables

Balances with related companies included in trade receivables are

summarised in Note 47ci 47c

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate their fair

value

Trade receivables that were neither over due nor impaired relate to

large number of independent sales agents for whom there is no recent

history of default

170

26 FLIGHT EQUIPMENT SPARE PARTS continued 26

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011-E
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOAF

27 TRADE RECEIVABLES 27

The credit terms given to trade customers are determined on an

individual basis with the credit periods generally ranging from half

month to two months

The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOXF
Within 90 days

91 to 180 days

181 to 365 days

Over 365 days

LD AD
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27 TRADE RECEIVABLES continued 27

As at 31 December 2012 trade receivables of RMB137 million 2011

RMB1O1 million were past due but not impaired These relate to

number of independent sales agents for whom there is no recent history 1itit1
of default The Group holds cash deposits of RMB68O million 2011
RMB627 million from these agents The ageing analysis of these trade Al6.27
receivables is as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOAt AF7c
Within 90 days Hll AJtJ

91 to 180 days

181 to 365 days

As at 31 December 2012 trade receivables of RMB167 million 2011 -1-

RMB198 million were impaired and fully provided for The remaining

impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in financial 11

difficulties and only portion of the receivables is expected to be

recovered The factors considered by management in determining the

impairment are described in Note 2s 42s
The ageing of impaired receivables is as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

181 to 365 days over due

to years over due ff
Over years over due
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27 TRADE RECEIVABLES continued 27

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables

are as follows

Group Company

2J

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

At January 2O55 245961 1063$ 125553

Receivables written off Ij

during the year as uncollectible

Provision for/reversal ofi impairment

of receivables

At31 December

The net impact of creation and release of provisions for impaired

receivables have been included in Provision for impairment of trade and 11
other receivables in the income statement Note 11 Amounts charged ii

to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no

expectation of recovering additional cash

The carrying amounts of the Groups trade receivables are denominated

in the following currencies

Group

2012

RMBOOO

Currency

Renminbi

Japanese Yen

US Dollars

Euro

HKDollars

Other currencies

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying

amount of receivable shown above
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28 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 28

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011-E
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

je9 Af5
VAT recoverable 92O 35 919j517

Rebate receivables on aircraft

acquisitions 676 126 645781 O1QO2

Amounts due from related companies ftJ
Note 47cQ 447ci 40Z844 4577 552 26 26

Prepaid aircraft operating lease rentals 48OO 60638 130622 10760

Rental deposits 2365o8 2O11O3

Others ftf 1886 689173 9TT81

Subtotal 656i69 7163748 0Z404
Less bad debt provision 28805t 54j756 24 76

336664$ B6 69O8992 4$

29 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND SHORT- 29
TERM BANK DEPOSITS

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011--
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMB000 RMBOOO

AF5 AF7L
Bank deposits with

original ij
maturity over three months but less

than year 16768 S5808 lo

Restricted bank deposits 883 58737 24936

Note

As at 31 December 2012 the deposits are primarily denominated in RMB and L.ftff
bore effective interest rates ranging from 2.85% to 4.65% per annum 2011 0.5% 4.65%C o.5%5.3%tA%I
to 5.3% per annum
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29 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND SHORT 29 J1r
TERM BANK DEPOSITS continued

The carrying amounts of the Groups and Companys restricted bank

deposits and short-term bank deposits are denominated in the following

currencies

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

9ii
Renminbi i62891 9183

Japanese Yen 3974 39124

US Dollars 16082 16082

HK Dollars 1591 1$93

Euro rc 9818 818
Other currencies 1763 18763

1726Z$1 109543

30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30

The carrying amounts of the Groups and Companys cash and cash

equivalents are denominated in the following currencies

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

-- w-
RMBOOO RMB000 RMBOOO RMBOOO

AF5 95
Renminbi 193393 152173 4O
US Dollars 3723 263623

Euro ttti 38112 34S1

Japanese Yen 30451 30267

Hong Kong Dollars 25528 ZflO

Others ill224 119t8 4Q

241696 -611t22 01

fl ..L
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31 TRADE PAYABLES AND NOTES PAYABLE 31

The aging analysis of trade payables and notes payable is as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

W-E
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOAT 95 1Y

Within 90 days 1A- Ji 1413087 1j6J 6776696 p2
91 to 180 days ft I----- A-f- 391815 bjjiu1J 17467
181 to365days AH

67563O 4O1O
to years 37892 272317

Over years 149811 71162

7558342

As at 31 December 2012 the trade payables and notes payable

balances of the Group and the Company included amounts due to

related companies of RMB1 950 million 2011 RMB1216 million and A12.161
RMB7175 million 2011 RMB2925 million respectively Note 47cii l1A471 A29.25

ItI447cii

As at 31 December 2012 notes payable amounted to RMB25O million

2011 RMB48 million which were unsecured bore effective interest .k0.48Y
rates ranging from 4.65% to 4.68% per annum 2011 6% to 8% and 6%
are repayable within six months 8%

32 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 32 S4iW
Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

-FE ---
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO9i AF

Accrued salaries wages and benefits 2O$17 1361547 j-
Accrued take-off and landing charges 1Z185 681157

Accrued fuel cost 8948 1219983

Accrued expenses related to aircraft

overhaul conducted 18i5058 871867
Duties and levies payable 54674 917995
Other accrued operating expenses 20930 1O6j784
Deposits received from ticket sales

agents 680318 29869O

Current portion of other long-term

liabilities Note 36 E3f36 314996 184i83

Staff housing allowance Note 39 14t39b 91358 242614

Amounts due to related companies

Note 47cii f447cii 14$84 2A42228

Current portion of post-retirement ij$
benefit obligations Note 38b Itui1t38b 85800 70051

Other payables 1t 185939k 1765172

256225 11087271
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33 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 33

AS at 31 December 2012 the Group and the Company had 98 and 72

aircraft 2011 80 and 60 aircraft respectively under finance leases

Under the terms of the leases the Group and the Company has the 804$l1604i

option to purchase at or near the end of the lease terms certain aircraft

at either fair market value or percentage of the respective lessors

defined cost of the aircraft The obligations under finance leases are

principally
denominated in US Dollars

The future minimum lease payments including interest and the present

value of the minimum lease payments under finance leases are as

follows

Group

2012 2011

Present Present

value of value of

Minimum minimum Minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments Interest payments payments Interest payments

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

Af AFA AfA A9ft AfT A5c

Within one year OO445 790S44 as 55 2489259

In the second year M944 35556 2O41$ 4679 2887Q3 2558094

In the third to ffth year
inclusive 8685$69 76QT77 83 O4 6UQ$6 551

Afterthefifthyear 92794O 404291 86Z3S49 1S28 440568 800858

Total 23j778O 191982 i85t7 5ij4 6t 692

Less amount repayable within

one year
300445 39918 26O526 55j8 45925

Long-term portion 20fl335 15644 i31O 170 583
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33 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 33
continued

Company

2012 2011

Present Present

value of value of

Minimum minimum Minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments Interest payments payments Interest payments

ft
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

At95t At JE A9
Within one year Z$o669 286t6 1T8O8 2577 2O4O988

lnthesecondyear 2347O OO58 O48O1
lnthethirdtofifthyearinclusive 1$45- 6625oO 6114O65 306 S87
Afterthefffthyear 54 73361 I53b $3402

Total 19r139086 E86 42i 2427 t6I4

Loss amount repayable within

one
year Z30694J 328$t6 t978-Q18 57 588

Long-term portion 18392 42O 498f92 t4 123I

The fair value of obligations Under finance leases of the Group and

the Company are RMB22883 million and RMB18353 million 2011

RMB2O866 million and RMB16599 million respectively which are

determined Using the expected future payments discounted at market

interest rates prevailing at the year end
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34 BORROWINGS 34

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

w-E ----
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

AF5t

Non current

Long-term bank borrowings

secured Note 15780 892 tO62t656

unsecured Note fib 48t5271 446578

Guaranteed bonds Note 25QQOO0
ii

23096j63 15 8134
4%k

Current Il

Long-term bank borrowings

secured Note wa 26120551 1772886

unsecured Note 1147656 700764

Short-term bank borrowings

secured Note _a
unsecured Note tb 8880244 1555262

Short-term debentures Note 4000OO
ii

4000 000

22635955 2O33597
fr4

Total borrowings 45736118 35423131 ji5

The borrowings are repayable as

follows

Within one year 22639955 2O335797

In the second year 7212821 38803i

In the third to fifth year inclusive

7905631 5536565

After the fifth year 7917111 4JI 66993Z

Total borrowings 457a61181 35423ia1

Notes

As at 31 December 2012 the secured bank borrowings of the Group and

the Company were pledged by the related aircraft and buildings with an

aggregate net book amount of RMB22544 million and 9M815078 million 33IIA%.225

respectively 2011 RMB1831 million and RMB1O005 million Note 19 t1E

Itfii9

Certain unsecured bank borrowings of the Group totaling of RM895 million 9510A
2011 RMB228 million were guaranteed by CEA Holding Note 47c

%ltftt47c

On August 2011 Eastern Air Overseas Hong Kong Corporation Limited fi ASS
Eastern Air Overseas HK wholly owned subsidiary of the Company I% 1lR48ifT
issued three-year guaranteed bonds with principal amount of RMB2.5

billion at an issue price equal to the face value of the bonds The bonds

bear interest at the rate of 4% per annum which is payable semi-annually .8 AS 151

The principle of the bonds will mature and be repayable on August2014

The Company has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the due

payment and performance of the above bonds

On 13 September 2012 the Company issued short-term debentures with L.8 4c %A%40
principal of RM84 billion The debentures bear interest at the rate 04.1% il4.1%

per annum The principal and interest will mature and be repayable on 10 \.8

June 2013
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34 BORROWINGS continued 34

The terms of the long-term borrowings are summarised as follows

Group Company

Interest rate and

Currency final maturities 2012 2011 2012 2011z- lE
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

A1-
Long-term bank borrowings

RMB denominated interest rate ranging from 486%

to 6.4% with final maturities

through to 2020

2020 95334D 35933OQ

USD denominated interest rate ranging from libor

0.03% to libor 5.3%

with final maturities through to

2022

Ii6WLlBOR 0.03%

61I.LIBoR 5.3%T
2022i $4O534 2p214569

Guaranteed bonds

RMB denominated interest rate of 4.00% with nal

maturities through to 2014

P4.0% 2014

Total long term borrowings

Z855ST 23867869

The fair value of long-term borrowing of the Group and the Company are iA
RMB32881 million and RMB24059 million 2011 RMB3O363 million

and RMB2O706 million respectively which are determined using the

expected future payments discounted at prevailing market interest rates

available to the Group and the Company for financial instrurrients with

substantially the same terms and characteristics at the balance sheet

date

Short-term borrowings of the Group and the Company are repayable

within one year As at December 2012 the interest rates relating to _--.ftE
such borrowings were ranged from 1.11% to 6.56% per annum 2011 1.11%6.56% 1.30%

1.30% to 6.31% per annum 6.31%
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34 BORROWINGS continued 34

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

W-i ---
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

A95 I5
Renminbi 1821340 943OO Ii 430O
US Dollars 316O545 87 51Th98 17048
Japanese Yen ba433

45736i18 53 35433i 01 348

35 PROVISION FOR RETURN CONDITION
CHECKS FOR AIRCRAFT UNDER OPERATING

LEASES

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

f5E AThc
At January 3299i26 245O 1721095 071

Additional provisions 87211O tf G9112
Utilisation 37 1$ 168 545

At 31 December 3798762 7634 95
Less current portion J3 7134205J $8481 174151

Long-term portion 3648 164 1546944

In respect of aircraft and engines under operating leases the Group

has obligations to fulfill certain return conditions under the leases The

balance as at 31 December 2012 represents the provision for the

estimated cost of these return condition checks which is made on

straight line basis over the term of the leases
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1624248 1424709 940147 815183

209727 908406 114934 674238

116558 112685 91821 91649

1950533 2445800 1146902 1581070

314996 398701 184183 249259

1635537 2.047099 962719 1331811

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2012 IEJT

36 OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 361Ii
Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOAF A9 AT
Fair value of unredeemed points

awarded under the Groups

frequent flyer program

Long-term duties and levies payable

relating to finance leases

Other long term payables

Less current portion included in other

payables and accrued

expenses Note 32 1432

Long-term portion

37 DEFERRED TAXATION 37

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is

legally enforceable right of offsetting and when the deferred income

taxes relate to the same authority The following amounts determined

after appropriate offsetting are shown in the balance sheets

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011-T
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

A9j
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax asset to be utilised 2L 3JflfJ
after 12 months

Deferred tax asset to be utilised 2fIL

within 12 months

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liability to be realised

after 12 months

Net deferred tax assets
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37 DEFERRED TAXATION continued 37

Movements in the net deferred tax assets are as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

At January t5092

Charged to income statement AIj 4i
Note 14 tI4

At31 December

The deferred tax assets and liabilities prior to the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction were made up of the taxation effects of

the following

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMB000

9ii AF7c

Deferred tax assets

Impairment provision for obsolete

flight equipment spare parts 40408 36 380

Impairment provision for receivables 23950 20034

Impairment provision for property

plant and equipment 43222 39123

Derivative financial liabilities Q339 20j339

Provision for post-retirement benefits Ij$ 196580 154O62

324149a 269938

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation and amortisation 29474 65 419

Derivative financial assets 4I9 419I

29984 29938

25235

182



ANNUAL REPORT 2012

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
87

P11

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 December 2012 tn_c.fl iktl

37 DEFERRED TAXATION continued 37 Ii
Movements ot the net deterred tax assets of the Group for the year

Charged

At the credited to

beginning of income At the end

the year statement of the year

flfl lfl/W2
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

XF5
For the year ended 31 December 2012 nnt
Impairment provision for obsolete flight

equipment spare parts 1O0Tt 2966 40408

Impairment provision for receivables tUX1IM 34 L10J96 23950

Impairment provision for property plant 4iI
and equipment and oonstruction in

progress 78286 135064 43222

Derivative financial liabilities 29201 3i862 20339

Provision for post-retirement benefits 1ttflS 230361 3318i 196580

44z884 i$ 324499

Depreoiation and amortisation 4Æ6481 ist736 294745
Derivative finanoial assets 1O91 3428 4519

47572 2830S 299264

Net deferred tax assets t1j3Ufi O92 1014 25235
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

Impairment provision for obsolete flight

equipment spare parts

Impairment provision for receivables

Impairment provision for property plant IflJ

and equipment and construction in

progress

Provision for return condition checks for

aircraft under operating leases

Provision for frequent flyer programs

Derivative financial liabilities

Provision for post-retirement benefits 4IJt

Depreciation and amortisation

Derivative financial assets

Tax losses carried forward

Other deductible temporary differences

Total unrecognized deferred tax assets

37 DEFERRED TAXATION continued 37 TJ
Charged/

At the credited to

beginning of income

the year statement

ijr
jfl Mz/
RMB 000 RMB 000

At the end

of the year

RMBOOOA9

83365 13294 70071

69063 34318 34745

128226 49940 78286

93.740 93740

44001 44001

29526 325 29201

245026 14665 230361

692947 250283 442664

652521 226040 426481

17052 15961 1091

669573 242001 427572

23374 8282 15092Net deferred tax assets

As at the balance sheet date the Group and the Company had following

balances in respect of which no deferred tax asset has been recognised

Group

2012 2011

Deferred Temporary Deferred Temporary

taxation differences taxation differences

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO
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37 DEFERRED TAXATION continued 37

Company

2012 2011

---
Deferred Temporary Deferred Temporary

taxation differences taxation differences

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOA9 AJ95t AF
Tax losses carried forward

Other deductible temporary differences

Total unrecognised deferred tax assets

In accordance with the PRO tax law tax losses can be carried forward ff
for period of five years to offset against future taxable income The

Group and the Oompanys tax losses carried forward will expire between

2013 and 2017

As at 31 December 2012 management carried out an assessment

to determine whether future taxable profits will be available to utilise

the tax losses and deductible temporary differences As there are still

uncertainties around the Groups future operation results such as future

fuel prices and market competition management assessed that there

are significant uncertainties that future taxable profits will be available

and the deferred tax assets arisen from aforementioned tax losses and

deductible temporary difference were not recognised

38 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST- 38 Ijjj
RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement schemes

Pension

The Group companies participate in defined contribution

retirement schemes organised by municipal governments of

various provinces in which the Group companies operate

Substantially all of the Groups PRO employees are eligible to

participate in the Group companies retirement schemes The 20% 22% lk

Group companies are required to make annual contributions

to the schemes at rates ranging from 20% to 22% on the

employees salary and allowances subject to certain ceiling i-- it
as set up by the relevant municipal governments Employees

are required to contribute to the schemes at rates ranging

from 7% to 8% of their salaries For the year ended 31 %7681
December 2012 the Groups pension cost charged to the

consolidated income statement amounted to RMB871 million

2011 RMB7O8 million
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38 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND POST- 38

RETIREMENT BENEFITS continued

Defined contribution retirement schemes 1iI1
continued

ii Medical insurance

Majority of the Groups PRC employees participate in

the medical insurance schemes organised by municipal

governments under which the Group companies and

their employees are required to contribute to the schemes 12%2%l
approximately 12% and 2% respectively of the employees 74t

basic salaries subject to certain ceiling as set up by the

relevant municipal governments For those employees

who participate in these schemes the Group has no other IJ

obligation for the payment of medical expense beyond the

annual contributions For the year ended 31 December 3.74t
2012 the Groups medical insurance contributions charged

to the consolidated income statement amounted to RMB391

million 2011 RMB374 million

Post-retirement benefits flJIi

In addition to the above defined contribution retirement schemes

the Group provides retirees with other post-retirement benefits

including transportation subsidies social function activities tIj
subsidies and other welfares The expected cost of providing these

post-retirement benefits is actuarially determined and recognised

by using the projected unit credit method which involves number

of assumptions and estimates including inflation rate discount

rate and employees turnover ratio

The post-retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance jlj
sheets are as follows

Group Company

AJ

2012 2011 2012 2011-z
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOAT X95

Present value of funded post-

retirement benefit obligations 348Tt

Fairvalueofplanassets $8I9 45d

Present value of unfunded post-

retirement benefit obligations 5996OG 5O6674S Oa
Unrecognised actuarial losses 4244

Post-retirement benefit obligations 34529
Less current portion Note 32 14 1Ilf4132 85800 0061

Long-term portion 382
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38 RETIREMENT BENEFiT PLANS AND POST- 38 IJi
RETIREMENT BENEFITS continued

Post-retirement benefits continued 4J

Changes in post retirement benefit obligations are as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

---
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

AtiJanuary Hi 29434$ 226204 9Q
Costs charged in the income

statement 581 775 480 1Z4

Payments 179874 4I4367 88

At31 December _T--9 45329 257501

The costs of post-retirement benefits are recognised under wages 4IJ 1i AI4 Ii
salaries and benefits in the income statements as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

AFC F5 AF
Currentservicecost 19336 136179 444

Interest cost 270 77 17457
Actuarial losses recognised 12484 1O6488

Estimated return on planned asset 652

Total Note 49 5817i5 460124 82

The principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date are as

follows

Group and Company

2012 2011

Discount rate 43b% 435%

Annual rate of increase of per capita benefit

payment $%-% 5%

Employee turnover rate 0/i 3.54 -a
Mortality rate 983%

Medical inflation rate 5.OO
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39 STAFF HOUSING BENEFITS 39

Staff housing fund

In accordance with the PRC housing reform regulations the Group

is required to contribute to the State-sponsored housing fund for 7%15% 7%15%
its employees at rates ranging from 7% to 15% 2011 7% to 15%

of the specified salary amounts of its PRC employees At the same

time the employees are required to contribute an amount equal

to the Groups contribution The employees are entitled to claim

the entire sum of the fund contributed under certain specified

withdrawal circumstances For the year ended 31 December Al5.45

2012 the Groups contributions to the housing funds amounted to

RMB6O7 million 2011 RMB545 million which has been charged

to the consolidated income statement The staff housing fund A0.28t
payable as at 31 December 2012 is RMB52 million 2011 RMB28

million The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay

further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to

pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the

current and prior periods

Staff housing allowances

The Group also provides staff housing allowances in cash to

eligible employees The total entitlement of an eligible employee

is principally vested over period of 20 years Upon an eligible

employees resignation or retirement his or her entitlement

would cease and any unpaid entitlement related to past service

up to the date of resignation or retirement would be paid As at --.l1Ei

31 December 2012 the present obligation of the provision for Al3.90

employees staff housing allowances is RMB391 million 2011

RMB39O million

For the year ended 31 December 2012 the staff housing benefit LEI
amounted to RMB171 million 2011 RMB171 million which has

been charged to the consolidated income statement lJ
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40 DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40

Group and Company

Assets Liabilities

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

_______________________________
At31 December

Interest rate swaps Note

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Note

Total

Less current portion

Interest rate swaps

Forward foreign exchange

Non-current portion

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair

value of the derivative assets in the balance sheets

Notes

Interest rate swaps itti

The Group uses interest rate swaps to reduce the risk of changes in market 2lc tiJ 1it$iJ $t $tF fif

interest rates Note 3at The interest rate swaps entered into by the 3ai
Group for swapping variable rates usually referenced to LIBOR into fixed

rates are accounted for as cash flow hedges Other interest rate swaps

are accounted for as fair value hedges As at 31 December 2012 the

notional amount of the outstanding interest rate swap agreements was

approximately US$929 million 2011 US$695 million These agreements 6.951
will expire between 2013 and 2022

Realised and unrealised gains and losses
arising from the valuation of

these interest rate swaps have been dealt with in the income statements as

follows

Group

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Realised losses recorded in finance costs 9169 118 016
Unrealised mark to market losses

cash flow hedges recognised in equity 4T18 133526
fair value hedges recognised in gain on fair value

movements of derivatives financial instruments 9062

13o42 242480
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40 DERIVATIVES FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40

continued

Notes continued

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts to reduce the risk of

changes in currency exchange rates in respect of ticket sales and expenses

denominated in foreign currencies Note 3ai The Groups forward foreign 3ai
exchange contracts for selling Japanese Yen and purchasing dollars at

fixed exchange rates are accounted for as cash flow hedges Other forward

foreign exchange contracts are accounted for as fair value hedges As at 31 Si--

December 2012 the notional amount of the outstanding currency forward 0.461

contracts was approximately US$58 million 2011 US$46 million which will

expire between 2013 and 2017

Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising
from the valuation of these

contracts have been dealt with in the income statements as follows

Group

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Realised losses recorded in finance income 1f24Oi O406

Unrealised mark to market gains

cash flow hedges recognised in equity
080

fair value hedges recognised in gain on fair value

movements of derivatives financial instruments 047
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41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41

Group

Assets at

fair value Derivatives

Loans and through the used for Available-

receivables profit and loss hedging for-sale Total

Assets as per balance sheet RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOF5 kM5t

Balance 31 December 2012 _fl
Available-for-sale financial assets

234690 234690

Derivative financial instruments 1804 18O74

Trade receivables 2962j181 2962181

Prepayments and other receivables

excluding prepayments 2544967 2544967

Restricted bank deposits and

short-term bank deposits 726-251 1i2625l

Cash and cash equivalents 24696 25II696

Total 45095 18074 234690 9997859

Liabilities at Other

fair value Derivatives financial

Loans and through the used for liabilities at

receivables profit and loss hedging amortised cost Total

iJtA
0fj

Liabilities as per balance sheet RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOUO

95t A95s

Balance3l December2012 __
Borrowings p136 118 45136118

Obligations under finance leases Ht1J 8819 2t8519-78

Derivative financial instruments iI 40j51 340151

Trade payables and notes payable 5325 075325

Other payabes and accrued

expenses 1622S 16256225

Other long-term liabilities 209 20977

Total 61- 35S3 345 874i5524
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41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41 mii1
continued

Assets at

fair value

Loans and through the

receivables profit and loss

fl
RMBOOO RMBooo

j9

Derivatives

used for Available-

hedging for-sale Total

RMBOQO RMBOOO RMBOOO

Af A9 A9
Balance 31 December 2011 --

Available-for-sale financial assets
240380

Derivative financial instruments $I 4365

Trade receivables fti 2504026

Prepayments and other receivables

excluding prepayments 14$7 444 1437444

Restricted bank deposits and short-

term bank deposits 2894287 2894287

Cash and cash equivalents 3860 973 3860973

Total 0696730 4365 240380 10941475

Liabilities at Other

fair value Derivatives financial

Loans and through
the used for liabilities at

receivables profit
and loss hedging amortised cost Total

bA
f11

Liabilities as per
balance sheet RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

A7c Fic

Balance 31 December 2011

Total 903732 332984 82236716
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Group continued

Assets as per balance sheet

Borrowings

Obligations
under finance leases

Derivative financial instruments

Trade payables and notes payable

Other payables and accrued

expenses

Other long-term
liabilities

0260822

332334 332984

2692624 2692624

16Z67 267 16267287
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41 HNANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41IJ
continued

Company 2I

Assets at

fair value Derivatives

Loans and through the used for Available-

receivables profit and loss hedging for-sale Total

iItA
-_5u tt

Assets as per balance sheet RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

Balance 31 December 2012

Available-for-sale financial assets 216256 216256

Derivative financial instruments 3ji f8O4 18ö74

Trade receivables 3601021 3601021

Prepayments and other receivables

excluding prepayments 6494290 6494290

Restdcted bank
deposits

and lj4e
short term bank deposits 109543 O9543

Cashandcashequivalents 617422 617422

Total iQ82Z27 074 2j6256 fl0566O6

Liabilities at Other

fair value Derivatives financial

Loans and through the used for liabilities at

receivables profit and loss hedging amortised cost Total

Jitt-AAI
Liabilities as per balance sheet RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

AtF51 t951 F5
Balance 31 December2012 LLIi
Borrowings 42131 35423131

Obligations under finance leases 762ffl 1Z47621o

Derivative financial instruments ii 34Of51 340151

Trade
payables and notes payable fJ4 558342 7558342

Other payables and accrued

expenses t0942271 10942271

Total T1399954 34O151 11140105
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41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41

continued

Company continued

Assets at

fair value Dedvatives

Loans and through the used for Available-

receivables profit and loss hedging
for-sale Total

ff
3J

Assets as per balance sheet RMB000 RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

ATf A1 A4 f7c
Balance3l December2011 TEH
Available-for-sale financial assets

Dedvative financIal instruments

Trade receivables

Prepayments and other receivables

excluding prepayments

Restricted bank deposits and short-

term bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

Ltabilities at Other

fair value Derivatives financial

Loans and through the used for liabilities at

receivables profit and loss hedging
amortised cost Total

itn
Liabilities as per balance sheet RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

Balance 31 December 2011 fr1
Borrowings

Obligations under fInance leases

Derivative financial instruments TT
Trade payables and notes payable

Other payables and accrued

expenses

Total
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42 SHARE CAPITAL 42 2I

Group and Company

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Registered issued and fully paid of RMB1 00 each ft
1O07c

share listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange

Shares IAfl9J 7762214

Tradable shares held by CEA Holding with

trading moratorium 4831375

Tradable shares held by other investors with

trading moratorium Note 1i.t 889

Tradable shares without trading moratorium

Note 661950

shares listed on the Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited shares 3494 325

Tradable shares held by CES Global Holding

Hong Kong Limited with trading moratorium

Note 413735

Tradable shares without trading moratorium

Note 20595O

11276539

Pursuant to articles 49 and 50 of the Companys Articles of Association

both the listed shares and the listed shares are all registered

ordinary shares and carry equal rights 1J

Note

During the year ended 31 December 2012 listed shares of 5120264 thousand iLl 51 2026.4

end listed shares of 1437375 thousand with trading moratorium became listed T1tt

and tradable
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43 RESERVES 43
Group

Capital Hedging

Share reserve reserve Other Accumulated

Premium Note Note 40 reserves losses Total

P40 40 Wf
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

AFs AF ILC7E fi5
At January2011

Unrealised loss on cashflow

hedges Note 40 I40
Fair value movements of available

for sale investments

Fair value movements of available

for sale investments held by

associates

Prof it attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company IJ

Accumulated losses shared by

non-controlling interests after

capital Injection in subsidiary

Acquisition of non-controlling

interests in subsidiaries

At31 December2011

AtlJanuary2Ol2

Unrealised loss on cashflow

hedges Note 40 t40
Fair value movements of available 11ftf

for sale investments held by

associates

Fair value movements of available

for sale investments

Profit attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company

Acquisition of non-controlling

interests in subsidiaries

Note 22cd 122cUd
Others

At31 December2012 _T-j--j-H
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43 RESERVES continued 43

Company

Capital Hedging

Share reserve reserve Accumulated

premium Note Note 40 losses Total

f1
40 38
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

Af5t
At January 2011 17747 85 72Q087 154 492 10 853155i 6019481

Unrealised gain on cashflow hedges

Note 40 14o
32446 132 446

Transaction with
non-controlling

interest 19 197335

Profit for the
year lJ 4522681 4522687

At31 December2011 Th5 t4 7290577 2863 63$1 088 10607057

AtlJanuaiy2Ol2 45 -JJ-LN
Unrealised gain on cashflow hedges

Note 40 817740

Profitfortheyear ljf4
Others

At31 December2012 --H17 jJ1
Notes

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the difference between the fair value of the net 2tc .11 4liflt4
assets injected and the nominal amount of the Companys share capital

issued in respect of Group restructuring carried out in June 1996 for the

purpose of the Companys listing

Statutory and Discretionary Reserves

Pursuant to the PRO regulations and the Companies Articles of Association 5Il1 SI SI

each of the Group companies is required to transfer 10% of its profit for 55 7iJ5
the year after offsetting the accumulated losses as determined under the

PRC Accounting Regulations to statutory common reserve fund until the 17577ffl55o%
fund balance exceeds 50% of the Group companys registered capital The 5l1SI
statutory common reserve fund can be used to make good previous years

losses if any and to issue new shares to shareholders in proportion to their

existing shareholdings or to increase the par value of the shares currently

held by them provided that the balance after such issue is not less than

25% of the registered capital

Each of the Group companies is permitted to transfer 5% of its profit

for the year as determined under the PRO Accounting Regulations to

discretionary common reserve fund The transfer to this reserve is subject to

approval at shareholders meetings or board meetings

No profit appropriation by the Company to the
statutory

and
discretionary .11 iJI

reserve fund was made forthe year ended 31 December 2012 2011 Nil as

the Company was in accumulated loss position as at 31 December 2012
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44 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 44

In December 2011 the Group entered into an agreement with third

party to dispose certain aircraft and related engines in the forthcoming E12I
12 months in consideration of high maintenance costs of these aircraft EH-

The aircraft and engines with an aggregated carrying value of RMB482

million after the impairment loss charge has been classified as assets

held for sale at 31 December 2011 An impairment loss charge of

approximately RMB612 million was made against these aircraft and 6.12110
engines by reference to the contracted selling price Note 10 for the

year ended 31 December 2011

The assets held for sale as at 31 December 2011 were disposed in 2012

and the selling price approximates its carrying value

45 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 45

STATEM ENT

Cash generated from operations

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Profit before income tax lj tQ24Q4
Adjustments for

Depreciation of property plant and equipment jJ
and intangible assets 75O252

Gain on disposals of property plant and

equipment
9196

Gain on disposals of assets-held-for-sale

Gain on disposals of investment in subsidiaries

Share of results of associates lO3Q9

Share of results of jointly controlled entities 42996

Amortisation of lease prepayments

Net foreign exchange gains
i47 8$J 69

Gain arising
from fair value movements of

derivative financial instruments 15

Consumption of flight equipment spare parts
741 268

Impairment reversal/provision for trade and

other receivables /5j 66T fS

Provision for post-retirement benefits 8i

Provision for return condition checks for

aircraft under operating leases

Impairment reversal/charges 48
Interest income lj9j\

Interest expense 69 47
II

Operating profit before working capital changes lI1 43 6954
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45 NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 45
STATEMENT continued

Cash generated from operations continued

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Changes in working capital

Flight equipment spare parts 1T6365 O3487
Trade receivables 4219O 104W7
Prepayments and other receivables 99757 613610
Restricted bank deposits and short-term bank

deposits 1$8036
Sales in advance of carriage ittO322 619794
Trade payables and notes payables 17
Other payables and accrued expenses 17926 680W9
Other long term liabilities 383759
Provision for return condition checks for

aircraft under operating leases 93t4
Staff housing allowances $61 144 72
Post-retirement benefit obligations 15 S58
Operating lease deposits 5796t 47 645

Cash generated from operations tZ82835 781 19

Non-cash transactions

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Financing activities not affecting cash

Finance lease obligations incurred for

acquisition of aircraft
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2J4

COMMITMENTS 46

Capital commitments

The Group and the Company had the following capital

commitments

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

MfY 5t
Authorised and contracted for

Aircraft engines and flight

equipment Note

Other property plant and It
equipment

Investment

Authorised but not contracted for iti

Other property plant and

equipment

Investment

Note

Contracted expenditures for the above aircraft engines and flight equipment PkJfI

including deposits prior to delivery subject to future inflation increases built

into the contracts were expected to be paid as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

W-
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

95i kZF A9 AF
Within one year

In the second year

In the third year

In the fourth year

Over four years
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46 COMMITMENTS continued 46 ti
Operating lease commitments

As at the balance sheet date the Group and the Company had

oommitments under operating leases to pay future minimum lease

rentals as follows

Group company

2012 2011 2012 2011

SW-nt nS-n
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

A95i AT7c A9Yt AWMT5
urt

Aircraft engines and flight

equipment

Within one year 042

In the second year 1t71t6 2ff

In the third to fifth year inclusive MMIEtflJ S$Mt
Afterthefifthyear 94

lKLr_fr irmJ1JIi$tI

Land and buildings itkac
Within one year O4rijJ4jJJ
In the second year 1588

In the third to fifth year inclusive 3jqE
Afterthefifthyear MS

rLAi srsas

I$2591

M4 eltNk2Jtl2
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47

The Group is controlled by CEA Holding which directly owns 42.84%

of the Companys shares as at 31 December2012 2011 42.84% In

addition through CES Global Holding Hong Kong Limited wholly 42.84%

owned subsidiary of CEA Holding CEA Holding owns 17.09% of the

Companys shares as at 31 December 2012 2011 17.09% 2I-YLT
17.09%L 17.09%

Nature of related parties that do not control or

controlled by the Group

Name of related party Relationship with the Group

Eastern Finance Controlled by the same parent company

Kunming Dongmei Aviation Travel Co Ltd Kunming Dongmei Controlled by the same parent company

i1IJ
Dongmei Travel Associate of the Company

Xian Dongmei Aviation Travel Co Ltd Xian Dongmei Controlled by the same parent companyIj
Eastern Import Export Associate of the Company

Wheels Brakes Joint controlled entity of the Company

Technologies Aerospace Joint controlled entity of the Company

Shanghai PW Associate of the Company

Shanghai Eastern Air Catering Co Ltd Shanghai Catering Controlled by the same parent companyIj
Eastern Advertising Associate of the Company

CEA Development Co Ltd CEA Development Controlled by the same parent company1i IJ
Shanghai Eastern Aviation Equipment Manufacturing Corporation

Eastern Aviation Controlled by the same parent companyIj
Shanghai Hute Aviation Tech Co Ltd Shanghai Hute Controlled by the same parent companyIj
Shanghai Eastern International Aviation Travel Co Ltd Eastern Aviation

Travel Controlled by the same parent companyIj
Eastern China Kaiya System Integration China Kaiya Controlled by the same parent companyj6
CEA Northwest Co Ltd CEA Northwest Controlled by the same parent company

Shanghai Aviation Import Export Co Ltd Shanghai Import Export Associate of the Company

Di
Shanghai Eastern Airlines Investment Co Ltd Eastern investment Associate of the Company

Eastern Airlines Travel Investment Group Co Ltd Eastern Travel Associate of the Company
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued 47

Related party transaction jL
Income/expense or payments

Nature of transaction Related party 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

AF5
With CEA Holding or companies directly or indirectly held by CEA Holding

Interest income on deposits at an average rate of Eastern Finance 45996

0.39% per annum 2011 050% per annum

JftQ39%
ifjIJt0.50%

Interest expense on loans at average rate of Eastern Finance 45j

5.49% per annum 2011 5.39% per annum

iJ5 49% CEA Holding

ii5.39%

Commission expense on air tickets sold on Dongmei Travel

behalf of the Group at rates ranging

from 3% to 9% of the value of tickets sold Kunming Dongmei 858

Xian Dongmei 4O

Handling chargas of 0.1% to 2% for purchase of Eastern Import Export 7756
aircraft flight equipment flight equipment ft

spare parts other property plant and equipment

and repairs for aircraft and engines

Repairs and maintenance expense for aircraft Wheels Brakes 5483
and engines

Technologies Aerospace i458

Shanghai PW 2OO9O5ó

Supply of food and beverages Shanghai Catering and ç78384

its subsidiaries

Advertising expense Eastern Advertising 13884

Media royalty fee Eastern Advertising 3.6O3O 9O

203



CHINA EASTERN AIRLINES CORPORATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 218
7f

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

For the year ended 31 Oecember 2012 iil

47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued 47

Related party transaction continued flLASI

lncome/expense or payments

Nature of transaction Related party 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Automobile maintenance service aircraft Maintenance CEA Development

providing transportation Automobile and other

products

Equipment maintenance fee Shanghai Hute

Land and building rental CEA Holding

Acquisition of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries CEA Holding

Shanghai Import Export

Acquisition of non-controlling interests in associates Eastern Travel

ft

Acquisition of cargo business Great Wall Airlines

Disposal of investment in an associate Eastern Investment

The Groups pricing policies on products purchased from related

parties are based on mutually agreed prices between contract parties

The Groups pricing policies on services provided by and to related

parties are based on the mutually agreed prices between contract

parties

The Companys pricing policies on transfer of equity or dispose of

investment are based on the valuation prices
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued 47

Balances with related companies A1M
Amounts due from related companies

Group Company

Nature Company 2012 2011 2012 2011

w-
RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMB000Ac Ft AF

Trade receivables Kunming Dongmei

Eastern Aviation Travel

tO12

China Cargo

2181 624 t2

Others

4308 6305 1671T

521 21I87929 4l3499

Prepayments and other Eastern Import Export

receivable ft 7O15 18 53 3119 B481f China Kaiya

16$ 59 19694 18150

Shanghai Airlines

2245339 688897

China Cargo

745359

United Airlines

63823 i480

CEAYunnan

46Z102 254872

CEA Wuhan

341 5465

Others

i1 560 80604

4Q44 47552 $26 26

All the amounts due from related companies are trade in

nature interest free and payable within normal credit terms

given to trade customers
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS conilnued 47

Balances with related companies continued NA11
ii Amounts due to related companies ii

Group Company

Nature Company 2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOOAf
Trade payebles and Eastern Import Export

notes payable 85256
Shanghai PW
L5 4788 422Ł4

Shanghai Catering

Technologies Aerospace

4OO1h
China Cargo

ii

CEAYunnan

Shanghai Airlines

UI

CEA Jiangsu

75M581

United Airlines

Ii 74
Others

t1tifJ th

Other payables and Eastern Import Export
II

accrued expenses 9686 96PI
CEA Holding

020

Eastern Air Overseas HK

55129
China Cargo

2o$4
United Airlines

I188

Shanghai Airlines

Others

25 $2

Except for the amounts due to CEA Holding whIch are

reimbursement in nature all other amounts due to related

companies are trade in nature All amounts due to related

companies are interest free and payable within normal credit

terms given by trade creditors
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued 47 AR
Balances with related companies continued AI
iii Short-term deposits and borrowings with associates iii Th

and CEA Holding

Average interest rate Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO RMBOOO

A9 A97c F5 AF7c

Short-term deposits ncluded

in restricted bank deposs

and short-term bankdeposas

astern Finance 4t 2044 fP Th3 23223

Short-term loans

includectin borrowings tl
Eastern Finance J426V

VVV
VVV

Long-term loans

included in borrowings

Eastern Finance VVVV IV

Guarantees by holding company

Asat3l December2012 bankloansoftheGroupwithan lThEH
aggregate amount of 1RM695 million 2011 RMB228 million were

guaranteed by CEA Holding Note 34 0.95 A2.28t5L 14

34
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47 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued 47

Key management compensation

The compensation paid or payable to key management for Eli
employee services mainly comprised of salaries and other short-

term employee benefits and was analysed as below

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Directors and supervisors Note 9a fit9a
Senior management

48 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 48

The Directors regard CEA Holding state-owned enterprise established 212

in the PRO as being the ultimate holding company
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The following consolidated financial information is extracted from the

consolidated financial statements of the Group prepared under the PRC

Accounting Standards

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEM ENT

Prepared in accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

For the year ended 31 December2012

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Revenue à9251 63974005

Less Cost of operation 7O447S37

Taxes and surcharges 1803091

Selling and distribution expenses 5406 loS

General and administrative expense 870 4T
Finance expenses net 441 fT72

Impairment loss 79 364

Add Fairvaluegain 86851

Investment income 128122

Operating profit
597 885

Add Non-operating income ifl 598522

Less Non-operating expenses 28493
14

Total profit
5167714

Less Income tax 265227

Net profit

iif
Attribute to

Equity shareholders of the Company 886Jb2

Non-controlling interests 15 785

4902487
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Prepared/n accordance with PRC Accounting Standards

For the year ended 31 December2012

2012 2011

RMBOOO RMBOOO

Assets

Total current assets

Long-term investment 6i
Fixed assets and construction in progress 94 751

Goodwill

Intangible assets and non-current assets 46Oi

Deferred tax assets

Total assets Oi$24f

Liabilities and equity

Current liabilities 4884t
Non-current liabilities O4S98
Deferred tax liabilities 136

Total Liabilities

Equity shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests IJ1j

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity
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SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS IFRS AND PRO ACCOUNTING

STANDARDS

The Groups accounting policies which conform with IFRS differ in

certain aspects from PRC Accounting Regulations Differences between

IFRS and PRC Accounting Standards which have significant effect

on the consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the

Company and consolidated net assets of the Group are summarised as

follows

2012 2011

Note RMBOOO RMBOOO

Consolidated profit attributable to equity

shareholders of the Company

As stated in accordance with PRC

Accounting Standards

Impact of IFRS and other adjustments

5V

Provision for post-retirement benefits

Difference in depreciation charges for

aircraft and engines due to different

depreciation lives and revaluation

Deferred tax adjustments

Others

As stated in accordance with IFRS ________

2012 2011

Note RMBOOO RMBOOO

Consolidated net assets attributable to

equity shareholders of the Company

As stated in accordance with PRC Accounting

Standards
7648

Impact of IFRS and other adjustments

Provision for post-retirement benefits
49

Difference in depreciation charges for

aircraft and engines due to different

depreciation lives and revaluation

Intangibles assets Goodwill
6O85 IO

Deferred tax adjustments

-Others
LTI

As stated in accordance with IFRS
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SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS IFRS AND PRC ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS continued

Under the PRO Accounting Standards employees post-retirement I71r IJ
benefits are recognised upon payment Under IFRS such post-

retirement benefits under defined benefit schemes are required to I1rIj
be recognised over the employees service period using projected

unit credit method

Under the PRO Accounting Standards on or before 30 June iM-2IJ
2001 depreciation of aircraft was calculated to write off their costs

on straight-line basis over their expected useful lives of 10 to 15

years to their residual values of 3% With effect from July 2001

depreciation of aircraft under the PRO Accounting Standards is

calculated to write off their costs on straight-line basis over their

expected useful lives of 15 to 20 years to their residual values of
jft

5% of costs the change was applied prospectively which resulted

in the difference in the carrying amounts under IFRS and the

PRO Accounting Standards These differences will be reduced

progressively in the coming years and will be fully eliminated when

the related assets are fully depreciated or disposed

The recognition and measurement of the fair values of the

acquisition costs and identifiable assets and liabilities of Shanghai IjJ
Airlines acquired are different under IFRS and the PRO Accounting

Standards which result in difference in the intangibles/goodwill

recognised arising from the acquisition

This represents the corresponding deferred tax effects related to J/
the items above
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DIRECTORS

Liu Shaoyong Chairman

Ma Xulun tæce Chairman President

Xu Zhao Director 1$
Gu Jiadan Director

Li Yangmin Director Vice President

Tang Bing Director Vice President

Luo Zhuping Director Company Secretay

Sandy Ke-Yaw Liu Independent Non-executive Director

Wu Xiaogen Independent Non-executive Director

Ji Weidong Independent Non executive Director

Shao Ruiqing Independent Non-executive Director

SUPERVISORS

Yu Faming Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Xi Sheng Supervisor IL$
Liu Jiashun Supervisor

Feng Jinxiong Supervisor

Yan Taisheng Supervisor

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Shu Mingjiang v7ce President

Wu Yongliang tTce President Chief Financial Dificer

Tian Liuwen I/ice President

Wang Jian Board Secretary Joint company Secmta 51 U7t.St

COMPANY SECRETARY

Wang Jian 51

Ngai Wai Fung

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Liu Shaoyong

Wang Jian 51

COMPANYS WEBSITE

http//www.ceair.com http//www.ceair.com

COMPANYS E-MAIL ADDRESS

ir@ceair.com ir@oeair.com

With effect from April 2012 Mr Luo Zhuping ceased to act as the Company

Secretary and the Authorised Representative and Mr Wang Man and Mr Ngai

Wai Fung have been appointed as the Joint Company Secretaries and Mr

Wang Jian has also been appointed as an Authorised Representative
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International Auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

22nd Floor Princes Building

Central Hong Kong

Domestic Auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers

Zhong Tian CPAs LimIted Company

11/F PricewaterhouseCoopers Center

Corporate Avenue

202 Hu Bin Road

shanghai 200021

PRC t200021

LEGAL ADVISERS

Hong Kong Baker Mckenzie ffJf

USA Baker McKenzie

China
Beijing

Commerce Finance Law Office

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Shanghai Branch

China Construction Bank Shanghai Branch

The Bank of China Shanghai Branch

SHARE REGISTRAR

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Rooms 171 21 71 17th Floor Hopewell Centre

183 Queens Road East Hong Kong

The Bank of New York The Bank of New York

101 Barclay Street 101 Barclay Street

New York NY 10286 USA New York NY 10286 USA

China Securities Depository and
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166 East Lu Jiazui Road Pudong New Area Shanghai
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 31/F United Centre 95 Queensway Hong Kong

CUSTODIAN FOR LISTED SHARES WITH TRADING

MORATORIUM

China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited

Shanghai Branch

CHANGE OF BUSINESS LICENSE REGISTRATION

The Company changed its business license registration due to changes in the tffi

registered capital of the Company

Registered capital of the Company is RMB11276538860 at the end of the

Reporting Period

Business License Registration Number of the Corporation Legal 31OOOO4OO111686

Person 310000400111686 Airport

Tax Registration Number 310105741602981 310105741602981

Shareholders can obtain copy of the Companys annual report for the year 2012 through the Intemet addresses shown belowIT4
http//www.ceair.com http//www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinaeast
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